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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

December 3!
June 30, 201 2014

Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $ 49,54¢ $ 164,62
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu 3,937,11. 3,404,14
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 6,298,87! 8,441,52.
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alaee for loan losses of $0 million and $7 million,
respectively - 626,11.
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e 5,208,55I 4,699,21!
Receivable for investments sc - 1,572,05
Accrued interest receivab 71,58¢ 71,09¢
Other asset 164,53: 172,60:
Derivatives, at fair value, n 21,43( 3,631
Total asset®) $ 15,751,63 $ 19,155,00
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, RMBS ($7.9 billion and Bi8i8n pledged as collateral, respective $ 681383 $ 8,455,38
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMB&.3 billion and $2.5 billion pledged as coltaie
respectively’ 625,27( 704,91!
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestment ($0 million and $626 million pledged as
collateral, respectively - 521,99
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dgris held for investment ($5.2 billion and $4.7gked as
collateral, respectively 4,265,21! 3,868,361
Payable for investments purchas 457,48 1,845,28:
Accrued interest payab 27,85¢ 31,88t
Dividends payabl 98,67 92,48:
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 873 2,46¢
Investment management fees and expenses payaiifditoe 10,28: 10,357
Derivatives, at fair valu 12,08( 14,17"
Total liabilities®) 12,311,57 15,547,31
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 100000Gshares authorized, 0 shares issued and alitggan
respectively $ - $ =
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 300,000s88res authorized, 205,577,489 and 205,546,144
shares issued and outstanding, respect 10,27 10,27"
Additional paic-in-capital 3,606,68! 3,606,19.
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 904,80 1,046,68
Accumulated defici (1,081,70) (1,055,45))
Total stockholders' equit $ 3,440,06! $ 3,607,69
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 15,751,63 $ 19,155,00

(1) The Company's consolidated statements of fimhcondition include assets of consolidated vdeabterest entities ("VIES") that can o
be used to settle obligations and liabilities af Y¥WE for which creditors do not have recourseht® primary beneficiary (Chimera Investrr
Corp.). As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2@i4l, assets of consolidated VIEs were $7,676a1 $7,924,232, respectively, and t
liabilities of consolidated VIEs were $4,905,8041 5,111,348, respectively. See Note 8 for furthiscussion

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

For the Quarter Ended For the Six Months Ended
Net Interest Income: June 30, 201  June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Interest incomd®) $ 215,80 $ 134,31t $ 458,94¢ $ 254,98!
Interest expens?) 66,04+ 20,68( 126,50( 43,10¢
Net interest incom 149,76( 113,63t 332,44¢ 211,88
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (2,209 (3,819 (3,260 (4,219
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeline (24,897) (1,539 (31,65¢€) (2,669
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (27,107 (5,349 (34,916 (6,887
Other investment gains (losses’
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 88,02¢ (22,497 92,08: (24,699
Realized gains (losses) on terminations of intawst swap: (31,129 - (99,709 -
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (16,777 (19,797 (58,867) (25,54()
Net gains (losses) on derivative 40,12° (42,289 (66,487) (50,239
Net unrealized gains (losses) on financial instmitmat fair value (37,260) 5,791 (47,685 20,80:
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 9,68¢ (4,339 39,25( 4,03¢
Gain on deconsolidatic - 47,84¢ - 47,84¢
Gains (losses) on Extinguishment of D 5,07¢ - 5,07¢ (2,189
Total other gains (losse 17,63: 7,00¢ (69,839 20,26¢
Other expenses:
Management fee 10,19¢ 6,271 20,52: 12,49:
Expense recoveries from Manay (4,652 (2,169 (5,765 (2,845
Net management fes 5,54¢ 4,107 14,75, 9,64
General and administrative expen 18,55¢ 6,42/ 29,70¢ 10,47¢
Total other expense 24,10 10,53: 44,46 20,12¢
Income before income taxe 116,18 104,76¢ 183,22¢ 205,13¢
Income taxe: - - 1 2
Net income $ 116,18 $ 104,76¢ $ 183,22( $ 205,13
Net income per share available to common shareholde
Basic $ 057 $ 0.51 $ 0.8¢ $ 1.0C
Diluted $ 057 $ 051 $ 0.8¢ $ 1.0C
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 205,492,08 205,441,79 205,509,78 205,447,12
Diluted 205,579,63 205,506,89 205,573,29 205,512,29
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income $ 116,18 $ 104,76¢ $ 183,22¢ $ 205,13
Other comprehensive incorr
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni (117,74 100,64 (137,659 138,15(
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetket income for othel
thar- temporary credit impairment loss 27,10: 5,34 34,91¢ 6,881
Reclassification adjustment for net realized logges) included in net
income (20,059 37 (39,13 (8,340()
Reclassification adjustment for gain on deconstiticeincluded in net
income - (47,846 - (47,846
Other comprehensive income (lo (100,700 58,18¢ (141,87 88,84!
Comprehensive incon $ 15,487 $ 162,95 $ 41,35 $ 293,98.

(1) Includes interest income of consolidated VIEs of&900 and $85,262 for the quarters ended Jun@@h and 2014, respectively i
interest income of consolidated VIEs of $297,518 070,473 for the six months ended June 30, 2652814, respectivelysee Note
for further discussior

(2) Includes interest expense of consolidated VIEsSff,426 and $17,176 for the quarters ended Jun@((h and 2014, respectively i
interest expense of consolidated VIEs of $97,179 87,875 for the six months ended June 30, 20#528f4, respectivelySee Note



for further discussior

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Accumulated

Common Additional Other
Stock Par Paid-in Comprehensiv ~ Accumulatec
Value Capital Income Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,27. $ 3,605,24 $ 990,80: $ (1,274,80) $ 3,331,51!
Net income - - - 205,13 205,13
Other comprehensive income (lo - - 88,84¢ - 88,84¢
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 1 117 - - 11¢€
Common dividends declared, $0.90 per sl - - - (184,909 (184,909
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 10,27 $ 3,60535 $ 1,079,64 $ (1,254,57) $ 3,440,70.
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,27 $ 3,606,19 $ 1,046,68 $ (1,055,45) $ 3,607,69!
Net income (loss - - - 183,22¢ 183,22¢
Cumulative effect of accounting chan(® - - - (12,13) (12,13)
Other comprehensive income (lo - - (141,87 - (141,87
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 2 494 - - 49€
Common dividends declared, $0.96 per sl - - (197,339 (197,339
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 10,277 $ 3,606,68 $ 904,800 $ (1,081,70) $ 3,440,06!

(1) Adoption of ASU No. 2014-13easuring the Financial Assets and the Financialdilities of a Consolidated Collateralized Finangin
Entity . See Note 2(p), Recent Accounting Pronouncementsifther discussior

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisdsients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousand:

For the Six Months Ende

June 30, 201  June 30, 201
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $ 183,22¢ $ 205,13
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigem by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums, ne (10,02¢) (39,929
Accretion (amortization) of deferred financing @and
securitized debt discounts/premiums, 2,68¢ 6,241
Net unrealized losses (gains) on derivati (92,087) 24,69:
Net realized losses (gains) on option contractiesk - 1,24¢
Proceeds (payments) for derivative sales and sedtiés (12,83) 5,471
Margin (paid) received on derivativ 107,46. (99,81°)
Net unrealized losses (gains) on financial instmitmat fair value 47,68¢ (20,807
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investn (39,25() (4,039
Gain on deconsolidatic - (47,846
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 34,91¢ 6,881
(Gain) loss on extinguishment of d¢ (5,079 2,18¢
Provision for loan losses, n - 53¢
Equity-based compensation expe! 49€ 11¢
Changes in operating asse
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivaét (48%) (20,17¢)
Decrease (increase) in other as: (19,69) (2,420)
Changes in operating liabilitie
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and @bdities (1,596 (767)
Increase (decrease) in investment management fidesxpenses payable to affilic (79) 622
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payadtl (4,030 6,88¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 192,33( $ 34,23.
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Agency RMBS portfolio
Purchase $ (3,197,68) $ (4,333,38)
Sales 4,653,66: 578,84
Principal payment 681,78 121,101
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio
Purchase (745,33() (188,779
Sales 109,99¢ 261,84(
Principal payment 169,02 158,25(
Securitized loans held for investme
Purchase (281,81) -
Principal payment 358,12¢ 67,42:
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ 1,747,780 $ (3,334,70)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 2457102 $ 8,805,23
Payments on repurchase agreem (26,212,57) (4,899,23)
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, colddieed by loans held for investme 485,11. -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatadlby loans held for investme (626,016 (65,54%)
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatadlby Nol-Agency RMBS (81,587 (97,307
Repurchase of securitized debt borrowings, coliditaad by No-Agency RMBS - (56,077)
Common dividends pai (191,145 (390,359
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ (2,055,18) $ 3,296,71
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ (115,079 (3,759
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 164,62 77,62¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 4954¢ $ 73,87:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest receive $ 448,43¢ $ 202,26
Interest paic $ 133,21¢ $ 29,97¢
Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 20,597 $ 11,87(
Non-cash investing activities:
Payable for investments purchas $ 457,48: $ 2,030,12i
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ (14187) $ 88,84!




Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet p $ 98,677 $ 92,45!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financdstents




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weaganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Comgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial puibffering. The Company elected to be taxed esahestate investment tru“REIT”)
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendddegulations promulgated thereunder (the “Qodée Company formed the
following wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiarie€himera Securities Holdings, LLC in July 2008; @kra Asset Holding LLC and
Chimera Holding LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Saddblding LLC in January 2010 which is a wholly-o&d subsidiary of Chimera Asset
Holding LLC. In July 2010, the Company formed Clvading Company LLC (“CIM Trading”), a wholly-owndéxable REIT subsidiary
(“TRS"). In October 2013, the Company formed ChismBunding TRS LLC (“CIM Funding TRS"), which is anally-owned TRS. In March
2015, the Company formed Chimera Mortgage SecsiiitieC, which is a wholly-owned qualified REIT subisiry (“QRS”).

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apximately 4.4% of the Compargycommon shares as of June 30, 2015. The Comp
managed by Fixed Income Discount Advisory CompdRIDAC”), an investment advisor registered with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidi of Annaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes of the Company have been prepasetordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United St&16&AP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustnts considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's financial positi@suits of operations and cash flows have beendeduCertain prior year amounts have beer
reclassified to conform to the current year’s pnéggon. All per share amounts, common sharesand#tg and restricted shares for the secor
quarter of 2015 and all prior periods reflect trmrpany's 1-for-5 reverse stock split, which waseffe April 6, 2015.

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, tbeuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and variable interest entities (“VIES”) in whichet@ompany is the primary beneficiary. All intercaang balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

The Company uses securitization trusts consider&e tVIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. VIEs are defined as entitie:
in which equity investors (i) do not have the cletedstics of a controlling financial interest, (@ do not have sufficient equity at risk for the
entity to finance its activities without additiormlbordinated financial support from other parfigse entity that consolidates a VIE is knowt
its primary beneficiary, and is generally the gniiith (i) the power to direct the activities thabst significantly impact the VIES’ economic
performance, and (ii) the right to receive bendfiten the VIE or the obligation to absorb losseshaf VIE that could be significant to the VIE.
For VIEs that do not have substantial on-goingvétidis, the power to direct the activities that tsignificantly impact the VIES’ economic
performance may be determined by an entity’s inewiegnt with the design and structure of the VIE.

The trusts are structured as pass through entité¢geceive principal and interest on the undag\dollateral and distribute those payments to
the certificate holders. The assets held by thargemation entities are restricted in that they cmly be used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Company’s risks ass@tatith its involvement with these VIEs are limitexdits risks and rights as a certificate
holder of the bonds it has retained. There have hegecent changes to the nature of risks assaocigith the Company’s involvement with
VIEs.

Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determinetiftirethe securitizations it
consolidates, its ownership of substantially ablandlinate interests provides the Company with thiggation to absorb losses or the right to
receive benefits from the VIE that could be sigrfit to the VIE. In addition, the Company has thegr to direct the activities of the VIEs
that most significantly impact the VIES’ economirfmrmance (“power”) such as rights to direct segviactivity or the Company was
determined to have power in connection with itolmement with the purpose and design of the VIE.




The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidatedrenCompany’s Statements of Financial
Condition, is restricted by the structural provigmf these entities, and a recovery of the Companyestment in the vehicles will be limited
by each entity’s distribution provisions. The ligigs of the securitization vehicles, which are@mtonsolidated on the Company’s Statements
of Financial Condition, are non-recourse to the @any, and can generally only be satisfied from esstturitization vehicle’s respective asset
pool.

The securitization entities are comprised of sediasses of residential mortgage backed secu(if¥dBS”) and residential mortgage loans.
See Notes 3, 4 and 8 for further discussion ottreracteristics of the securities and loans inbmpany’s portfolio.

(b) Statements of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@ualdition include both the Company’s direct asaets liabilities and the assets and
liabilities of consolidated securitization vehicléssets of each consolidated VIE can only be teesdtisfy the obligations of that VIE, and the
liabilities of consolidated VIEs are non-recoursétte Company. The Company is not obligated toigdewnor does it intend to provide, any
financial support to these consolidated securitmatehicles. The notes to the consolidated firgratatements describe the Company’s direct
assets and liabilities and the assets and liadslinf consolidated securitization vehicles. Seeedbr additional information related to the
Company’s investments in consolidated securitiratiehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handaasihddeposited overnight in money market funds¢hvhre not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser@&orporation. There were no restrictions on eeshcash equivalents at June 30, 2015
and December 31, 2014.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed Securitée

The Company invests in mortgage backed securlti¢B$") representing interests in obligations backsdpools of mortgage loans. The
Company delineates between Agency MBS and Non-AgbtieS as follows: Agency MBS are mortgage passtigtocertificates,
collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs"), arttier MBS representing interests in or obligatioasked by pools of mortgage loans issuec
or guaranteed by agencies of the U.S. Governmecit, s Ginnie Mae, or federally chartered corporatisuch as Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae
where principal and interest repayments are gueeanby the respective agency of the U.S. Governordieterally chartered corporation.
Non-Agency RMBS are not issued or guaranteed by a Gdsernment Agency or other institution and argeettio credit risk. Repayment of
principal and interest on Non-Agency RMBS is subjedhe performance of the mortgage loans or MBl&teralizing the obligation.

The Company also invests in Interest Only AgencySWirips and Non-Agency RMBS strips (IO MBS stf)p$O MBS strips represent the
Company’s right to receive a specified proportiéth@ contractual interest flows of the collatetaterest income on 10 MBS strips is accrued
based on the outstanding notional balance andettwisy’s contractual terms, and amortization of any premiscalculated in accordance w
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBcAunting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 325-B&neficial Interests in Securitized
Financial Asset(“ASC 325-40"). The Company accounts for IO MBSpsrat fair value with changes in fair value redagd in the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Operation<Camdprehensive Income.

The Company classifies the majority of its MBS aaikable-for-sale and records investments at eséichiair value as described in Note 5 of
these consolidated financial statements. The Coynjpatudes unrealized gains and losses considerbd temporary on all MBS in Other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) in the Consolidatedt&tnents of Operations and Comprehensive IncomdCFstrips and certain other MBS
investments, the Company has elected the fair vagbtion and these investments are recorded at&stihfiair value and all unrealized gains
and losses are included in earnings in the CoregtelitiStatements of Operations and Comprehensieengc-rom time to time, as part of the
overall management of its portfolio, the Companyrsell any of its investments and recognize azedligain or loss as a component of
earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Opa&mtnd Comprehensive Income utilizing the averagé method.




The Company’s accounting policy for interest incamne impairment related to its MBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on MBS secusitiaries depending on the characteristics of therig as follows:
Agency MBS and No-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

FASB ASC 310-20Nonrefundable Fees and Other CoS&SC 310-20") is applied to the recognition ofén¢st income for the following
securities:

« Agency MBS
« Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condits at the acquisition date (referred to herea$etNonAgency RMBS ¢
High Credit Qualit”):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized crealiing agency using the lowest rating availa

2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow

3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid suwt the Company would not recover substantiallyodliits recorde
investment

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premswand discounts associated with the acquisitidghede securities, is recognized over the
life of such securities using the interest methasda on the contractual cash flows of the secunitgpplying the interest method, the Comg
considers estimates of future principal prepaymgntise calculation of the effective yield. Differees that arise between previously anticip
prepayments and actual prepayments received, Assvehanges in future prepayment assumptionslt issurecalculation of the effective
yield on the security on a quarterly basis. Theateulation results in the recognition of an adjust to the carrying amount of the secu
based on the revised prepayment assumptions amulessgonding increase or decrease in reportecesttarcome.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS purchased at a discount and not df bigdit quality at the time of purchase are actedifor under ASC 310-30Q0ans
and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Gré€liality (“ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-40 (referred to hereafisr*‘Non-Agency RMBS
Not of High Credit Qualit”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3héffollowing conditions are met as of the acqigsiate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyatit the security from its inceptio
2. ltis probable that the Company will be unableatiect all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if atttguisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (definasl rated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otliexgettled in such a way that the Company woutdewver substantially all of
recorded investmen

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gté&uality is recognized using the interest methaded on management’s estimates o
cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based on mamag’s estimate for each security of the
projected cash flows, which are estimated baseabggrvation of current market information and idlel@ssumptions related to fluctuations in
prepayment speeds and the timing and amount oit dosdes. Quarterly, the Company reviews andpjifrapriate, makes adjustments to its
cash flow projections based on inputs and analyesesved from external sources, internal modeld,tha Company’s judgments about
prepayment rates, the timing and amount of credids, and other factors. Changes in the amouimiog of cash flows from those originally
projected, or from those estimated at the lastuatadn date, are considered to be either positiamges or adverse changes. For securities
accounted for under ASC 325-40, any positive oeasty change in cash flows that does not resuftameicognition of an other-than-temporary
impairment (“OTTI") results in a prospective incsezor decrease in the effective interest rate teseetognize interest income. For securities
accounted for under ASC 310-30, only significargifiee changes are reflected prospectively in ffectve interest rate used to recognize
interest income. Adverse changes in cash flows@ggeo be collected are generally treated conmgligtéor MBS accounted for under ASC
325-40 and ASC 310-30, and generally result ingetmn of an OTTI with no change in the effectinéerest rate used to recognize interest
income.




Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all MBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale MB$esss than its amortized cost the security is a@rsid impaired. On a quarterly basis the
Company evaluates its securities for OTTI. If thePany intends to sell an impaired security, @ ihore-likely-than-not that the Company
will be required to sell an impaired security befis anticipated recovery, then the Company nmaignize an OTTI through a charge to
earnings equal to the entire difference betweern¥estment’'s amortized cost and its fair valuthatmeasurement date. If the Company does
not intend to sell an impaired security and ita$ more-likely-thanaot that it would be required to sell an impairedwity before recovery, tl
Company must further evaluate the security for immpant due to credit losses. The credit compon€&@TOT| is recognized in earnings and
remaining or non-credit component is recorded esnaponent of OCI. Following the recognition of am T through earnings, a new
amortized cost basis is established for the sgcanitl subsequent recovery in fair value may nadyasted through current earnings.
Subsequent recoveries are amortized into incometbheeemaining life of the security as an adjusttrie yield.

When evaluating whether the Company intends toaseiinpaired security or will more-likely-than-nm required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company makes judgments threider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent anditgltd hold the investments that are deemed ingghiThe determination as to whether an
OTTI exists is subjective as such determinatioesbhaised on factual information available at theetohassessment as well as the Company’s
estimates of future conditions. As a result, thieaeination of OTTI and its timing and amount iséd on estimates that may change
materially over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its MBS is based on its review & tinderlying securities or mortgage
loans securing the MBS. The Company considersritsidnformation available and expected futurefpenance of the underlying securities
or mortgage loans, including timing of expectedifatcash flows, prepayment rates, default ratss,deverities, delinquency rates, percentag
of non-performing loans, extent of credit suppedikble, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FICO”) scoreda@n origination, year of origination, loan-
to-value ratios, geographic concentrations, as agetieports by credit rating agencies, general ed@assessments and dialogue with market
participants. As a result, substantial judgmenisisd in the Company’s analysis to determine thee®p cash flows for its MBS.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of Higredit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHGredit Quality involves comparing the presertigaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized codt@becurity at the assessment date. The discaentsad to calculate the present value of the
expected future cash flows is based on the setdffective interest rate as calculated under 83G-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in the
security as of the last measurement date). If thegmt value of the remaining cash flows expedadibtcollected is less than the amortized co
basis, an OTTI is recognized in earnings for tHfence. This amount is considered to be the thesls component; the remaining difference
between amortized cost and the fair value of tiearsty is considered to be the portion of loss ggired in other comprehensive income.




Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Nothiigh Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily ingzhwhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less thlhe amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwarse change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e.radvehanges in either the amount or timing of ¢&sts from those previously expected).

The OTTI is separated into a credit loss compoti®ttis recognized in earnings and the portioros$ recognized in other comprehensive
income. The credit component is comprised of thgsioh of the fair value decline due to changes suaptions related to default (collection)
risk and prepayments. The portion of loss recoghireother comprehensive income comprises the ahanfair value of the security due to
other factors, including changes in benchmark @sterates and market liquidity. In determining @ETI related to credit losses for securities,
the Company compares the present value of the nimgatash flows adjusted for prepayments expectdxd tcollected at the current financial
reporting date to the present value of the remginash flows expected to be collected at the alginrchase date (or the last date those
estimates were revised for accounting purpose® .didtount rate used to calculate the present dlagpected future cash flows is the
effective interest rate used for income recogniparposes as determined under ASC 325-40 or ASE3810

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is suligestgnificant judgment and management’s
estimates of both historical information availabtehe time of assessment, the current market@mwient, as well as the Company’s estimate:
of the future performance and projected amounttimnitig of cash flows expected to be collected andbcurity. As a result, the timing and
amount of OTTI constitutes an accounting estimiadé¢ may change materially over time.

Investments for which the Company has electedahiesélue option are not evaluated for OTTI achtinges in fair value are reflected in
earnings.

(e) Securitized Loans Held for Investment
Prime residential mortgage loan:

A portion of the securitized loan portfolio is conged primarily of norconforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbange loans that ar
not guaranteed as to repayment of principal oréste These securitized loans are serviced ando@ayodified, in the event of a default, by a
third-party servicer. The Company generally hasathiéity to approve certain loan modifications atetermine the course of action to be taker
as it relates to certain loans in default, inclgdivhether or not to proceed with foreclosure. Thasetgage loans are designated as held for
investment. Interest income on loans held for itmest is recognized over the expected life of danb using the interest method with change
in yield reflected in earnings on a prospectiveidass of January 1, 2015, the securitized loanfplio comprised primarily of non-
conforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbdpge loans is carried at fair value with changefainvalue recorded in earnings. Prior to
January 1, 2015, this loan portfolio was carriedrabrtized cost, net of the allowance for loandsss

The allowance for loan losses as of December 314 s $7 million. The allowance for loan lossessists of a general reserve and a spe
reserve. The general reserve is based on histéogslates for pools of loans with similar creztiracteristics, adjusted for current trends anc
market conditions, including current trends in deliencies and severities. The specific resentectsfconsideration of loans more than 60
days delinquent, loans in foreclosure and borroweashave declared bankruptcy. The specific loas provision related to these loans is
primarily the difference between the unpaid priatipalance and the estimated fair value of the gntgsecuring the mortgage, less estimated
costs to sell.

The Company estimates the fair value of securitinads as described in Note 5 of these consolidatadcial statements.
Seasoned st-prime residential mortgage loans:

A portion of the securitized loan portfolio is coriged of seasoned sudrime residential mortgage loans that are not guaed as to repayme
of principal or interest. These securitized loaresserviced and may be modified, in the event édule by a thirdparty servicer. The Compa
generally has the ability to approve certain loadifications and determine the course of actiobadaken as it relates to certain loans in
default, including whether or not to proceed withefclosure. These mortgage loans are designateelcifor investment. Interest income on
loans held for investment is recognized over thgeeted life of the loans using the interest methil changes in yield reflected in earnings
on a prospective basis. The securitized loan gattmmprised primarily of seasoned sub-prime restdl mortgage loans is carried at fair
value with changes in fair value recorded in eagsiAs these loans are carried at fair value, lnovahce for loan losses is required.




The Company estimates the fair value of securitieads as described in Note 5 of these consolidatadcial statements.
All residential mortgage loans

Interest is accrued on all securitized loans hetdrfivestment when due. Interest which is not nesiat the due date is written off when it
becomes delinquent. Nonrefundable fees and cdatedeo acquiring the Company’s securitized residé mortgage loans are recognized as
expenses over the life of the associated debt ubamterest method of amortization. Income red@d@mis suspended for loans when, base
information from the servicer, a full recovery oférest or principal becomes doubtful.

Real estate owned (“REQO”) represents propertieshwvtiie Company has received the legal title ofttoperty to satisfy the outstanding loan.
REO is re-categorized from loan to REO when the gamy takes legal title of the property. REO asastsmeasured and reported at the
estimated fair value less the estimated cost tas#te end of each reporting period. At the tilme asset is re-categorized, any difference
between the previously recorded loan balance amddhrying value of the REO at the time the Compakgs legal title of the property, is
recognized as a loss. The Company recognized afd&z million and $6 million for the quarter anid mmonths ended June 30, 2015 related tc
REO which is presented in Net unrealized gainsé@syon financial instruments at fair value on@oasolidated Statement of Operations and
Comprehensive Income. All REO assets of the Compaayeld-for-sale and it is the Company’s intemtim sell the property in the shortest
time possible to maximize their return and recowamthe previously recorded loan. Total REO assefsine 30, 2015 and December 31, 201-
is $11 million and $8 million, respectively, andécorded in other assets on the Company’s coradelidstatements of financial condition.

() Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifiqaortion of its mortgage-backed securities wipurchase agreements. The Company ha
evaluated each agreement and has determined tfabgtthe repurchase agreements be accounted $mcased borrowings.

(g) Securitized Debt, collateralized by Non-AgenciRMBS and Securitized Debt, collateralized by loankeld for investment

Certain re-securitization transactions classifis@acuritized Debt, collateralized by Nagency RMBS reflect the transfer to a trust of txa
adjustable rate MBS which are classified as NonfsgeRMBS that pay interest and principal to thetdeiiders of that re-securitization. Re-
securitization transactions completed by the Complaat did not qualify as sales are accounted §mezured borrowings. The associated
securitized debt is carried at amortized costphany unamortized premiums or discounts.

Certain transactions involving residential mortgéggns are accounted for as secured borrowingsasncecorded as Securitized loans helc
investment and the corresponding debt as Secutitlebt, collateralized by loans held for investrmienthe Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition. These securitizations areatetlalized by residential adjustable or fixed rata#tgage loans that have been placed in a
and pay interest and principal to the debt holdéthat securitization. As of January 1, 2015, siized debt, collateralized by loans held for
investment, is carried at fair value. Prior to Jagul, 2015, securitized debt, collateralized lnwheld for investment, was carried at
amortized cost.

The Company recognizes interest expense on seedritiebt over the expected life of the debt udiegriterest method with changes in yield

reflected in earnings on a prospective basis. Begsciated with the debt issuance of jumbo priraeleatial mortgage loans are also amortize:
using the interest method. Unamortized fees assatisith debt issuance are included in other assets
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The Company estimates the fair value of its sezedtdebt as described in Note 5 to these condetidiancial statements.
(h) Fair Value Option
Interest-Only MBS:

The Company has elected the fair value option toaat for IO MBS strips to simplify the reporting @hanges in fair value. The IO MBS
strips are included in MBS, at fair value, on tke@npanying Consolidated Statements of Financiadion.

Changes in fair value are presented in Net unedligains (losses) on financial instruments atfaline on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. Included im-Agency RMBS, at fair value on the Consolidateat&nents of Financial Condition
are IO MBS strips carried at fair value with chamgefair value reflected in earnings of $288 roitliand $214 million as of June 30, 2015 and
December 31, 2014. Included in Agency MBS, atVaiue on the Consolidated Statements of Finanaald@ion are 10 MBS strips carried at
fair value with changes in fair value reflectecearnings of $297 million and $186 million as of 180, 2015 and December 31, 2014. Interes
income reported on all IO securities was $12 millikmd $8 million for the quarters ended June 3052hd 2014, respectively. Interest income
reported on all 10 securities was $25 million ard® $nillion for the six month ended June 30, 2018 2014, respectively.

Non-Agency RMBS:

The Company has elected the fair value option éorain interests in MBS which we refer to as theroullateralization class of the MBS pass
through structure. The cash flows for these holgliag generally subordinate to all other interebthe trusts and generally only pay out funds
when certain ratios are met and excess cash hsldasgdetermined by the trustee, are availablditribution to the overcollateralization cle
Many of the investments in this group have no euroash flows and may not ever pay cash flows, aeipg on the loss experience of the
collateral group supporting the investment. Estingafuture cash flows for this group of MBS invesimts is highly judgmental and uncertain;
therefore, the Company has elected to carry thekknlgs at fair value with changes in fair valuieeted in earnings.

Changes in fair value are presented in Net unmedigains (losses) on financial instruments ataline on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. The fair vaflllee Non-Agency RMBS carried at fair value withanges in fair value reflected in
earnings is $22 million as of June 30, 2015. Theree no Non-Agency RMBS carried at fair value wattanges in fair value reflected in
earnings as of December 31, 2014.

Securitized Loans Held for Investmen

Upon the adoption of ASU 2014-18leasuring the Financial Assets and the Financialilities of a Consolidated Collateralized Finangin
Entity on January 1, 2015, the securitized loans heléthf@stment comprised primarily of non-conforminigte family, owner occupied,
jumbo, prime loans were carried at fair value. Efi@e, as of January 1, 2015, all securitized Idaid for investment are carried at fair va
with changes in fair value reflected in earningse Tompany carries securitized loans held for imuest at fair value as it may resecuritize
these loans in the future. Additionally, the faédwe option allows both the loans and related fianto be consistently reported at fair value
and to achieve operational and valuation simplifices.

Changes in fair value of securitized loans heldrigestment are presented in Net unrealized géiiss€s) on financial instruments at fair value
on the Consolidated Statement of Operations andp@eimensive Income.

As of December 31, 2014, $626 million of securidizeans held for investment comprised primarilynofh-conforming, single family, owner
occupied, jumbo, prime loans were carried at amedticost, net of an allowance for loan losses.
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Securitized Debt, Collateralized by Loans Held favestment:

As of January 1, 2015, the Company has electeththealue option for all of the Company’s securdtil debt, collateralized by loans held for
investment. The Company has elected fair valueoongtr these financings as it may call or restriethese debt financings in the future.
Additionally, the fair value option allows both tleans and related financing to be consistentlpmegl at fair value and to achieve operationa
and valuation simplifications.

As of December 31, 2014, $522 million of securitizkebt collateralized primarily by non-conformirsingle family, owner occupied, jumbo,
prime loans were carried at amortized cost. Uperatifoption of ASU 2014-13 on January 1, 2015, deerstized debt collateralized primarily
by non-conforming, single family, owner occupiadnpo, prime loans were carried at fair value.

Changes in fair value of securitized loans heldrdgestment are presented in Net unrealized géissds) on financial instruments at fair value
on the Consolidated Statement of Operations andpCeimensive Income.

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company'’s investment policies permit it to eitéo derivative contracts, including interestratvaps, swaptions, mortgage options,
futures, and interest rate caps to manage itsasiteate risk and, from time to time, enhance itmest returns. The Company’s derivatives are
recorded as either assets or liabilities in thedobdated Statements of Financial Condition andsues] at fair value. These derivative
financial instrument contracts are not designateleaiges for GAAP; therefore, all changes in falug are recognized in earnings. The
Company estimates the fair value of its derivaingtruments as described in Note 5 of these catesteld financial statements. Net paymenti
derivative instruments are included in the Constéid Statements of Cash Flows as a component afewhe. Unrealized gains (losses) on
derivatives are removed from net income to arriveaah flows from operating activities.

The Company elects to net the fair value of it$vdgive contracts by counterparty when appropriiteese contracts contain legally
enforceable provisions that allow for netting atting off of all individual derivative receivablesmd payables with each counterparty and
therefore, the fair value of those derivative cacis are reported net by counterparty. The cregpart annex provisions of the Company’s
derivative contracts allow the parties to mitigditeir credit risk by requiring the party which isa net payable position to post collateral. As
the Company elects to net by counterparty theviire of derivative contracts, it also nets by deyparty any cash collateral exchanged as
of the derivative.

(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note £
these consolidated financial statements.

(k) Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactiong/ich it sells financial assets, such as MBS, modtgage loans. Gains and losses on sale
of assets are calculated using the average cobbrhethereby the Company records a gain or lost@udifference between the average
amortized cost of the asset and the proceeds freradle. In addition, the Company from time to teeeuritizes or re-securitizes assets and
sells tranches in the newly securitized assetssd h@nsactions may be recorded as either salethardsets contributed to the securitization
are removed from the Consolidated Statements @frigial Condition and a gain or loss is recognipeds secured borrowings whereby the
assets contributed to the securitization are natgynized but rather the debt issued by the gemation entity are recorded to reflect the term
financing of the assets. In these securitizationtbra-securitizations, the Company may retain sesigubordinated interests in the securitizec
or re-securitized assets. In transfers that arsidered secured borrowings, no gain or loss isgeized. Any difference in the proceeds
received and the carrying value of the transfeasskt is recorded as a premium or discount andtaeainto earnings as an adjustment to
yield.

() Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REITnhéeids to comply with the provision of the Codehwespect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state caloncome tax to the extent that qualifying dtstitions are made to stockholders and as long
as certain asset, income, distribution and stoakership tests are met. If the Company failed tdifyuas a REIT and did not qualify for cert:
statutory relief provisions, the Company would bbjsct to federal, state and local income taxesmaay be precluded from qualifying as a
REIT for the subsequent four taxable years follgntime year in which the REIT qualification was IoBhe Company, CIM Trading and CIM
Funding TRS made joint elections to treat CIM Trgdand CIM Funding TRS as TRS’s. As such, CIM Tmgdand CIM Funding TRS are
taxable as domestic C corporations and subje@derél, state, and local income taxes based ugimnréspective taxable income.
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A tax position is recognized only when, based omagament’s judgment regarding the application ofime tax laws, it is more likely than
not that the tax position will be sustained upoamination. The Company does not have any unrecedrax positions that would affect its
financial statements or require disclosure. Nowalsrfor penalties and interest were necessary ame 30, 2015 or 2014.

(m) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shyadé/liling net income for the period by the baskighted-average shares of its common
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted net imeoper share takes into account the effect ofidduhstruments such as unvested restricted
stock. All per share amounts, common shares ouistgrand restricted shares for the second quaf2®1b and all prior periods reflect the
Company's 1-for-5 reverse stock split, which wdsative April 6, 2015.

(n) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&8iates at the fair value of the
stock-based compensation provided. The Companyuresthe fair value of the equity instrument usimg stock prices and other
measurement assumptions as of the earlier of dhketate at which a performance commitment byehipient is reached or the date at whick
the recipient’s performance is complete. Stock camsgtion expense related to the grants of sto@ciggnized over the vesting period of such
grants based on the fair value of the stock on gasting date at which the recipient’s performaisceomplete.

Compensation expense for equity based awards grémtee Company'’s independent directors is recmghprorata over the vesting period
such awards, based upon the fair value of suchdsnarthe grant date.

(o) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andafisice of contingent assets and liabilities atdhte of the financial statements and the repc
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqreiriod. Although the Company’s estimates contatagurrent conditions and how it
expects them to change in the future, it is redasignaossible that actual conditions could be matridifferent than anticipated in those
estimates, which could have a material adversedtathe Companyg results of operations and its financial conditidlanagement has ma
significant estimates in accounting for income ggdtion and OTTI on Agency and Non-Agency RMBS #dVIBS (Note 3), valuation of
Agency MBS and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 3 and 5)idesstial mortgage loans (Note 4), securitized dblate7) and derivative instruments
(Notes 5 and 9). Actual results could differ matlyifrom those estimates.

(p) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 83®)

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-@mnplifying the Presentation of Debt Issue Codtsis update changes the presentation of
debt issuance costs in financial statements. UtlhgeASU, an entity presents such costs in the balaheet as a direct deduction from the
related debt liability rather than as an asset. Aization of the costs is reported as interest axpeThe guidance in the ASU is effective fol
Company as of January 1, 2016. Early adoptiondsvaed. The guidance would be applied retrospectit@hll prior periods. As the
unamortized debt issuance costs is not signifithatguidance in this ASU is not expected to hasmgaificant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidations (Subtopic 810)

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015A08endments to the Consolidation AnalysSidis update affects the following areas of
the consolidation analysis: limited partnershipd aimilar entities, evaluation of fees paid to aisien maker or service provider as a variable
interest and in determination of the primary besiefy, effect of related parties on the primary dfesiary determination and for certain
investment funds. The guidance in the ASU is eiffedior the Company as of January 1, 2016. Earbp#idn is allowed. Fees paid to the
Company are not significant therefore; the guidandhis ASU is not expected to have a signifidampact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Presentation of Financial Statemen{Soing Concern (Subtopic 288)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014Dclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Atyilio Continue as a Going Concern
This update provides guidance on determining wimehheow to disclose going-concern uncertaintiehi@nfinancial statements. The new
standard requires the Company to perform interichamual assessments of its ability to continug gsing concern within one year of the
date the financial statements are issued. The Caynpast provide certain disclosures if conditiongweents raise substantial doubt about its
ability to continue as a going concern. The ASUIiggo all entities and is effective for the Compdoeginning January 1, 2017. Early
adoption is permitted. The Company does not exiéxtupdate to have any impact as we do not expdwave the conditions or events which
would raise substantial doubt about the Compantyilityato continue as a going concern.

Consolidations (Subtopic 810)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014M8asuring the Financial Assets and the Financiallilities of a Consolidated
Collateralized Financing Entity This update provides a measurement alternativediosolidated qualifying collateralized financiegtities
(CFEs). The update defines a CFE as a variableesttentity that holds financial assets, issuegti@al interests in those assets and has no
more than nominal equity. The beneficial interdstge contractual recourse only to the related sisgehe CFE and are classified as financial
liabilities. Under the alternative, the Company nedgct to measure both the CFE’s financial assedsiaancial liabilities using the fair value
of either the CFE’s financial assets or finandwbilities, whichever is more observable. The goitais aimed at eliminating the measuremen
difference that sometimes arises when a CFE's fimhassets and financial liabilities are indeperityemeasured at fair value, as required by
ASC 820. The Company adopted the guidance in thargdard beginning January 1, 2015.

Upon adoption of this guidance, the Company eletitedair value option for certain consolidated ¥liolding securitized loans held for
investment and the related securitized debt whidlified as CFEs. As the fair value of the seczeiti debt of these CFEs is more observable,
the fair value of the securitized loans will be dzhsn the fair value of the securitized debt. Tthepsion of this update resulted in a net
reduction in equity of $12 million as of Januan2015. A complete discussion of the methodologlzeti by the Company to estimate the fair
value of its financial instruments impacted by tisndard is included in Note 5 to these consdauifinancial statements.

Transfers and Servicing (Subtopic 860)

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014Rdpurchase-to-Maturity Transactions, Repurchaseaf@ngs, and DisclosuresThis updatt
makes limited amendments to the guidance in ASCa868ccounting for certain repurchase agreemehts ABU requires entities to account
for repurchase-to-maturity transactions as sechoetbwings, rather than as sales with forward relpase agreements. The ASU defines a
repurchase-tonaturity transaction as a repo that (1) settlahematurity of the transferred financial asset @)dloes not require the transfe

to reacquire the transferred financial asset. titewh, the ASU eliminates accounting guidanceiokdd repurchase financing transactions.
ASU also expands disclosure requirements relateértain transfers of financial assets that areatied for as sales and certain transfers
accounted for as secured borrowings. The guidantiés update was effective for the Company begigdianuary 1, 2015, except for the
disclosure requirements for transactions accoufiateals secured borrowings, which are required tpriesented by the Company in the seconc
quarter of 2015. The adoption of this standardmithave any impact on the consolidated finan¢&kements of the Company.
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Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subt&di6-40)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014R®tlassification of Residential Real Estate Cotldteed Consumer Mortgage Loans
Upon Foreclosure This update clarifies when the Company is considléo have obtained physical possession, fronm-auibstance
possession or foreclosure, of a residential reateproperty collateralizing a mortgage loan. €ntiguidance indicates that the Company
should reclassify a collateralized mortgage loazhdhat the loan should be derecognized and thater! asset recognized when it determine
that there has been an in-substance repossesdioreciosure by the Company. This update definege¢hmin substance repossession or
foreclosureto reduce diversity in interpretation of when saghevent occurs. The guidance in this update wastefe for the Company
beginning January 1, 2015 and did not have a $igmif impact on the consolidated financial stateimenthe Company.

3. Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as ses&nior 10, subordinated, or subordinated 10. Tohepany also invests in residential
and commercial Agency MBS. Senior interests in Magency RMBS are considered to be entitled to the firincipal repayments in their pro-
rata ownership interests at the acquisition date. total fair value of the Non-Agency RMBS that bedd by consolidated re-securitization
trusts was $2.3 billion and $2.5 billion at June 3015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. See 8lof these consolidated financial
statements for further discussion of consolidatégsy

The following tables present the principal or notibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains,
gross unrealized losses, and net unrealized gazss)(felated to the Company’s available-for-saleBS\portfolio as of June 30, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, by asset class.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands
Net
Gross Gross Unrealizec
Principal ot Unrealizec Unrealizec
Notional Total Total Amortized Fair Gain/
Value Premiur  Discount Cost Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 3,75355 $ 404 $(1,610,42) $ 2,143,53: $ 2,958,04! $ 814,96t $ (45%) $ 814,51
Senior, intere-only 6,368,81.  289,94¢ - 289,94¢ 272,61 25,73" (43,069 (17,339
Subordinatet 998,10¢ 24,72 (443,36() 579,47( 691,43t 116,85: (4,885 111,96¢
Subordinated, interest-
only 300,32 17,17¢ - 17,17¢ 15,01« 1,47¢ (3,640 (2,162)
Agency MBS
Residentia 5,086,01! 268,54 (100  5,354,54! 5,334,55! 34,411 (54,409 (29,99)
Commercial 660,43t 16,83t (3,895 673,37t 667,45: 3,73¢ (9,667) (5,929
Interes-only 6,761,111 299,98 - 299,98 296,86. 3,85¢€ (6,975 (3,119
Total $23,928,37 $917,60° $(2,057,69) $ 9,358,03 $10,235,98 $1,001,04 $ (123,08) $ 877,95:
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands
Net
Gross Gross Unrealizec
Principal ot Unrealizec Unrealizec
Notional Total Total Amortized Fair Gain/
Value Premiur  Discount Cost Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 3,435,336 $ - $(1,542,90) $ 1,892,45! $ 2,735,781 $ 843,68( $ (355 $ 843,32
Senior, intere-only 5,221,93  227,30! - 227,30" 207,21¢ 17,37¢ (37,467 (20,089
Subordinatet 690,59¢ - (344,03) 346,56t 454,34t 108,09: (309) 107,78:
Subordinated, interest-
only 216,40: 9,571 - 9,571 6,80¢ 194 (2,96€) (2,772)
Agency MBS
Residentia 7,774,261  387,17: (1,629 8,159,811 8,255,41! 108,80: (13,199 95,60:
Interes-only 3,884,52: 189,79 - 189,79 186,10: 1,32¢ (5,020 (3,699
Total $21,223,09 $813,85¢ $(1,888,56) $10,825,51 $11,845,67 $1,079,47 $ (59,31¢ $1,020,15!

The table below presents changes in AccretabledY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etgquieto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahiga-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.
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For the Quarter Ende

For the Six Months Ende:

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014

(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand:
Balance at beginning of peric $1,536,86: $1,726,47! $1,534,49 $1,794,57
Purchase 23,87: 15,27¢ 108,62! 39,56¢
Accretion (71,009 (73,169 (140,710) (150,449
Reclassification (to) from non-
accretable differenc 211,62! 53,35¢ 218,80 39,37¢
Sales and deconsolidati (3,03)) (91,789 (22,896 (92,915
Balance at end of peric $1,698,32. $1,630,15. $1,698,32. $1,630,15.

The table below presents the outstanding prindipince and related amortized cost at June 30, &0d ®ecember 31, 2014 as it pertains to

the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolio accounteddccording to the provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarte
Ende

June 30, 201

For the Yee
Endec
December 3:
201¢

(dollars in thousand:

Outstanding principal balanc

Beginning of
period $ 3,522,43
End of perioc $ 3,734,73
Amortized cost
Beginning of
period $ 1,883,15
End of perioc $ 2,024,81

$ 3,949,66.
$ 3,325,33
$ 2,027,73:
$ 1,741,78

The following tables present the gross unrealinsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s RMBlength of time that such securities

have been in a continuous unrealized loss positidhine 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. All seesiiit an unrealized loss position have

been evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discuissBote 2(d).

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Unrealized Loss Position for Less

Unrealized Loss Position for 12

than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimate:
Unrealizec Number Unrealizetc  Number Unrealizet  Number
Estimatec of Fair of Estimated of
Fair Value Losses  Securitie Value Losses  Securitie Fair Value Losses  Securitie
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 43,15 $ (459 5 $ - $ = - $ 4315 $ (453 5
Senior, intere-only 63,00¢ (9,699 51 82,19( (33,370 53 145,19! (43,069 104
Subordinatet 14,15t (4,885 16 - - - 14,15t (4,885 16
Subordinated, intere:
only 11,17 (3,472) 2 1,26¢ (16¢) 3 12,43" (3,640 5
Agency MBS
Residentia 2,904,46 (33,660) 80 666,96¢ (20,749 11 3,571,43! (54,40¢) 91
Commercia 402,84t (9,669 53 - - - 402,84t (9,669 53
Interes-only 77,96¢ (3,189 17 29,21 (3,799 7 107,18 (6,97%) 24
Total $3,516,76! $ (65,01¢ 224 $779,63t $ (58,077 74 $4,296,40! $ (123,089 29¢
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position for Les Unrealized Loss Position for 12
than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimate:
Number Number Number
Estimatec Unrealize« of Fair Unrealizet of Estimatec Unrealizes of
Fair Value Securitie Value Securitie.  Fair Value Securitie



Losses Losses Losses
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 29,78 $ (35%) 3 3 - % = - $ 29,78¢ % (35%) 3
Senior, intere-only 23,47¢ (3,06¢€) 24 96,75¢ (34,409 53 120,23: (37,46°) 77
Subordinate( 19,38( @) 2 11,60¢ (302 4 30,98t (309 6
Subordinated, intere:
only 4,37¢ (2,709 2 1,07¢ (257) 2 5,447 (2,96¢) 4
Agency MBS
Residentia 219,80t (19¢) 7 701,44: (13,009 11 921,25( (13,199 18
Interes-only 112,01 (3,616 12 10,467 (1,409 3 122,48: (5,020 15
Total $ 408,84 $ (9,95)) 50 $821,34: $ (49,36Y 73 $1,230,18! $ (59,310 1232

At June 30, 2015, the Company did not intend tbagef of its RMBS that were in an unrealized lossifon, and it was not more likely than

not that the Company would be required to selléHeBIBS before recovery of their amortized costfashich may be at their maturity. With
respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, theitghif any entity to cause the sale by the VIE ptthe maturity of these RMBS is either
expressly prohibited, not probable, or is limitedspecified events of default, none of which haseuored as of June 30, 2015.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agencs-thasugh MBS were $64 million and $13 million dsJone 30, 2015 and December 31,
2014, respectively. Given the inherent credit duaf Agency MBS, the Company does not considerafthe current impairments on its
Agency pass-through MBS to be credit related. al@ating whether it is more likely than not thatvitl be required to sell any impaired
security before its anticipated recovery, which rhayat their maturity, the Company considers tgaitance of each investment, the amount
of impairment, the projected future performancswdh impaired securities, as well as the Company'ent and anticipated leverage capacity
and liquidity position. Based on these analysesQbmpany determined that at June 30, 2015 andniire31, 2014, unrealized losses on its

Agency MBS were temporary.

16




Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (excluding Non-Agency RMBS IO strips whicleaccounted for under the fair
value option with changes in fair value recordedannings) were $5 million and $1 million at Jui®e 3015 and December 31, 2014,
respectively. Based upon the most recent evaluatienCompany does not consider these unrealizsg$ato be indicative of OTTI and does
not believe that these unrealized losses are aeldied, but rather are due to other factors. Gtvmpany has reviewed its Non-Agency RMBS
that are in an unrealized loss position to iderttifyse securities with losses that are other-tharpbrary based on an assessment of changes
cash flows expected to be collected for such RMBS¢h considers recent bond performance and expdatere performance of the
underlying collateral.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearters ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 is preseai@d.

For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss:  $ (2,209) $ (3,819
Portion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (los (24,899 (1,539
Net othe-than-temporary credit impairment
losses $ (27,109 $ (5,347
For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss:  $ (3,260 $ (4,219
Portion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (los (31,656 (2,669
Net othe-than-temporary credit impairment
losses $ (34,916 $ (6,88))

The following table presents a roll forward of #redit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Maency RMBS for which a portion of
loss was previously recognized in OCI. The tablendates between those securities that are recogn@TT]I for the first time as opposed to
those that have previously recognized OTTI.
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For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 513,88t $ 521,48:
Additions:
Othek-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 18,45¢ 5,341
Reductions for securities sold or deconsolidatathdithe perioc (41%) (11,219
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsn@n securities witpreviously
recognized oth«-thar-temporary impairment 8,64¢ -
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectduttoollected that are recognizt
over the remaining life of the secur (12,024 (3,039
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 528,541 $ 512,58:

For the Six Months Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 507,54¢ $ 524,43.
Additions:
Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 26,27( 6,881
Reductions for securities sold or deconsolidatathduthe perioc (1,739 (12,889
Increases related to other-themporary impairments on securities with previol
recognized oth«-thar-temporary impairment 8,64¢ -
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectdxttoollected over the remainin
life of the securitie: (12,187) (5,846
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending bala $ 528,54t $ 512,58:

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaapdeary credit impairment losses recognized iniegmare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs usetiéasure the component of OTTI recognized in egenfar the Company’s Non-Agency

RMBS are summarized as follows:

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Loss Severity

Weighted 66% 73%
Average
Range 17%- 96% 43%- 80%

60+ days delinquet

Weighted 23% 32%
Average

Range 2%- 41% 17%- 47%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted 8% 3%
Average

Range 0%- 27% 0%- 14%
3 Month CPR

Weighted 9% 8%
Average

Range 3%- 27% 2%-11%

12 Month CPF

Weighted 9% 11%
Average
Range 3%- 20% 6%- 19%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancenehtt
Re-REMIC and underlying from each of their respexti
capital structures

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at June 30, 2015 and Decemp20B4. IO MBS included in the tables
below represent the right to receive a specifietiq of the contractual interest cash flows of timelerlying principal balance of specific
securities. At June 30, 2015, IO MBS had a netalized loss of $23 million and had an amortized cd6$607 million. At December 31, 20:
IO MBS had a net unrealized loss of $27 million &ad an amortized cost of $427 million. The failuesof I0s at June 30, 2015 and
December 31, 2014 was $584 million, and $400 mmili@spectively. All changes in fair value of I0e aeflected in Net Income in ti



Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsalemcome.
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June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Gross Unrealized Gross
Gain Included Unrealized Loss Included Unrealized
in Gain in Loss
Accumulated Included in Accumulated Included in
Other Accumulate: Total Gros: Other Accumulater Total Gros:
Comprehensiv Unrealized Comprehensiv Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 814,96t $ - $ 81496t $ (459) $ - $ (45%)
Senior, intere-only - 25,735 25,73: - (43,069 (43,069
Subordinatet 116,09¢ 753 116,85: 3 (4,882) (4,885
Subordinated, intere-only - 1,47¢ 1,47¢ - (3,640 (3,640
Agency MBS
Residentia 34,41: - 34,41: (54,40¢) - (54,40¢)
Commercia 3,73¢ - 3,73¢ (9,667) - (9,669
Interes-only - 3,85¢ 3,85¢ - (6,975 (6,97%)
Total $ 969,21¢ $ 31,82¢ $ 1,001,041 $ (64,527 $ (58,566 $ (123,089
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross
Unrealized Gross Unrealized Gross
Gain Includec  Unrealized Loss Includec  Unrealized
in Gain in Loss
Accumulated Included in Accumulated Included in
Other Accumulater Total Gros: Other Accumulater Total Gros:
Comprehensiv Unrealized Comprehensiv Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 843,68( $ - $ 843,68( $ (355 $ - $ (355)
Senior, intere-only - 17,37¢ 17,37¢ - (37,467 (37,467
Subordinatel 108,09: - 108,09: (309) - (309)
Subordinated, intere-only - 194 194 - (2,96¢) (2,96¢)
Agency MBS
Residentia 108,80: - 108,80: (13,199 - (13,199
Interes-only - 1,32¢ 1,32¢ - (5,020 (5,020
Total $ 1,060,57: $ 18,89¢ $ 1,079,47 $ (13,869 $ (45,459 $ (59,316

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andfleass expected to be collected, among other iteares affected by the collateral
characteristics of each asset class. The Compamysek assets for the portfolio after carefully eaihg each investment's risk profile.

The following tables provide a summary of the Comps RMBS portfolio at June 30, 2015 and Decemtier2p14.
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All Portfolio Assets

June 30, 201
Principal or
Notional Value
Weighted Weighted
at Period-End Average Weighted Weighted Average Yield
(dollars in Amortized Average Fair Average at Period-End
thousands Cost Basis Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 3,753,55 $ 57.11 $ 78.81 3.8% 17.1%
Senior, intere-only $ 16,3688l $ 4.5¢ $ 4.2t 1.5% 11.6%
Subordinatet $ 998,10¢ $ 58.0¢ $ 69.2¢ 3.2% 7.5%
Subordinated, intere-only $ 300,32 $ 5.7Z $ 5.0 1.2% 10.6%
Agency MBS
Residential pa-through $ 5,086,01! $ 105.2¢ $ 104.8¢ 3.5% 3.2%
Commercial pasthrough $ 660,43¢ $ 101.9¢ $ 101.0¢ 3.4% 3.1%
Interes-only $ 6,761,111 $ 4.44 $ 4.3¢ 0.% 3.7%
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
December 31, 201
Principal or
Notional Value
Weighted Weighted Weighted
at Period-Enc Average Average Weighted Average Yield
(dollars in Amortized Fair Average at Period-End
thousands Cost Basis Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 343536 $ 55.0¢ $ 79.6: 4.2% 15.9%
Senior, intere-only $ 522193 $ 4.3t $  3.97 1.€6% 14.4%
Subordinatet $ 690,59¢ $ 50.1¢ $ 65.7¢ 3.1% 10.6%
Subordinated, intere-only $ 216,40 $ 4.4: $ 3.4 0.€% 9.2%
Agency MBS
Pas-through $ 7,774,261 $ 104.9¢ $ 106.1¢ 4.C% 3.2%
Interes-only $ 388452 $ 4.8¢ $ 4.7¢ 0.% 3.1%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availablehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2014
AAA 0.6% 0.S%
AA 0.4% 0.4%
A 0.8% 0.C%
BBB 0.2% 0.4%
BB 2.5% 1.€%
B 3.8% 5.€%
Below B or not rate! 91.6% 90.8%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

Actual maturities of MBS are generally shorter tiiam stated contractual maturities. Actual matesitf the Company’s MBS are affected by
the contractual lives of the underlying mortgagesijodic payments of principal and prepaymentsriofgipal. The following tables provide a
summary of the fair value and amortized cost ofGbenpany’s MBS at June 30, 2015 and December 34 a6cording to their estimated
weighted-average life classifications. The weigkagdrage lives of the MBS in the tables below a®ell on lifetime expected prepayment
rates using an industry prepayment model for thentyg MBS portfolio and the Company’s prepaymentiagsions for the Non-Agency
RMBS. The prepayment model considers current yfeldyard yield, steepness of the interest rate &ucurrent mortgage rates, mortgage r
of the outstanding loan, loan age, margin, andtilitya

20




June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than one Greater than fiv:

year years
Less than and less than and less than Greater than
one yeal five years ten year: ten years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 17,10¢ $ 634,62 $ 2,221,100 $ 8521 $ 2,958,04!
Senior intere-only 4,44 62,77¢ 204,27t 1,11¢ 272,61
Subordinate 6,58¢ 191,02! 388,76! 105,06: 691,43t
Subordinated intere-only - 19¢ 12,23¢ 2,571 15,01«
Agency MBS
Residentia - 1,232,56: 4,098,06 3,92¢ 5,334,55!
Commercia - - 53,40¢ 614,04¢ 667,45¢
Interes-only - 263,62 33,23¢ - 296,86.
Total fair value $ 28,13t % 2,384,8L $ 7,011,09 $ 811,94 $ 10,235,98
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 13957 $ 490,80: $ 1,578,58. $ 60,18¢ $ 2,143,53
Senior intere-only 5,79¢ 73,66¢ 209,61: 86¢ 289,94¢
Subordinatet 5,77¢ 141,99¢ 324,97! 106,71 579,47(
Subordinated intere-only - 23€ 15,84: 1,09¢ 17,17¢
Agency MBS
Residentia - 1,222,80: 4,127,74 4,001 5,354,54!
Commercia - - 53,74t 619,63: 673,37t
Interes-only - 262,49: 37,48t - 299,98:
Total amortized cos $ 2553¢ $ 2,192,000 $ 6,347,99. $ 792,50t $ 9,358,03!
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than on  Greater than fiv
year years
Less than and less than and less than Greater than
one yeal five years ten year: ten years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,65¢ $ 306,30¢ $ 1,678,221 $ 749,58¢ $ 2,735,78
Senior intere-only 51t 60,40 110,80( 35,49¢ 207,21¢
Subordinater - 80,41 245,43t 128,49¢ 454,34t
Subordinated intere-only - - 5,44 1,35¢ 6,80¢
Agency MBS
Residentia - 4,237,65 3,781,89i 235,87 8,255,41!
Interes-only - 82,99¢ 103,10¢ - 186,10:
Total fair value $ 2,171 $ 4,767,770 $ 592491 $ 1,150,81. $ 11,845,67
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,208 $ 255,00¢ $ 1,129,93. $ 506,30¢ $ 1,892,45!
Senior intere-only 1,29¢ 65,29: 124,99¢ 35,72« 227,30!
Subordinater - 58,44¢ 188,50: 99,61¢ 346,56t
Subordinated intere-only - - 8,41: 1,16¢ 9,571
Agency MBS
Residentia - 4,173,98 3,750,83. 234,99¢ 8,159,81!
Interes-only - 83,65¢ 106,13t - 189,79
Total amortized cos $ 2,49¢ $ 4,636,39. $ 5,308,81. $ 877,81. $ 10,825,51

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to credlik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit risktgh its asset selection process. The
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralizdzy what the Company classifies as Alt-A first limortgages. An Alt-A mortgage is a
type of U.S. mortgage that, for various reasonepissidered riskier than-paper, or prime, and less risky than subprimeritthéest category



Alt-A interest rates, which are determined by dreidk, therefore tend to be between those of pame subprime home loans. Typically, Alt-A
mortgages are characterized by borrowers withtress full documentation, lower credit scores arghbi loan-to-value ratios. The Company
defines Alt-A mortgage securities as Nagency RMBS where (i) the underlying collateral hasighted average FICO scores between 68|
720 or (ii) for instances where FICO scores aratgrethan 720, RMBS have 30% or less of the unitgylgollateral composed of full
documentation loans. At June 30, 2015 and Dece8the2014, 64% and 65% of the Non-Agency RMBS cetkdtwas classified as Alt-A,
respectively. At June 30, 2015 and December 314 222% and 24% of the Nofsgency RMBS collateral was classified as primepeesively
The remaining Non-Agency RMBS collateral is classifas sub-prime.

The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fellog collateral characteristics at June 30, 201bBacember 31, 2014.
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June 30, 201 December 31, 201

Weighted average maturity (yea 23.2 22.t

Weighted average amortized loan to val

Q) 67.%% 67.5%

Weighted average FICO ( 664 67¢

Weighted average loan balance (in

thousands $ 291 $ 332

Weighted average percentage owner

occupied 83.2% 83.(%

Weighted average percentage single far

residence 67.2% 65.5%

Weighted average current credit

enhancemer 2.2% 1.7%

Weighted average geographic concentr:

of top four state CA 31.1% CA 31.7%
FL 7.€% FL 8.4%
NY 7.4% NY 7.8%
NJ 2.2% NJ 2.9%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the colas the time of loan

origination.

(2) FICO as determined at the time of lo

origination.

The table below presents the origination year efitthderlying loans related to the Company’s padfof NonAgency RMBS at June 30, 20
and December 31, 2014.

December 3:

Origination Yeal  June 30, 201 2014
1999 0.1% 0.2%
2000 0.5% 0.€%
2001 1.7% 2.1%
2002 0.4% 0.4%
2003 2.C% 2.5%
2004 3.4% 3.%
2005 20.2% 20.4%
2006 30.5% 28.5%
2007 33.% 37.6%
2008 1.€% 2.1%
2013 0.€% 0.%
2014 0.2% 0.8%
2015 4.% 0.C%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

Gross realized gains and losses are recorded inrddéized gains (losses) on sales of investmartdhe Company’s Consolidated Statement:
of Operations and Comprehensive Income. The pracaed gross realized gains and gross realizedddissa sales of investments for the
quarters ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as $ollow

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, June 30,

2015 2014
(dollars in thousand:
Proceeds from salt $ 995,71¢ $ 33,21:
Gross realized gair 11,09¢ 29
Gross realized losst (1,419 (4,36¢)
Net realized gail $ 9,68t 3% (4,339
For the Six Months
Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014
Proceeds from sale $3,237,33! $ 133,46¢
Gross realized gair 41,39¢ 8,49¢

Gross realized lossi (2,145 (4,460




Net realized gain (los: $ 3925($ 4,03t
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Included in the gross realized gains for the quanel six months ended June 30, 2015 are exchafgesurities with a fair value of $8 milli
and $15 million, respectively, where the Companghexged its investment in a re-remic security lieranderlying collateral supporting the
group related to the exchanged asset. These exebarage treated as non-cash sales and purchasessalttdd in a realized gain of $1 million
and $4 million for the quarter and six months emae]30, 2015 reflected in earnings. There werexchanges for the quarter or six months
ended June 30, 2014.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Securitized loans held for investment is cosgatiof two portfolios. The first portfolio is coniged of loans collateralized by non-
conforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbdnge residential mortgages. The second portfolicoimprised primarily of loans
collateralized by seasoned sub-prime residentiatgages.

At June 30, 2015, all securitized loans held feestment are carried at fair value. See Note JutdCmnsolidated Financial Statements for a
discussion on how the Company determines the &ireg of the securitized loans held for investm&atchanges in the fair value of these
securitized loans are reflected in earnings, the@my does not estimate or record a loan loss imui At December 31, 2014, $626 million
of securitized loans held for investment compriggdharily of noneonforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbdnge loans were carrit
at amortized cost, net of an allowance for loasdss

The following table provides a summary of the ctemig the carrying value of securitized loans Hietdnvestment at fair value at June 30,
2015 and December 31, 2014:

For the Six For the Year
Months Endec Ended
December 31,
June 30, 201 2014

(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of

period® $ 5,306,50. $ =
Purchase 281,81: 4,722,82.
Principal paydown (367,006 (173,59)
Net periodic amortizatio

(accretion) 5,33¢ 5,02¢
Change in fair valu (18,089 144,96(
Balance, end of peric $ 5,208,55! $ 4,699,21!

(1) Includes Securitized loans held for investnar#607 million for
which the fair value option election was made beijig January 1,
2015.

The primary cause of the change in fair value s tduchanges in credit risk of the portfolio.

Jumbo prime residential mortgage loe

The securitized loan portfolio collateralized bynjoo prime residential mortgages was originatedngpttie following years:

December 3:
Origination Yeal  June 30, 201 2014
2004 0.1% 0.%
2007 8.8% 8.1%
2008 7.7% 7.C%
2009 0.2% 0.2%
2010 5.€% 6.2%
2011 34.(% 35.4%
2012 43.6% 42.1%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

A summary of key characteristics of the loan pdidfoollateralized primarily of non-conforming, gjle family, owner occupied, jumbo, prime
mortgages follows:
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June 30, 201 December 31, 201

Number of loan: 74¢ 86¢

Weighted average maturity (yea 25.¢ 26.4

Weighted average loan to value 70.8% 71.€%

Weighted average FICO ( 76€ 76€

Weighted average loan balance (in

thousands $ 692 $ 71€

Weighted average percentage owner

occupied 94.6% 95.(%

Weighted average percentage single fan

residence 70.(% 71.(%

Weighted average geographic concentre

of top five state: CA 32.4% CA 34.8%
NJ 6.2% NJ 5.6%
VA 6.1% VA 5.5%
MD 5.6% MD 5.1%
TX 5.2% NY 5.1%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the colasg the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The following table summarizes the outstanding @pal balance of the jumbo prime loans which arel@@s delinquent and greater as repc
by the servicer at June 30, 2015 and December(@4.2

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
June 30, 201 $ 97: $ 53¢ $ 3,50¢ $ - $ 5,07¢ $ - $ 10,09:
December 31,201  $ 2,621 $ 565 $ 98¢ $ - $ 7,152 $ - $ 11,32¢

The fair value of the jumbo prime residential magg loans 90 days or more past due is $4 millicof dane 30, 2015.

Seasoned sub-prime residential mortgage loans

The securitized loan portfolio collateralized basened sub-prime residential mortgages originateihgl the following years:

December 3:

Origination Yeal  June 30, 201 201¢
2002 and prio 5.€% 6.C%
2003 4.4% 4.4%
2004 12.(% 12.2%
2005 20.% 20.€%
2006 18.2% 18.2%
2007 26.€% 26.2%
2008 10.(% 9.%%
2009 1.2% 1.2%
2010 and late 1.C% 1.1%
Total 100.(% 100.%

A summary of key characteristics of the loan pdidfoollateralized by seasoned sub-prime resident@tgages follows:
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June 30, 201 December 31, 201

Number of loan: 55,35¢ 58,17(

Weighted average maturity (yea 22 22

Weighted average loan to value 80.4% 80.2%

Weighted average FICO ( 62¢ 62¢

Weighted average loan balance (in

thousands $ 79 $ 79

Weighted average percentage owner

occupied 95.8% 95.8%

Weighted average percentage single fa

residence 73.6% 73.€%

Weighted average geographic

concentration of top five stat CA 9.2% CA 9.2%
FL 7.2% FL 7.C%
NC 7.C% NC 7.C%
VA 6.5% VA 6.4%
OH 6.1% OH 6.C%

(1) As provided by the Truste

The following table summarizes the outstandinggpal balance of the loan portfolio consisting easoned sub-prime residential mortgage
loans which are 30 days delinquent and greatezfasrted by the servicer at June 30, 2015 and Desegih 2014.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
June 30, 201 $ 19298 $ 61,41 $ 138,07. $ 140,34: $ 179,40. $ 24,39¢ $ 736,61:

December 31,201  $ 226,15 $ 92,36 $ 192,24 $ 154,27¢  $ 80,14¢ $ 16,55¢ $ 761,74

The fair value of seasoned sub-prime residentiatgage loans 90 days or more past due is $3350mids of June 30, 2015.
Securitized loans held for investment, net of adloge for loan losses

As of December 31, 2014, $626 million of securiiizeans held for investment comprised primarilynoh-conforming, single family, owner
occupied, jumbo, prime loans were carried at amedticost, net of an allowance for loan losses ahififon.

The prime jumbo securitized loans held for investtrfer which the Company has not elected the falu® option are carried at amortized cos!
which is their principal balance outstanding, pluamortized premiums, less unaccreted discountaamdlowance for loan losses. The
following table provides a summary of the changethe carrying value of these securitized loand Fal investment at December 31, 2014:

December 31,

2014
Balance, beginning of peric $ 783,48
Principal paydown (153,06
Net periodic amortization (accretio (4,54))
Change to loan loss provisit 232
Balance, end of peric $ 626,11:

The following table represents the Company’s prjumbo securitized residential mortgage loans hetdrfvestment which are carried at
amortized cost at December 31, 2014:

December 31,

2014
Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 633,38t
Less: allowance for loan loss 7,27¢
Securitized loans held for investme  $ 626,11:

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the securitized mayggan portfolio carried at amortized ¢
at June 30, 2014:
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For the Six
Months Ended

June 30, 201
(dollars in
thousands)
Balance, beginning of peric $ 9,06:
Provision for loan losse 53¢
Charge-offs (978
Balance, end of peric $ 8,61¢

The Company has established an allowance for lmsseb related to jumbo prime securitized loansechat amortized cost that is compose
a general and specific reserve. The balance inltb@ance for loan losses related to the genesarie and specific reserve at December 31,
2014 was $3 million and $4 million, respectively.

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired w#&r which the Company established a specificrieseas $22 million at December 31,
2014. The Company’s recorded investment in impdweads for which there is a related allowance fedd losses at December 31, 2014 was
$16 million. The total unpaid principal balancenoin-impaired loans for which the Company estabtishgeneral reserve was $600 million at
December 31, 2014. The Company'’s recorded invegtmern-impaired loans for which there is a refaeneral reserve for credit losses wa:
$610 million at December 31, 2014. Interest incamémpaired loans carried at amortized cost wasigptificant.

With the exception of its ability to approve centédan modifications, the Company is not involveithvthe servicing or modification of the
jumbo prime loans held for investments which ameied at amortized cost. The servicer of the respesecuritization is responsible 1
servicing and modifying these loans. The Compamgdsiired to make certain assumptions in accouritinthese loans due to the limitation of
information available to the Company.

As all loans are carried at fair value as of June2B15, there is no longer a reserve for losdatectto TDRs as of June 30, 2015.
5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accomawith GAAP to account for its financial instrunt&nThe Company categorizes its
financial instruments, based on the priority of itpguts to the valuation technique, into a thraesldair value hierarchy. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted @siin active markets for identical assets or liadd (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs ugecheasure the financial instruments fall withirfeliént levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level inpat s significant to the fair value measuremerthefinstrument. Financial assets and liabill
recorded at fair value on the Consolidated StatésmafrFinancial Condition or disclosed in the rethhotes are categorized based on the inpu
to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology aretgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukktm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Lewak3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value
such changes could result in a significant incressiecrease in the fair value. Any changes tos#thgation methodology are reviewed by
management to ensure the changes are appropriateakets and products evolve and the pricing éotan products becomes more
transparent, the Company will continue to refisevidluation methodologies. The methodology utilibgdhe Company for the periods
presented is unchanged. The methods used to pradiadevalue calculation may not be indicativenet realizable value or reflective of future
fair values. Furthermore, while the Company beleite valuation methods are appropriate and cargistith other market participants, the

of different methodologies, or assumptions, to aeiee the fair value of certain financial instrurteenould result in a different estimate of fair
value at the reporting date. The Company usessrihat are current as of the measurement datehwtdy include periods of market
dislocation, during which price transparency maydsiced.
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During times of market dislocation, the observapiif prices and inputs can be difficult for cent&vestments. If third party pricing services
are unable to provide a price for an asset, drafgrice provided by them is deemed unreliablehkyGompany, then the asset will be valued a
its fair value as determined by the Company witha@lidation to third-party pricing. llliquid investents typically experience greater price
volatility as an active market does not exist. @alkility of prices and inputs can vary significlgrftom period to period and may cause
instruments to change classifications within thre¢Hevel hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by empany to estimate the fair value of its finan@iatruments by instrument class follows:
Agency MBS and Non-Agency RMBS

The Company determines the fair value of all ofritestment securities based on discounted caafs flilizing an internal pricing model that
incorporates factors such as coupon, prepaymeptispian size, collateral composition, borrowearahteristics, expected interest rates, life
caps, periodic caps, reset dates, collateral sgggatelinquency, expected losses, expected defauttrity, credit enhancement, and other
pertinent factors. To corroborate that the estisafdair values generated by these internal moalelseflective of current market prices, the
Company compares the fair values generated by guehto non-binding independent prices providedvixy independent third party pricing
services. For certain highly liquid asset classesh as Agency fixed-rate pass-through bonds, dmpany’s valuations are also compared to
quoted prices for To-Be-Announced (“TBA”) securitie

Each quarter the Company develops thresholds varelletermined utilizing current bid/ask spreaidsiidity, price volatility and other facto
as appropriate. If internally developed model mwidéfer from the independent prices provided bgager than a market derived predeterminec
threshold for the period, the Company highlightssthdifferences for further review, both internalhd with the third party pricing service. 1
Company obtains the inputs used by the third paniting services and compares them to the Companpigs. The Company updates its own
inputs if the Company determines the third partgipg inputs more accurately reflect the currentkeenvironment. If the Company believes
that its internally developed inputs more accuyateflect the current market environment, it wébuest that the third party pricing service
review market factors that may not have been censaiby the third party pricing service and provigeated prices. The Company reconciles
and resolves all pricing differences in excesefgredetermined thresholds before a final pri@siablished. At June 30, 2015 and Decembe
31, 2014, all differences between the model geednatices and the third party prices were withimdlerived predetermined threshold for the
period.

The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default @vérity curves all involve judgment and assumptithias are deemed to be significant to
the fair value measurement process, which rentlersesulting Non-Agency RMBS fair value estimatesél 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy. As the fair values of Agency MBS are enobservable, these investments are classifiegvat2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment
Securitized loans consisting of seasoned sub-présidential mortgage loans:

The Company estimates the fair value of its seizedtloans held for investment consisting of sead®ubprime residential mortgage loans

a loan by loan basis using an internally develapedel which compares the loan held by the Compattyadoan currently offered in the
market. The loan price is adjusted in the modetdnysidering the loan factors which would impactvhkie of a loan. These loan factors
include: loan coupon as compared to coupon cugrenthilable in the market, FICO, loan-to-valueastidelinquency history, owner
occupancy, and property type, among other facfotsmseline is developed for each significant logetdr and adjusts the price up or down
depending on how that factor for each specific loampares to the baseline rate. Generally, the sigsificant impact on loan value is the
loan interest rate as compared to interest rateemtly available in the market and delinquencydris These two factors are based on relevar
observable inputs.
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The Company also monitors market activity to idigrtiades which may be used to compare internalyetbped prices; however, as the
portfolio of loans held at fair value is a seasogeb-prime pool of mortgage loans, comparable @ois are not common or directly
comparable. There are limited transactions in theket place to develop a comprehensive direct rafgalues. However, if market data
becomes available, the Company will compare thia ttathe internally developed prices to ensureaeableness of the valuation.

The Company reviews the fair values generated éyrtbdel to determine whether prices are reflecfvhe current market by corroborating
its estimates of fair value by comparing the restdtnon-binding independent prices provided by itvdependent third party pricing services
for the loan portfolio. Each quarter the Companyetieps thresholds which are determined utilizirggaior securitization market for a similar
pool of loans.

If the internally developed fair values of the Igaools differ from the independent prices provitbgdgreater than a predetermined threshols
the period, the Company highlights these differerfoe further review, both internally and with ttherd party pricing service. The Company
obtains certain inputs used by the third partyipgservices and evaluates them for reasonablefikesCompany updates its own model if the
Company determines the third party pricing inputgeraccurately reflect the current market envirominee observed information from the
third party vendors. If the Company believes tkatriternally developed inputs more accuratelyeatfthe current market environment, it will
request that the third party pricing service reviearket factors that may not have been consideretebthird party pricing service. The
Company reconciles and resolves all pricing diffiess in excess of the predetermined thresholdséaefinal price is established.

The Company’s estimates of fair value of securitians held for investment involve management ijueigt and assumptions that are deeme
to be significant to the fair value measurementess, which renders the resulting fair value esmbevel 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

Securitized loans collateralized by jumbo, primgidential mortgages

The securitized loans collateralized by jumbo, jgrimsidential mortgages are carried at fair vatuefalune 30, 2015. The securitized loans ar
held as part of a consolidated CFE. A CFE is aalbdeiinterest entity that holds financial assetsés beneficial interests in those assets and
has no more than nominal equity and the benefitiatests have contractual recourse only to tretedlassets of the CFE. Accounting
guidance for CFEs allow the Company to elect tosueathe CFE’s financial assets using the fairevalithe CFE’s financial liabilities as the
fair values of the financial liabilities of the CFEe more observable. Therefore, the fair valuta®fecuritized loans collateralized by jumbo,
prime residential mortgages is based on the fairevaf the securitized debt. See discussion ofdhiesalue of Securitized Debt, collateralized
by Loans Held for Investment at fair value below.

As the more observable Securitized debt, colldezdlby loans held for investment are consideredl 8 in the fair value hierarchy, the
Securitized loans collateralized by jumbo, primgidential mortgages are also level 3 in the failo@dierarchy.

Securitized Debt, collateralized by N-Agency RMBS

The Company carries securitized debt, collaterdllae Non-Agency RMBS at the principal balance artding plus unamortized premiums,
less unaccreted discounts recorded in connectitintthw financing of the loans or RMBS with thirdiias. The Company estimates the fair
value of securitized debt, collateralized by NoneAgy RMBS by estimating the future cash flows aisged with the underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Tom@any models the fair value of each underlying@&lsg considering, among other items,
structure of the underlying security, coupon, seriidelinquency, actual and expected defaultsahand expected default severities, reset
indices, and prepayment speeds in conjunction mvéhket research for similar collateral performaand management’s expectations of
general economic conditions in the sector and ahenomic factors. This process, including theeevprocess, is consistent with the process
used for Agency MBS and Non-Agency RMBS using imémodels. See the further discussion of the ¥aimgprocess and benchmarking
process in thé&gency MBS and Non-Agency RMiBB&ussion of fair value.

The Company’s estimates of fair value of securitidebt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS involvamagement’s judgment and

assumptions that are deemed to be significantetdain value measurement process, which rendensthiting fair value estimates level 3
inputs in the fair value hierarchy.
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Securitized Debt, collateralized by Loans Held favestment

The Company determines the fair value of secudtidebt, collateralized by loans held for investnzaged on discounted cash flows utilizing
an internal pricing model that incorporates factursh as coupon, prepayment speeds, loan sizatezall composition, borrower
characteristics, expected interest rates, life qa@sodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasoniugcted losses, expected default severity, crec
enhancement, and other pertinent factors. Thisgadncluding the review process, is consistetit thie process used for Agency MBS and
Non-Agency RMBS using internal models. See the furtistussion of the valuation process and benchmguiiocess in thAgency MBS

and Non-Agency RMBd8scussion of fair value.

The Company’s estimates of fair value of securitidebt, collateralized by loans held for investnmieablve management’s judgment and
assumptions that are deemed to be significantetdain value measurement process, which rendenethating fair value estimates level 3
inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

Derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps and Swapti

The Company determines the fair value of its irgerate swaps and swaptions based on the net predea of future cash flows of the swayj
swaption. The Company compares its own estimataiofalue to dealer quotes received to evaluatedasonableness. The dealer quotes
incorporate common market pricing methods, inclgdirspread measurement to the Treasury yield aurirgerest rate swap curve as well as
underlying characteristics of the particular cocttrénterest rate swaps and swaptions are modgl¢laebCompany by incorporating such
factors as the term to maturity, Treasury curveroight index swap rates, and the payment ratébeofixed portion of the interest rate swaps.
The Company has classified the characteristics tessddtermine the fair value of interest rate swapkevel 2 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy.

Treasury Futures

The fair value of Treasury futures is determinedjbgted market prices for similar financial instemts in an active market. The Company ha
classified the characteristics used to determiaddh value of Treasury futures as Level 1 inpatéhe fair value hierarchy.

Mortgage Option:

Mortgage options are valued using an option pricimaglel which considers the strike price of theaptithe price of the underlying security,
settle date, a discount rate and the implied Miiatirhe implied volatility is determined from thdaily price of the underlying security as well
as prices on similar financial instruments. The @any has classified the characteristics used &rne the fair value of mortgage options a:
Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

Repurchase Agreemen

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finati@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquire@stment securities. Due to the short term
nature of these financial instruments, the Compestiynates the fair value of these repurchase agmtsmsing the contractual obligation plus
accrued interest payable at maturity.

Short-term Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, receivable for secsrigi@d, dividends payable, payable for

securities purchased and accrued interest payeblenasidered to be a reasonable estimate ofdhievdue to the short term nature and low
credit risk of these short-term financial instrursen
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The Company’s financial assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair value on a recurring basis, includihg kevel in the fair value hierarchy, at June 3C
2015 and December 31, 2014 is presented below.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Counterparty
and Cash
Collateral,
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 netting Total
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu $ - $ - $3,937,11 $ - $ 3,937,11
Agency RMBS, at fair valu - 6,298,87! - - 6,298,87!
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e - - 5,208,55! - 5,208,55!
Derivatives 1,56¢ 19,86: - - 21,43(
Liabilities:
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dbgrs held
for investmen - - (4,265,21) - (4,265,21)
Derivatives - (34,546 - 22,46¢ (12,080
Total $ 1,56¢ $6,284,19. $4,880,44' $ 22,46¢ $11,188,67
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Counterparty
and Cash
Collateral,
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 netting Total
(dollars in thousand:

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu $ - $ - $3,404,14' $ - $ 3,404,14
Agency RMBS, at fair valu - 8,441,52 - - 8,441,52.
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e - - 4,699,21! - 4,699,21!
Derivatives 4,79¢ (1,167 3,631
Liabilities:
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dgmis held
for investmen - - (3,868,36) - (3,868,361
Derivatives (7,227 (113,679 (71) 106,80( (14,177
Total $ (7,227 $8,332,64. $4,234,92 $ 105,63 $12,665,97

The table below provides a summary of the changése fair value of securities classified as Leak June 30, 2015 and December 31, 201+
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Fair Value Reconciliation, Level

For the Six Months EndeJune 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency Securitized Securitized
RMBS Derivatives Loans Debt Total

Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,404,14 $ (71) $ 5,306,50. $ (4,383,21) $4,327,36:
Transfers in to Level 3 asst - - - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 asst - - - - -

Purchase 812,96t - 281,81: (485,117 609,66!

Principal payment (168,86 - (367,006 395,33: (140,539

Sales and Settlemer (124,69:) (597) - 230,68: 105,39¢
Accretion of purchase discour 58,51: - 5,33¢ 1,30¢ 65,15:
Gains (losses) included in net inco

Other than temporary credit impairment los (34,916 - - - (34,916

Realized gains (losses) on sales and settler 3,19¢ 44z - 5,07¢ 8,721

Net unrealized gains (losses) included in inct (88E) 22t (18,089 (29,289 (48,037
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivena

Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe| (12,357 - - - (12,357

Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,937,11. % - $ 5,208,55 $ (4,265,21) $4,880,44

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
For the Year EndeDecember 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency Securitized Securitized
RMBS Derivatives Loans Debt Total

Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,774,46. $ - $ - $ - $3,774,46:

Transfers in to Level 3 asst - - - - -

Transfers out of Level 3 asst - - - - -

Purchase 454,50t - 4,722,82. (4,309,05) 868,27!

Principal payment (324,769) - (173,59) 412 ,65: (85,719

Sales and Settlemer (602,577 (8,479 - - (611,059

Accretion of purchase discour 99,51: - 5,02¢ 2,02¢ 106,56¢
Gains (losses) included in net inco

Other than temporary credit impairment los (63,997) - - - (63,997

Realized gains (losses) on sales and settler 62,63« 8,74¢ - - 71,38:

Realized gain on deconsolidati 47,84¢ - - - 47,84¢

Net unrealized gains (losses) included in inct 25,27: (34)) 144,96( 26,01: 195,90:
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensiventa

Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe| (68,75() - - - (68,750

Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,404,14 $ (7) $ 4,699,21! $ (3,868,36) $4,234,92

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 forghemonth ended June 30, 2015 and the year endeehil®er 31, 2014.
Sensitivity of Significant Inputs — Non-Agency RNB8 securitized debt, collateralized by loans Heldnvestment

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevialue measurement of the Company’s Non-Agency BMBd securitized debt are the
weighted average discount rates, constant prepaysperad (“CPR”), cumulative default rate, and theslseverity.

Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CPR, vagyding to interest rates, the type of financiatioment, conditions in financial markets,
and other factors, none of which can be predictitd any certainty. In general, when interest raiss, it is relatively less attractive for
borrowers to refinance their mortgage loans, ara @sult, prepayment speeds tend to decrease. iMieeast rates fall, prepayment speeds
tend to increase. For RMBS investments purchasagetmium, as prepayment speeds increase, thenawfdncome the Company earns
decreases as the purchase premium on the bondtzasdaster than expected. Conversely, decreagaepayment speeds result in increasec
income and can extend the period over which the amy amortizes the purchase premium. For RMBS tnvests purchased at a discount
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of incaan@dmpany earns increases from the acceleratitreaiccretion of the discount into
interest income. Conversely, decreases in prepayspeeds result in decreased income as the aatadtibe purchase discount into interest
income occurs over a longer period.
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For securitized debt carried at fair value issuea remium, as prepayment speeds increase, thenambinterest expense the Company
recognizes decreases as the issued premium oelhamiortizes faster than expected. Converselyedses in prepayment speeds result in
increased expense and can extend the period oveln wie Company amortizes the premium.

For debt issued at a discount, as prepayment sjpeaeésase, the amount of interest the Company esqseimcreases from the acceleration o
accretion of the discount into interest expensen@csely, decreases in prepayment speeds residtieased expense as the accretion of the
discount into interest expense occurs over a lopgeod.

Cumulative default rates represent an annualiziedofadefault on a group of mortgages. The constefault rate (“CDR”) represents the
percentage of outstanding principal balances irptia that are in default, which typically equateshe home being past 60-day and 90-day
notices and in the foreclosure process. When defaigls increase, expected cash flows on the undegrtollateral decreases. When default
rates decrease, expected cash flows on the unugdyilateral increases.

Loss severity rates reflect the amount of loss etgaefrom a foreclosure and liquidation of the uhdeg collateral in the mortgage loan pool.
When a mortgage loan is foreclosed the collatsrabld and the resulting proceeds are used te skéloutstanding obligation. In many
circumstances, the proceeds from the sale do fgtrépay the outstanding obligation. In these saséoss is incurred by the lender. Loss
severity is used to predict how costly future Igsaee likely to be. An increase in loss severiguhs in a decrease in expected future cash
flows. A decrease in loss severity results in amgase in expected future cash flows.

The discount rate refers to the interest rate us#ltk discounted cash flow analysis to determiirgepresent value of future cash flows. The
discount rate takes into account not just the tialae of money, but also the risk or uncertaintyudiire cash flows. An increased uncertainty
of future cash flows results in a higher discowtér The discount rate used to calculate the presdue of the expected future cash flows is
based on the discount rate implicit in the seclwa@yof the last measurement date. As discount ma&e up, the discounted cash flows are
reduced.

A summary of the significant inputs used to estarthe fair value of Non-Agency RMBS held for inviasnt at fair value as of June 30, 2015
and December 31, 2014 follows:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs

Weighted CPR CDR Loss Weighted CPR CDR Loss

Average Severity Average Severity

Discount Range Discount Range

Rate Rate
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior 5.0% 1%-17% 0%-21% 35%- 95% 4.7% 1%- 16% 0%- 31% 50%- 85%
Senior interest- 11.6% 1%-30% 0% -22% 35% - 95% 14.4% 1% - 25% 0%-32%  50% - 85%
only
Subordinatet 5.7% 1%-21% 0%-15% 10%- 100% 5.8% 1%- 16% 0%- 19% 10%- 78%
Subordinated 15.4% 2%-13% 0% -11% 38% - 62% 22.0% 1% - 10% 0% -14%  50% - 65%
interes-only

A summary of the significant inputs used to estarthe fair value of securitized debt at fair vadiseof June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014
follows:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
CPR CDR Loss CPR CDR Loss
Severity Severity

Range Range Range Range Range Range

Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized bgris held for 4% -30% 0%-4% 35%-55% 3%-8% 0%-9% 50% - 73%
investmen

All of the significant inputs listed have some degyof market observability, based on the Compakysviedge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and lesergty projections are in the form of
“curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect @mmpanys collateral cash flow projections. Methods usedeweelop these projections confc
to industry conventions. The Company uses assungpticonsiders its best estimate of future caslvdifor each security.

The discount rates applied to the expected castsfto determine fair value are derived from a ramigebservable prices on securities backed
by similar collateral. As the market becomes martess liquid, the availability of these observaiblguts will change.
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The prepayment speed specifies the percentage abittateral balance that is expected to prepagelh point in the future. The prepayment
speed is based on factors such as collateral F6f2 sloan-to-value ratio, debt-to-income ratiod amtage on a loan level basis and is scalec
up or down to reflect recent collateral-specifiegmyment experience as obtained from remittanaatsepnd market data services.

Default vectors are determined from the currenpépne” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmgiuin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are
REO. These delinquent loans determine the firsnd@ths of the default curve. Beyond month 30, tskault curve transitions to a value that is
reflective of a portion of the current delinquempigeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s expass severity is based on collateral-speciffieeience with consideration given to other
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charact@sssuch as seasoning are taken into consideraéicause severities tend to initially increase ol
newly originated securities, before beginning toliske as the collateral ages and eventually stahilCollateral characteristics such as loan
loan-to-value, and geographic location of colldtatso effect loss severity.

Sensitivity of Significant Inputs — Securitizednséeld for investment

The significant unobservable inputs used to essrtta fair value of the securitized loans heldifioestment collateralized by seasoned sub-
prime residential mortgage loans, as of June 305 2d December 31, 2014 include coupon, FICO stiopeigination, loan-to-value ratios
(LTV), owner occupancy status, and property typsufamary of the significant inputs used to estintlagefair value of Securitized loans held
for investment at fair value as of June 30, 201 Bacember 31, 2014 follows:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighte( Weightec
Average/Perce Average/Perce
of of
Base Rat loan poo Base Rat loan poa
Factor:
Coupon
Clean 4.4% 7.C% 4.4% 6.6%
Reperforming 5.2% 7.1% 5.2% 6.6%
FICO 62C 62¢ 62C 637
Loar-to-value (LTV) 90% 81% 90% 81%
Occupancy
Owner Occupiet N/A 9€% N/A 96%
Investor N/A 4% N/A 4%
Secondan N/A 0% N/A 0%
Property Type
Single family N/A 7% N/A 79%
Manufactured
housing N/A 14% N/A 15%
Multi-
family/mixed use/othe N/A 7% N/A 6%

The loan factors are generally not observableHerindividual loans and the base rates developgtidbZompany’s internal model are
subjective and change as market conditions chargeimpact of the loan coupon on the value of tlamlis dependent on whether the loan is
clean or reperforming. A clean loan, with no higtof delinquent payments and a relatively high loaarest rate would result in a higher
overall value than a reperforming loan which hagstory of delinquency. Similarly, a higher FICQose and a lower LTV ratio results in
increases in the fair market value of the loan atalver FICO score and a higher LTV ratio resuitailower value.
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Property types also affect the overall loan valteperty types include single family, manufactunedsing and multi-family/mixed use and
other types of properties. Single family homes espnt properties which house only one family iwidnufactured homes include mobile
homes and modular homes. Loan value for propdhggsare investor or secondary homes have a redusded as compared to the baseline
loan value. Additionally, single family homes widisult in an increase to the loan value where nantufed and multi-family/mixed use and
other properties will result in a decrease to tanlvalue, as compared to the baseline.

The following table presents the carrying value &idvalue, as described above, of the Compangantial instruments not carried at fair
value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2015 andker 31, 2014.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Level in Fail
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value
Repurchase agreeme! 2 (6,813,83) (6,829,38)
Securitized debt, collateralized by No
Agency RMBS 3 (625,27() (622,30
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Level in Fail
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value
Securitized loans held for investm 3 626,11: 626,10(
Repurchase agreeme! 2 (8,455,38) (8,473,83)
Securitized debt, collateralized by No
Agency RMBS 3 (704,91H (708,627
Securitized debt, collateralized by loa
held for investmen 3 (521,99) (514,85)

6. Repurchase Agreements

The interest rates of the Company’s repurchasecaggnts are generally indexed to the one-monthethrenth and twelve-month LIBOR rates
and re-price accordingly. The repurchase agreencenssanding, weighted average borrowing ratesgltetd average remaining maturities,
average daily balances and the fair value of aaitdipledged as of June 30, 2015 and Decembel034, i2:

December 3:
June 30, 201 2014

Repurchase agreements outstandil
(in thousands $ 6,813,83 $ 8,455,38
Average Daily Balance (in thousan 7,606,03! 8,247,72.
Weighted average borrowing re 0.8% 0.63%
Weighted average maturi 88 Day: 100 Day:
RMBS pledged as collateral at fair
value (in thousand:

Agency $ 5,609,000 $ 7,822,55

Non-Agency 2,321,711 1,487,18.

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the repsechgreements collateralized by RMBS had theviolip remaining maturities.
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December 3:

June 30, 201 201¢
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ -$ =
1 to 29 day: 1,760,11 2,652,71
30 to 59 day: 2,205,98: 1,371,85
60 to 89 day: 1,195,78. 656,91!
90 to 119 day 262,22t 2,068,74!
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 1,389,72; 1,705,15.
Total $ 6,813,83.$ 8,455,38

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Comipathyan amount at risk with Credit Suisse Firstt@o®f 10% of its equity related to the
collateral posted on repurchase agreements. Thene o other amounts at risk with any other copateies greater than 10% of the
Company’s equity as of June 30, 2015 and Decemhez(BL4.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collatezratl by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyB8MFor financial reporting purposes,
the Company’s securitized debt is accounted faeasred borrowings. Thus, the residential mortdeges or RMBS held as collateral are
recorded in the assets of the Company as secudritzes held for investment or Non-Agency RMBS $farred to consolidated VIEs and the
securitized debt is recorded as a non-recoursiitjaib the accompanying Consolidated StatemefitSimancial Condition.

Securitized Debt Collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the Compaeguritized debt collateralized by Non-Agency R3B carried at amortized cost and
had a principal balance of $645 million and $72%iom, respectively. At June 30, 2015 and Deceniier2014, the debt carried a weighted
average cost of financing equal to 4.33% and 4.28%pgectively. The debt matures between the y&85 and 2047. None of the Company’s
securitized debt collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS8allable.

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company aceplisecuritized debt collateralized by Non-Agen®¥B88 with an outstanding principal
balance of $54 million for $56 million in cash. itransaction resulted in a loss on the extingoefit of debt of $2 million. This loss is
reflected in earnings for the six months ended Bhe014.

The following table presents the estimated prindippayment schedule of the securitized debt a¢ 30p 2015 and December 31, 2014, base
on expected cash flows of the residential mortdages or RMBS, as adjusted for projected lossehemnderlying collateral of the debt. All
of the securitized debt recorded in the Compangss0lidated Statements of Financial Condition is-recourse to the Company.

December 3:
June 30, 201 201¢
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 153,34t $ 175,71:
One to Three Yeal 186,45¢ 220,99!
Three to Five Year 90,46: 112,77¢
Greater Than Five Yea 96,19( 96,26¢
Total $ 526,45 $ 605,75:

Maturities of the Compang’securitized debt are dependent upon cash flovesverl from the underlying loans. The estimatéhefrtrepaymet
is based on scheduled principal payments on theriymadg loans. This estimate will differ from act@nounts to the extent prepayments or
loan losses are experienced. See Notes 3 for adetaded discussion of the securities collateradizhe securitized debt.

Securitized Debt Collateralized by Loans Held fordstment
At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the Compaeguritized debt collateralized by loans heldrieestment had a principal balance of
$4.3 billion and $4.5 billion, respectively. Duritige quarter and six months ended June 30, 20&sdimpany recognized a loss of $23 millior

and $29 million on the securitized debt carriethatvalue in Net unrealized gains (losses) onrfmal instruments at fair value. The Company
did not have any securitized debt carried at falug during the quarter and six months ended JOn2(.4.
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At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the totairgized debt collateralized by loans held foraatment carried a weighted average cost ¢
financing equal to 3.46% and 3.47% respectivelye dibbt matures between the years 2023 and 2065.

The following table presents the estimated prindippayment schedule of the securitized debt a¢ 307 2015 and December 31, 2014, base
on expected cash flows of the residential mortdages or RMBS, as adjusted for projected losseh@mnderlying collateral of the debt. All
of the securitized debt recorded in the Companged0lidated Statements of Financial Condition is-recourse to the Company.

June 3C Decembe
201t 31, 201:
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 739,000 $ 704,65
One to Three Yeal 1,166,03. 1,206,24:
Three to Five Year 875,30« 828,19¢
Greater Than Five Yea 1,522,600 1,577,36!
Total $ 4,302,94. $ 4,316,45'

Maturities of the Compang’securitized debt are dependent upon cash flovesverl from the underlying loans. The estimatéhefrtrepaymer
is based on scheduled principal payments on theriymadg loans. This estimate will differ from actw@mnounts to the extent prepayments or
loan losses are experienced. See Note 4 for a detadled discussion of the loans collateralizing $bcuritized debt.

Certain of the securitized debt collateralized dmris held for investment contain call provisiond are callable at par, at the option of the
Company. The following table presents the par valube callable debt by year at June 30, 2015.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Year Principal
2015 1,062,76!
2016 2,146,54.
2017 240,77
2018 477,07:
Total 3,927,15!

8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Other &fiable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbEs$he purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laan®-securitizing RMBS and obtaining
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determineiff the primary beneficiary.

As of June 30, 2015, the Company’s ConsolidateteBtant of Financial Condition includes assets ofsotidated VIEs with a carrying value
of $7.7 billion and a carrying value of $4.9 bitliof liabilities. As of December 31, 2014, the Cany's Consolidated Statement of Financial
Condition includes consolidated VIEs with $7.9ibill of assets and $5.1 billion of liabilities.

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whihle Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-

securitizations and in some cases the Company widyiriterests in additional tranches. The tabl@Waleflects the assets and liabilities
recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Finaiaadition related to the consolidated VIEs adwfie 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
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June 30, 201 December 31, 20!
(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu $ 2,339,011 $ 2,473,46
Securitized loans held for investment, net of

allowance for loan losse¢ - 626,11:
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair

value 5,208,55! 4,699,21!
Accrued interest receivab 38,02 39,55¢
Other Asset: 90,87¢ 85,88(

Liabilities
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Ager

RMBS $ 625,27( $ 704,91!
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans helc

investmen - 521,99
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized t

loans held for investmel 4,265,21! 3,868,36!
Accrued interest payab 15,31¢ 16,07(

Income and expense and OTTI amounts related tmtidated VIES recorded in the Consolidated StatémehOperations and Comprehens
Income is presented in the table below.

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, June 30,

2015 2014
(dollars in thousand:
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 146,90 $ 85,26:
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE 50,42¢ 17,17¢
Net interest incom $ 96,474 $ 68,08¢
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (2,040 479
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (20,497 (3,477)
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (2153)% (3,950

For the Six Months End
June 30, June 30,

2015 2014
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 297,51t $ 170,47
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE 97,17¢ 37,87¢
Net interest incom $ 200,33¢ § 132,59
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (1,439 479
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensiceine

(loss) (27,379 (3,470
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (28,816 % (3,950

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bieraafy

The Company is not required to consolidate VIEwlich it has concluded it does not have a contrglfinancial interest, and thus is not the
primary beneficiary. In such cases, the Company do¢ have both the power to direct the entitieest significant activities and the obligat

to absorb losses or right to receive benefitsdbatd potentially be significant to the VIEs. Ther@pany’s investments in these unconsolidate
VIEs are carried in Non-Agency RMBS on the Consatkdl Statements of Financial Condition and inclsslgor and subordinated bonds
issued by the VIEs. The fair value of the Compamy®stments in unconsolidated VIEs at June 3052€dnged from less than $1 million to
$58 million, with an aggregate amount of $1.3 biili The fair value of the Company’s investmentsnnonsolidated VIEs at December 31,
2014, ranged from less than $1 million to $46 roilliwith an aggregate amount of $931 million. ThenPany’s maximum exposure to loss
from these unconsolidated VIEs was $1.5 billiodwate 30, 2015 and $822 million at December 31, 20kd maximum exposure to loss was
determined as the amortized cost of the uncongeliddIE, which represents the purchase price ofrthestment adjusted by any unamortized
premiums or discounts as of the reporting date.

9. Derivative Instruments

In connection with the Company'’s interest rate risknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk by
entering into derivative financial instrument cauatis in the form of interest rate swaps, swaptiand, Treasury futures. The Comp’s swap:



are used to lock in a fixed rate related to a partf its current and anticipated payments oreipgirchase agreements. The Company typically
agrees to pay a fixed rate of interest (“pay rate’xchange for the right to receive a floatintgraf interest (“receive rate”) over a specified
period of time. Treasury futures are derivativescivhrack the prices of specific Treasury secusii@d are traded on an active exchange. It is
generally the Company’s policy to close out anyabrey futures positions prior to taking deliverytioé underlying security. The Company
uses Treasury futures to lock in prices on thelmge or sale of Agency MBS and to hedge changeserest rates on its existing portfolio.
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In addition to interest rate swaps, from time ondithe Company purchases and sells mortgage opltorsgyage options give the Company
right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell matg backed securities at a future date for a fpreme. The Company uses mortgage options to
lock in prices on the purchase or sale of AgencyawBd to enhance investment returns.

The use of derivatives creates exposure to crisffirelating to potential losses that could be gaired if the counterparties to these
instruments fail to perform their obligations undlee contracts. In the event of a default by thenterparty, the Company could have difficulty
obtaining its RMBS or cash pledged as collaterattiese derivative instruments. The Company pecailyi monitors the credit profiles of its
counterparties to determine if it is exposed tonterparty credit risk. See Note 14 for further dission of counterparty credit risk.

The table below summarizes the location and fdurevaf the derivatives reported in the Consolidétatements of Financial Condition after
counterparty netting and posting of cash collatasabf June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

June 30, 201

Derivative Liabilities
Net Estimated

Derivative Asset:
Net Estimated

Notional Location on Consolidated Fair Location on Consolidated Fair
Amount Statements of Financial Value/Carrying  Statements of Financial Value/Carrying
Derivative Instrument Outstanding Condition Value Condition Value
(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Sway $ 3,840,401 Derivatives, at fair value, n $ - Derivatives, at fair value, r (9,739
Mortgage Option: - Derivatives, at fair value, n - Derivatives, at fair value, r -
Swaptions 755,00( Derivatives, at fair value, n 19,86: Derivatives, at fair value, r (2,346
Treasury Future 850,00( Derivatives, at fair value, n 1,56¢ Derivatives, at fair value, r -
Total $ 5,445,440 $ 21,43( $ (12,080
December 31, 201
Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities
Net Estimatec Net Estimatec
Notional Location on Consolidatec Fair Location on Consolidatec Fair
Amount Statements of Financial Value/Carrying  Statements of Financial Value/Carrying
Derivative Instrument Outstanding Condition Value Condition Value
(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Sway $ 3,573,001 Derivatives, at fair value, n $ - Derivatives, at fair value, r (14,067
Mortgage Option: 200,00( Derivatives, at fair value, n - Derivatives, at fair value, r (77)
Swaptions 242,00( Derivatives, at fair value, n 2,88¢ Derivatives, at fair value, r (45)
TreasuryFutures 1,240,000 Derivatives, at fair value, n - Derivatives, at fair value, r -
Total $ 5,255,00 $ 2,88¢ $ (14,177

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had a net p@gition of $742 thousand which settled in Janwdr3015. This amount is included in
Derivative assets on the Consolidated Statemerfmahcial Condition as of December 31, 2014.

The effect of the Company’s derivatives on the @tidated Statements of Operations and Comprehefhsivene is presented below.
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Net gains (losses) on derivativ
For the Quarter Ende

Location on Consolidated
Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive
Derivative Instrument Income June 30, 201 June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:

Net unrealized gains (losses)

Interest Rate Sway derivatives $ 70,26¢ $ (19,839
Net realized gains (losses)

Interest Rate Sway derivatives (1 (40,159 (12,067
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option: derivatives 1 3,59¢
Net realized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option: derivatives 31 1,05(C
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Treasury Future derivatives 13,70« (6,25€)
Net realized gains (losses)

Treasury Future derivatives (7,779 (8,787
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Swaptions derivatives 4,054 -
Net realized gains (losses)

Swaptions derivatives - -

Total $ 40,127 $ (42,289

(1) Includes loss on termination of interest rateys of $31 million
Net gains (losses) on derivativ
For the Six Months Ende

Location on Consolidated
Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive
Derivative Instrument Income June 30, 201 June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:

Net unrealized gains (losses)

Interest Rate Sway derivatives $ 80,23( $ (15,769
Net realized gains (losses)

Interest Rate Sway derivatives (1 (123,90) (17,717
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option: derivatives 22t 4,33¢
Net realized gains (losses)

Mortgage Option: derivatives 442 1,65
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Treasury Future derivatives 8,79t (13,265
Net realized gains (losses)

Treasury Future derivatives (35,23) (9,482
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Swaptions derivatives 2,83: -
Net realized gains (losses)

Swaptions derivatives 144 -
Net unrealized gains (losses)

Other Derivative Assel derivatives - -
Net realized gains (losses)

Other Derivative Assel derivatives (22) -

Total $ (66,487 $ (50,239

(1) Includes loss on termination of interest rateys of $100 millior

The Company paid $31 million to terminate interes¢ swaps with a notional value of $600 millionidg the quarter ended June 30, 2015.
The Company paid $100 million to terminate interas¢ swaps with a notional value of $1.2 billiarridg the six month ended June 30, 2015.
The terminated swaps had original maturities raqpfiom 2019 to 2044. This amount represented tinevédue of the terminated interest rate
swaps, not counting any accrued interest at the gifsettlement.

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’seisiteate swaps at June 30, 2015 was 1.44% avdeilghted average receive rate was
0.24%. The weighted average pay rate on the Con'partgrest rate swaps at December 31, 2014 w&#Rahd the weighted average receive
rate was 0.24%. The weighted average maturity erCibmpan’s interest rate swaps at June 30, 2015 and Dece8tib2014 is 4 years anc



years, respectivel

Certain of the Company’s derivative contracts afgjexct to International Swaps and Derivatives Aggamn Master Agreements or other
similar agreements which may contain provisions ¢itant counterparties certain rights with resped¢he applicable agreement upon the
occurrence of certain events such as (i) a dealiséockholders’ equity in excess of specified sfn@ds or dollar amounts over set periods of
time, (ii) the Company’s failure to maintain its REstatus, (iii) the Compang’failure to comply with limits on the amount oféage, and (iv
the Company'’s stock being delisted from the NewkYStock Exchange (NYSE). Upon the occurrence ofawgy of items (i) through (iv), or
another default under the agreement, the countgrfzathe applicable agreement has a right to teauei the agreement in accordance with its
provisions. Certain of the Company’s interest sataps are cleared through a registered commoeitiegsange. Each of the Company’s ISDAS
and clearing exchange agreements contains prosisioder which the Company is required to fully atgtalize its obligations under the
interest rate swap agreements if at any pointahrevalue of the swap represents a liability gretitan the minimum transfer amount containec
within the agreements. The Company is also requoqubst initial collateral upon execution of cartaf its swap transactions. If the Company
breaches any of these provisions, it will be regglito settle its obligations under the agreemeritsedr termination values, which approxime
fair value. Cleared swaps are fair valued usingrivdl pricing models and compared to the excharay&ehvalues. The aggregate fair value of
all derivative instruments with credit-risk-relatedntingent features that are in a net liabilitgigion at June 30, 2015 is approximately $40
million including accrued interest, which represetite maximum amount the Company would be requérgdy upon termination, which is
fully collateralized.
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10. Common Stock

On March 12, 2015, The Company's board of direcpgoved a 1-for-5 reverse stock split of its camratock. The reverse stock split was
effective after the close of trading on April 6,180 and the shares of the Company's common stagntteading on a reverse split-adjusted
basis on the New York Stock Exchange beginning@bpening of trading on April 7, 2015. As a resiilthe reverse stock split, every five
shares of the Comparsytommon stock was converted into one share of amrstock, reducing the number of issued and owudsigrshares «
the Company’s common stock from approximately illibh to approximately 206 million and reducingethumber of authorized shares from
1.5 billion to approximately 300 million. No fraotial shares were issued in connection with thersevgtock split. Each stockholder who was
otherwise entitled to receive a fractional sharthefCompany’s common stock was entitled to recaieash payment in lieu of a fractional
share. The reverse stock split was not subjedbttkBolder approval and did not change the parevafithe Company's common stock. All
common shares, outstanding options and per shavaragmfor all periods were retroactively adjustedeflect the reverse stock split.

During the quarters ended June 30, 2015 and 2b&4;ompany declared dividends to common sharehotdtaling $99 million and $92
million, respectively, or $0.48 and $0.45 per shagspectively. During the six month ended June28d5 and 2014, the Company declared
dividends to common shareholders totaling $197ianiland $185 million, respectively, or $0.96 andd¥0per share, respectively.

Earnings per share for the quarters ended Jun2038,and 2014, respectively, are computed as fstlow
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For the Quarter Ende
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:

Net income $ 116,18 $ 104,76¢
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 116,18 $ 104,76¢

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 205,492,08 205,441,79
Effect of dilutive securities 87,55( 65,10(
Weighted average diluted shares 205,579,63 205,506,89
Net income per average share attributable to cam

stockholders - Basic $ 0.57 $ 0.51
Net income per average share attributable to cam

stockholders - Diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.51

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:

Net income $ 183,22¢ $ 205,13
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 183,22¢ $ 205,13

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 205,509,78 205,447,12
Effect of dilutive securities 63,51t 65,164
Weighted average dilutive shares 205,573,29 205,512,29
Net income per average share attributable to cam

stockholders - Basic $ 0.8¢ $ 1.0C
Net income per average share attributable to cam

stockholders - Diluted $ 0.8 $ 1.0C

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the changes in thegmrants of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incd®@ClI”) for the quarters ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014:
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June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized gains

(losses) on Total

available-for-sale Accumulated

securities, ne OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 1,046,68 $ 1,046,68!
OCI before reclassificatior (137,65¢) (137,65¢)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (4,219 (4,219
Net current period OC (141,87 (141,87
Balance as of June 30, 2014 $ 904,80" $ 904,80°

June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized gains

(losses) on Total

available-for-sale  Accumulated

securities, ne OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 990,80: $ 990,80«
OCI before reclassificatior 138,15( 138,15(
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (49,305 (49,305
Net current period OC 88,84 88,84
Balance as of June 31, 2014 $ 1,079,64: $ 1,079,64

The following table presents the details of thdagsifications from AOCI for the quarters endedel8, 2015 and 2014:

June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Amounts Amounts
Reclassified Reclassified
from from Affected Line on the Consolidated
Accumulated Accumulated Statements Of Operations And
Details about Accumulated OCI Compone OClI OCI Comprehensive Incorr
Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale
securities (dollars in thousands
Net realized gains (losses) on sale
$ 39,13t $ 8,34(  investment:
- 47,84t  Realized gain on deconsolidati
Net othe-than-temporary credit impairment
(34,916 (6,881) losses
$ 421¢ $ 49,30t  Income before income tax
- - Income taxes
$ 421¢ $ 49,30¢  Net of tax

12. Long Term Incentive Plan

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrittexk awards in the amount of 260,200 shares, &djdsr the 1-for5 split, to employees
FIDAC and its affiliates and the Company’s indepamdirectors. The awards to the independent direstested on the date of grant and the
awards to FIDAC’s employees vest quarterly oveeaqa of 10 years.

On February 2, 2015, the Company granted restrigttack awards in the amount of 84,700 shares tdaymes of FIDAC. The awards vest
annually over a period of two years.

The Company recognized stock based compensatiamegp of $36 thousands and $38 thousands for #rtecuiended June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively. For the six month ended Jur2805 and 2014 the stock based compensation expermse $468 thousands and $89
thousands, respectively. As of June 30, 2015 tvaseapproximately $1 million of total unrecognizsinpensation costs related to non-veste
share-based compensation arrangements grantedthedeng term incentive plan, based on the clopiiige of the shares at June 30, 2015.
That cost is expected to be recognized over a gh@fi@pproximately 3 years.
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13. Income Taxes

For the quarter ended June 30, 2015 and for theeyeled December 31, 2014, the Company was quitdibe taxed as a REIT under Code
Sections 856 through 860. As a REIT, the Compampisubject to federal income tax to the exteat thmakes qualifying distributions of
taxable income to its stockholders. To maintainlifjgation as a REIT, the Company must distributéeast 90% of its annual REIT taxable
income to its shareholders and meet certain o#wrirements such as assets it may hold, incomaytganerate and its shareholder
composition. It is generally the Company’s polioydistribute to its shareholders all of the Compsatgxable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renmg the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay igctax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, hawvelie subject to certain minimum
state and local tax filing fees and its TRS’s angject to federal, state, and local taxes. Thenewe significant income tax expenses for the
guarters and six months ended June 30, 2015 ant 201

In general, common stock cash dividends declaretid¥ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttazkholders for income tax purposes
From time to time, a portion of the Company’s dends may be characterized as capital gains omrefurapital.

The Company'’s effective tax rate differs from ignbined federal, state and city corporate statusxyate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€&ection 857(a).

The Company’s 2013, 2012 and 2011 federal, statdcmal tax returns remain open for examination.
14. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeelit risk and interest rate risk. The Comparguisject to interest rate risk in
connection with its investments in Agency MBS armhM\gency RMBS, residential mortgage loans, anddwangs under repurchase
agreements. When the Company assumes interesisigti attempts to minimize interest rate riskailigh asset selection, hedging and
matching the income earned on mortgage assetgheitbost of related liabilities. The Company atté&srip minimize credit risk through due
diligence and asset selection by purchasing loadsmwritten to agreed-upon specifications of selkariginators as well as on-going portfolio
monitoring. The Company has established a whole faeget market including prime and sub-prime beews, Alt-A documentation,
geographic diversification, owner-occupied propeatyd moderate loan-to-value ratios. These faei@sonsidered to be important indicators
of credit risk.

By using derivative instruments and repurchaseeageats, the Company is exposed to counterpartyt creldif counterparties to the contracts
do not perform as expected. If a counterparty tailserform on a derivative hedging instrument,@menpany’s counterparty credit risk is
equal to the amount reported as a derivative assit$ balance sheet to the extent that amountegbsceollateral obtained from the counterp
or, if in a net liability position, the extent taweh collateral posted exceeds the liability to ¢benterparty. The amounts reported as a
derivative asset/(liability) are derivative contiain a gain/(loss) position, and to the extenjettio master netting arrangements, net of
derivatives in a loss/(gain) position with the sasnanterparty and collateral received/(pledgedéfcounterparty fails to perform on a
repurchase agreement, the Company is exposea#ss &0 the extent that the fair value of collatpiatiged exceeds the liability to the
counterparty. The Company attempts to minimize tenparty credit risk by evaluating and monitorihg tounterparty’s credit, executing
master netting arrangements and obtaining collatnd executing contracts and agreements withiphelitounterparties to reduce exposure tc
a single counterparty, where appropriate.

Our repurchase agreements and derivative transadi®@ governed by underlying agreements that geedfair a right of setoff under master
netting arrangements, including in the event oadkfor in the event of bankruptcy of either pddyhe transactions. We present our assets al
liabilities subject to such arrangements on a astshin our consolidated statements of financiabi@n. The following table presents
information about our liabilities that are subjezsuch arrangements and can potentially be ofiseiur consolidated statements of financial
condition as of June 30, 2015 and December 31,.2014
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June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Amounts Not Offset wi

Financial
Gross Amounts  Net Amounts Assets (Liabilities) in the
Offset Offset Consolidated
Gross Amounts in the in the Statements of Financial
of Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Position
Statements of Statements of Cash Collateral
Assets Financial Financial Financial (Received) Net
(Liabilities) Position Position Instrument Pledged (1 Amount
Repurchase Agreemer $ (6,813,83) $ - % (6,813,83) $7,930,71 $ 7,100 $1,123,98
Interest Rate Sway (32,199 22,46t (9,739 10,91¢ 42 ,66¢ 43,85¢
Treasury Future 1,56¢ - 1,56¢ - 10,70( 12,26¢
Swaptions- Gross Liabilities (2,34¢) - (2,346 - - (2,346
Swaptions - Gross Assets 19,86: - 19,86: - - 19,86:
Total Liabilities $ (6,826,94) $ 22,46 $ (6,804,48) $7,94163 % 60,46¢ $1,197,62

(1) Included in other asse

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Amounts Not Offset wi

Financial
Gross Amounts Net Amounts Assets (Liabilities) in the
Offset Offset Consolidated
Gross Amount: in the in the Statements of Financial
of Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Position
Statements of Statements of Cash Collatera
Assets Financial Financial Financial (Received) Net
(Liabilities) Position Position Instrument Pledged (1 Amount
Repurchase Agreemer $ (8,455,38) $ - % (8,455,38) $9,309,731 $ - $ 854,35
Interest Rate Sway (113,59) 99,53¢ (14,067 19,34( 64,79¢ 70,07t
Treasury Future (7,227%) 7,221 - - 12,59¢ 12,59t
Mortgage Option: (77) - (77) - - (77)
Swaptions- Gross Liability (45) - (45) - - (45)
Swaptions - Gross Asset 2,88¢ - 2,88¢ - - 2,88¢
Total Liabilities $ (8,573,43) $ 106,76. $ (8,466,66) $9,329,07 $ 77,39 $ 939,80(

(1) Included in other asse
15. Management Agreement and Related Party Transaioins
Management Agreeme

On August 8, 2014, the management agreement wasdea@nd restated. Effective August 8, 2014, theagament fee was increased to
1.20% of gross stockholders’ equity from 0.75% mfsg stockholders’ equity. The Company incurred agament fee expenses of $10 million
and $6 million for each of the quarters ended Bhe2015 and 2014, respectively. The managemereenses for the six month ended June
30, 2015 and 2014 were $21 million and $12 milli@spectively.

The management agreement provides for a two yaargading August 7, 2016 and may be automaticalyewed for two year terms at each
anniversary date unless at least two-thirds ofrtlependent directors or the holders of a majafitthe outstanding shares of common stock
elects not to renew the agreement in their solereli®n and for any or no reason. Unless the manageagreement is terminated for “cause”
or FIDAC terminates the management agreementgirtient that the management agreement is terminateat renewed, the Company must
pay to FIDAC a termination fee equal to two timies dverage annual management fee, calculatedtis ehd of the most recently completed
fiscal quarter prior to the date of terminationDRIC will continue to provide services under the mgement agreement for a period not less
than 180 days from the date the Company deliversititice not to renew the management agreement.

The Company may also terminate the managementragregavith 30 days’ prior notice from the Compang®ard of Directors, without
payment of a termination fee, for cause or upohamnge of control of Annaly or FIDAC, each as defiie the management agreement. FIC
may terminate the management agreement if the Coyripecomes required to register as an investmenpany under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended, with such terrginateemed to occur immediately before such ewenthich case the Company would
not be required to pay a termination fee. FIDAC ralp decline to renew the management agreemgmtovyding the Company with 180-
day¢ written notice, in which case the Company would ®tequired to pay a termination fi
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The management agreement provides that FIDAC will gl past and future expenses that the Compatheohudit Committee of the
Company incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s actingrpolicy related to the application of GAAP te Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the
“Evaluation”); (2) restate the Company’s finangtdtements for the period covering 2008 throughl2dxla result of the Evaluation (the
“Restatement Filing”); and (3) investigate and ee& any shareholder derivative demands arising the Evaluation or the Restatement
Filing (the “Investigation”); provided, however,ahFIDAC'’s obligation to pay expenses applies dolgxpenses not paid by the Company’s
insurers under its insurance policies. Expensésisicbude, without limitation, fees and costs imed with respect to auditors, outside counsel
and consultants engaged by the Company or the Raifitmittee of the Company for the Evaluation, Rest@nt Filing and the Investigation.
The amount paid by FIDAC related to these expefsasach of the quarters ended June 30, 2015 abdl iB35 million and $2 million,
respectively, and is presented in the Consolid&tatkments of Operations and Comprehensive Incerix@ense recoveries from Manager.
The amount paid by FIDAC related to these expefesach of the six months ended June 30, 20126aad is $6 million and $3 million,
respectively.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC fortsascurred on the Company’s behalf under the mamagt agreement. In addition, the
management agreement permits FIDAC to require thragany to pay for it's pro rata portion of rentefghone, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses that FIDAC incurred in conneatith the Company’s operations.
These expenses are allocated between FIDAC ar@ddimpany based on the ratio of the Company’s prapodf gross assets compared to the
gross assets managed by FIDAC as calculated atgeecter end. FIDAC and the Company will modifysthilocation methodology, subject to
the approval of the Company’s Board of Directorthé allocation becomes inequitable (i.e., if ttPany becomes very highly leveraged
compared to FIDAC's other funds and accounts). muthe quarters and six months ended June 30, 2012014, reimbursements to FIDAC
were less than $1 million, respectively.

RCap

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an aidirétive services agreement with RCap Securities ["RCap”). RCap is a SEC-
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned sulsjddf Annaly that clears the Company’s securitiedes in return for normal and
customary fees that RCap charges for such senRteap may also provide brokerage services to thepgaay from time to time. During each
of the quarters and six months ended June 30, 20d2014, fees paid to RCAP were less than $1amjlliespectively.

16. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoiwedarious claims and legal actions arising indhginary course of business. In
connection with certain re-securitization transatsi engaged in by the Company, the Company hasbifgation under certain circumstances
to repurchase assets from the VIE upon breachrtdingepresentations and warranties. Managemertdtiaware of any contingencies that
require accrual or disclosure as of June 30, 20@5>ecember 31, 2014.

17. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to June 30, 2015, the Company exelitsseall option to retire securitized debt, coltalezed by loans held for investment with an
unpaid principal amount of $508 million at par.

Annaly and the Company agreed to terminate the genant agreement between FIDAC and the CompangtieeAugust 5, 2015. Effective
upon the termination of the management agreentemtCompany will become internally managed. In cetine with the internalization, the
Company entered into a transition services agreemiém FIDAC to continue to provide the Company hwitertain transition services related tc
business support through the end of the year. Noitation fee was paid by Chimera in connectiorhwiternalization.

In connection with the transaction, Annaly and @mpany entered into a share repurchase agreemneigmt to which the Company will

purchase approximately 9 million shares at an aggeeprice of $126 million. The share repurchaseeagent was entered into on August 5,
2015 and is expected to close on or about Augus?a1s.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financialdhdition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we™“our”) financial condition and results of operat®should be read in conjunction with the

consolidated financial statements and notes teetbtaements included in Item 1 of this quartegfyort on Form 10-Q. All per share amounts,
common shares outstanding and restricted sharésd@econd quarter of 2015 and all prior periefiect the Company's 1-for-5 reverse stock
split, which was effective April 6, 2015.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this replaat ire subject to risks and uncertainties. Thexseafrd-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” * ‘intend,” “should,” “may,” “would,”

“will” or similar expressions, we intend to idaft forward-looking statements. Statements regaydive following subjects, among others, are
forward-looking by their nature:

« our business and investment strategy;

« our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts and our ability to obtain future financingssxgements;
» our expectations regarding materiality or significe;

« the effectiveness of our disclosure controls amdgdures;

- material weaknesses in our internal controls owemicial reporting;

« inadequacy of or weakness in our internal conweks financial reporting of which we are not cuthgmware or which have not be
detected

« additional information that may arise from the @egtion of our financial statements;

« general volatility of the securities markets in @hive invest;

« the impact of and changes to various governmermrprs;

« our expected investments;

« changes in the value of our investments;

« interest rate mismatches between our investment®anborrowings used to finance such purchases;
« changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayaes r

« effects of interest rate caps on our adjustableiratestments;

» rates of default, delinquencies or decreased regaates on our investments;

« prepayments of the mortgage and other loans unidgrbur mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, oeo#ssebacked securities,
ABS;

- the degree to which our hedging strategies mayayr mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

- impact of and changes in governmental regulatitzoslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikters;
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- availability of investment opportunities in reatae-related and other securities;

« availability of qualified personnel;

» estimates relating to our ability to make distribos to our stockholders in the future;

« our understanding of our competition;

« market trends in our industry, interest ratesdblet securities markets or the general economy;

- our ability to maintain our classification as alrestate investment trust, or REIT, for federabime tax purposes; and

- our ability to maintain our exemption from regisioa under the Investment Company Act of 1940,rasraded, or 1940 Act.

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoulit place undue reliance on these forward-lookiatestents. These beliefs, assumptions ant
expectations can change as a result of many pessieints or factors, not all of which are knownigoSome of these factors are described
under the caption “Risk Factors” in our 2014 Fol®-K. If a change occurs, our business, finarmaldition, liquidity and results of
operations may vary materially from those expressedir forward-looking statements. Any forward-kamg statement speaks only as of the
date on which it is made. New risks and uncertagndirise from time to time, and it is impossibleus to predict those events or how they may
affect us. Except as required by law, we are nbyated to, and do not intend to, update or reaisg forward-looking statements, whether as :
result of new information, future events or othessvi

Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpeiabn November 21, 2007. We acquire, either tirex indirectly through our
subsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed secsritieRMBS, residential mortgage loans, commero@ltgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Bribetinternalization (as defined below) on Audas2015, we were externally managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, which wieré¢o as FIDAC or the Manager. FIDAC is a fixed:@me investment management
company that is registered as an investment adwittlerthe SEC. FIDAC is a wholly owned subsidiafyAmnaly Capital Management, Inc., or
Annaly. FIDAC has a broad range of experience imaging investments in Agency MBS, which are moréggpass-through certificates,
collateralized mortgage obligations, or CMOs, atitttoRMBS representing interests in or obligatibasked by pools of mortgage loans
issued or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie MacGamie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debligations, or CDOs, and other
real estate related investments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, jrifg through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achigng objective by investing in a diversified invegnt portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievandus other asset classes, subject to maintadundREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, C8/Bind CDOs we purchase may include investmentegaad non-investment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and noedralasses.

Prior to the Internalization, we relied on the Mgeds expertise in identifying assets within ougt asset classes. The Manager made
investment decisions based on various factorsydtey) expected cash yield, relative value, riskaat#jd returns, current and projected credit
fundamentals, current and projected macroeconoamsiderations, current and projected supply andateincredit and market risk
concentration limits, liquidity, cost of financirgnd financing availability, as well as maintainimgr REIT qualification and our exemption
from registration under the 1940 Act.

The Internalization

On August 5, 2015, we entered into agreementstéonalize the Company’s management (the “ Inteza#itn”). Prior to the Internalization,
we were managed by FIDAC pursuant to a managengeatement (the * Management Agreem@nPursuant to a transition services
agreement that we entered into with FIDAC on Audyst015 (the “Transition Serives Agreement”), wentinated the Management
Agreement, and we hired a number of employees fdyreenployed by FIDAC or its affiliates. In additipFIDAC will continue to provide us
a number of services previously provided undeMMia@agement Agreement at the same level, qualitytiamelframe until December 31, 2015,
at which time we have the option to extend the tefithe Transition Services Agreement for up t@éhone-month extension periods (the tern
of the Transition Services Agreement, including artensions, being referred to herein as the * T@rtdpon expiration of the Term, FIDAC
will not provide any further management serviceagoThe Transition Services Agreement providestfertransfer of certain information
technology equipment and software to the Compasyddscribed in the Transition Services AgreembaetQompany has extended offers of
employment to certain employees of FIDAC and ifgiaties, including certain of FIDAC'’s executivefifers. We had also been party to an
administrative services agreement (the “ AdmintsteaServices Agreemefi with RCap Securities, Inc. (* RCd}, a sister company of
FIDAC, pursuant to which RCap provided trade clegudnd brokerage services to us from time to tldraler the terms of the Transition
Services Agreement and in furtherance of the cotigpi@f the Internalization, the Management Agreetrand the Administrative Services
Agreement were both terminated without the paynoéany termination fee.

On August 5, 2015, we also entered into a shangrcbpse agreement (the “ Share Repurchase Agreémeith Annaly. Pursuant to the tern
of the Share Repurchase Agreement,we agreed tbgaeall of the 8,996,553 shares of our commorkstemed by Annaly for an aggreg:




purchase price of $126 million.

For a more complete description of the Internaliratind related agreements and matters, pleasetoedar Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on August 5, 2015.
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Asset Classes

Overtime, we may modify our investment allocatitrategy as market conditions change to seek tommiagithe returns from our investment
portfolio. Our targeted asset classes and theipahivestments we have made and in which we make future invest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS °

Residential Mortgage Loar °

Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and novestment grade classes, including the BB-
rated, E-rated or lower including nc¢-rated classe

Agency MBS, including securities backed by resi@ddr@nd commercial real este
Interes-only (“10”) MBS

Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansctiveform to the underwriting guidelines of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer to as Agencid@8ines; and jumbo prime mortgage loans,
which are mortgage loans that conform to the AgeBuaidelines except as to loan s

Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that h@se been originated using document:
standards that are less stringent than the docatn@mtstandards applied by certain other first
mortgage loan purchase programs, such as the Adeuitlelines, but have one or more compens
factors such as a borrower with a strong credihortgage history or significant ass

Seasoned sub-prime mortgage loans, which are ngarigans that may have been originated using
documentation standards that are less stringentghme mortgage loans and that have borrowers wr
have credit or mortgage history which would not triee standards for prime mortgage loans or Alt-A
mortgage loans

Mortgage loans collateralized by manufactured e-fabricated home:

Mortgage loans collateralized by second lien, hageity lines of credit, and other similar financ
arrangements

FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loans twhply with the underwriting guidelines of
Federal Housing Administration (FHA) or Departmenit Veteran Affairs (VA) and which a
guaranteed by the FHA or VA, respectiv

Mortgage servicing rights associated with residémtiortgage loans, which reflect the value of the

future stream of expected cash flows from the @mttral rights to service a given pool of residéntia
mortgage loans
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Commercial Mortgac e First or second lien loans secured by multifamiggerties, which are residential rental properties

Loans consisting of five or more dwelling units; and milkeesidential or other commercial properties; fetai
properties; office properties; or industrial prapes, which may or may not conform to the Agency
Guidelines

Other AsseBacke( e CMBS

Securities

e Debt and equity tranches of CD(

e Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgesde and non-investment grade classes,
including the BE-rated, E-rated, or lower including ne-rated classe!

e Loans collateralized by commercial real estatesdigassets and equipment that are part of the small
business administration certified development camgaogram

Hedging Instrument e Swaps
e Swaptions
e Futures
e Mortgage options
e Index options

We commenced operations in November 2007 and fogusvestment activities primarily on acquiringmNégency and Agency MBS and on
purchasing residential mortgage loans that have baginated by select originators, including te&ail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. At June 30, 2015, based on tleetesed cost balance of our interest earning asapfgroximately 42% of our investment
portfolio was Agency MBS, 22% of our investmenttfaio was Non-Agency RMBS, and 36% of our investringortfolio was securitized
residential mortgage loans. At December 31, 20&44eb on the amortized cost balance of our integesing assets, approximately 52% of oul
investment portfolio was Agency MBS, 16% of ouréstment portfolio was Non-Agency RMBS, and 32% wf iovestment portfolio was
securitized residential mortgage loans.

We have engaged in transactions with residentiatgage lending operations of leading commerciakband other originators in which we
identified and re-underwrote residential mortgaggnk owned by such entities, and purchased andtsasal such residential mortgage loans.
In the past we have also acquired formerly AAA-daon-Agency RMBS and immediately re-securitizeasthsecurities. We sold the
resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS and retaitteglrated or unrated mezzanine RMBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We expect to adjust
strategy to changing market conditions by shiftig asset allocations across these various asssted as interest rate and credit cycles ct
over time. We believe that our strategy will enaldeto pay dividends and achieve capital appreciatiroughout changing market cycles. We
expect to take a long-term view of assets andliiegs, and our reported earnings and estimatéiseofair value of our investments at the end o
a financial reporting period will not significantignpact our objective of providing attractive riakjusted returns to our stockholders over the
long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potertialns and to finance the acquisition of our as€2ws income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income wea@aour assets and the cost of our borrowingse¥gect to finance our investments using
a variety of financing sources including, when alae, repurchase agreements, warehouse factitidssecuritizations. We may manage our
debt and interest rate risk by utilizing interesderhedges, such as interest rate swaps, capsn®pind futures to reduce the effect of interest
rate fluctuations related to our financing sources.
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We have elected and believe we are organized areldpgerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedas a REIT under the Code. A REIT
generally will not be subject to federal income taxtaxable income that is distributed to stockbddFurthermore, substantially all of our
assets consist of qualified REIT real estate ageéthe type described in Code Section 856(c). ()¢ calculate that at least 75% of our asset:
were qualified REIT assets, as defined in the Cadaf June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. Wecalsolate that our revenues qualified
for the 75% REIT income test and for the 95% REIdome test for the quarters and six months endeel 30, 2015 and 2014. We also met al
REIT requirements regarding the ownership of oummmn stock and the distribution of our REIT taxableme. Therefore, as of June 30,
2015 and December 31, 2014, we believe that wefpabhs a REIT under the Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from regmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are reguio invest a substantial majority of our
assets in loans secured by mortgages on real estdteal estateelated assets. Subject to maintaining our REITifigegtion and our 1940 Ac
exemption, we do not have any limitations on th@ants we may invest in any of our targeted assessels.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentageun assets that will be invested in each asseisabr whether we will invest in other
classes of investments. We may change our investstrattegy and policies without a vote of our stumkers.

Net Income Summary

The table below presents our net income on a GA#gwstfor the quarters and six months ended Jun203®, and 2014.
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Net Income
(dollars in thousand:
(unaudited

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Month:
June 30, 201 June 30,201 June 30,201 June 30, 201

Net Interest Income:

Interest income (1 $ 215,80: $ 134,31t $ 458,94¢ $ 254,98!
Interest expense (. 66,04« 20,68( 126,50( 43,10¢
Net interest income (expens 149,76( 113,63t 332,44¢ 211,88
Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (2,209 (3,819 (3,260 (4,219
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (24,897 (1,539 (31,65¢€) (2,668
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (27,107 (5,349 (34,916 (6,887
Other Investment gains (losses)

Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 88,02¢ (22,497 92,08: (24,699
Realized gains (losses) on terminations of intawrgst swap: (31,129 - (99,709 -
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (16,777 (19,797 (58,867) (25,54()
Net gains (losses) on derivativ 40,12° (42,289 (66,487 (50,239
Net unrealized gains (losses) on financial instmimat fair value (37,260) 5,791 (47,685 20,80:
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investr 9,68¢ (4,339 39,25( 4,03¢
Gain on deconsolidatic - 47,84¢ - 47,84¢
Loss on extinguishment of De 5,07¢ - 5,07¢ (2,189
Total other gains (losse 17,63: 7,00¢ (69,839 20,26¢
Other expenses

Management fee 10,19¢ 6,271 20,52: 12,49:
Expense recoveries from Manay (4,652 (2,169 (5,765 (2,845
Net management fes 5,544 4,107 14,75 9,64
General and administrative expen 18,55¢ 6,424 29,70¢ 10,47¢
Total other expense 24,10 10,53: 44,46 20,12¢
Income before income taxes 116,18 104,76 183,22¢ 205,13¢
Income taxe: - - 1 2
Net income $ 116,18° $ 104,76¢ $ 183,22 $ 205,13

Net income per share available to common shareholde

Basic $ 057 $ 051 $ 08¢ $ 1.0C
Diluted $ 057 $ 051 $ 0.8¢ $ 1.0C
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin

Basic 205,492,08 205,441,79 205,509,78 205,447,12
Diluted 205,579,63 205,506,89 205,573,29 205,512,29

(1) Includes interest income of consolidated VIEs o900 and $85,262 for the quarters ended Jun20d® and 2014, respectively a
interest income of consolidated VIEs of $297,518 170,473 for the six months ended June 30, 26d%@14, respectivel
See Note 8 for further discussic

(2) Includes interest expense of consolidated VIES0f426 and $17,176 for the quarters ended Jun20d®, and 2014, respectively a
interest expense of consolidated VIEs of $97,1%D%8v,875 for the six months ended June 30, 20d26a04, respectivel
See Note 8 for further discussic

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.

Our net income increased by $11 million to $118iam| or $0.57 per average basic common shargh#guarter ended June 30, 2015 as
compared to $105 million, or $0.51 per averagedwesmmon share, for the quarter ended June 30, 20t4nterest income increased by $36
million or 32% for the quarter ended June 30, 2@h&n compared to the same period of 2014. Theaserin earnings for the quarter ended
June 30, 2015 over the same period of 2014 ibatable in part to a $40 million gain on derivasiier the quarter ended June 30, 2015,
compared to a loss of $42 million over the samépeasf 2014. This gain was offset in part by ameatized loss of $37 million on financial
instruments at fair value for the quarter endede B0y 2015 compared to a gain of $6 million for shene period of 2014. In addition, general
and administrative expenses increased by $13 mifimm $6 million for the quarter ended June 3@ 2 $19 million for the same period of
2015. During the second quarter of 2014, we redl& gain of $47 million related to the deconsaiaaof a previously consolidated VIE. We
did not deconsolidate any VIEs during the quarteteel June 30, 201



Our net income decreased by $22 million to $183anil or $0.89 per average basic common shareh®six months ended June 30, 2015 as
compared to $205 million, or $1.00 per averagedyednmon share, for the six months ended June@@l. Net interest income increased by
$120 million or 57% for the six months ended JuBeZ®15 when compared to the same period of 204, decrease in earnings for the six
months ended June 30, 2015 over the same perid@dldfis attributable in part to an unrealized los$48 million on financial instruments at
fair value for the six months ended June 30, 2@ibBpared to a gain of $21 million for the same pe0n62014. In addition, general and
administrative expenses increased by $20 milliomf610 million for the six months ended June 3Q,£2® $30 million for the same period of
2015. During the second quarter of 2014, we redle gain of $47 million related to the deconsdiaiaof a previously consolidated VIE. We
did not deconsolidate any VIEs during the six merghded June 30, 2015.
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We discuss the changes in our net income in greleteil in the discussion on our results of operatibelow.
Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &fteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the l@felur net interest income, the market value ofassets, and the supply of and demand for
such assets. Economic trends, both macro as weibae directly affecting the residential housinarket, and the supply and demand of
RMBS may affect our operations and financial resie also evaluate market information regardirmgeru residential mortgage loan
underwriting criteria and loan defaults to managemrtfolio of assets, leverage, and debt. Ouilintetest income, which reflects the
amortization of purchase premiums and accretiatisgfounts, varies primarily as a result of charigesterest rates, borrowing costs, credit
impairment losses, and prepayment speeds, whiimisasurement of how quickly borrowers pay dowrutiygaid principal balance on their
mortgage loans. Further description of these fadtoprovided below.

Prepayment SpeecPrepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constgmaytnent Rate, or CPR, vary according to interdssrdhe type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, anteotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @rtainty. In general, when interest rates
rise, it is relatively less attractive for borrowéo refinance their mortgage loans, and as atrggepayment speeds tend to decrease. When
interest rates fall, prepayment speeds tend tease. For mortgage loan and RMBS investments peednat a premium, as prepayment sp
increase, the amount of income we earn decreaghs gsirchase premium on the bonds amortizes féstarexpected. Conversely, decreases
in prepayment speeds result in increased incomeamaxtend the period over which we amortize tivelase premium. For mortgage loan
and RMBS investments purchased at a discount,egmpment speeds increase, the amount of incomammwarereases from the acceleration
of the accretion of the discount into interest meo Conversely, decreases in prepayment speedsinedacreased income as the accretion of
the purchase discount into interest income occues a longer period. The correlation between irsterates and prepayment may not always
follow normal trends for certain asset classes. @usEconomic hardship, some borrowers may be unabigfinance their loans as underwrit
standards are more stringent and credit conditiemsin restrictive.

Rising Interest Rate EnvironmeAs indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayspeeds generally decrease. Rising interes, rate
however, increase our financing costs which mayltés a net negative impact on our net interesbme. In addition, if we acquire Agency
MBS and Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monttdget adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and tlanee five-year hybrid ARMs, such
interest rate increases could result in decreasesrinet investment income, as the increase iradjuistable rate assets may increase slower
than our adjustable rate financing. We expectdhbafiixed-rate assets would decline in value ifsig interest rate environment and that our
net interest spreads on fixed rate assets coulthdén a rising interest rate environment to tleeat such assets are financed with floating rat
debt.

Falling Interest Rate EnvironmerAs indicated above, as interest rates fall, premtrapeeds generally increase. Falling interessyat
however, decrease our financing costs which mayltrisa net positive impact on our net interesime. The company attempts to mitigate
some of the risk of falling interest rates by usiimigrest rate derivative hedges such as swapsghiind options that are designed to increase
in value if interest rates rise. When interestgdtdl, the value of such interest rate derivatigts® fall in value as the risk the derivative is
designed to hedge is lower. We expect our inteststhedges to lose value in a falling interes esivironment and reduce net income.

Credit Risk.One of our strategic focuses is on acquiring disied Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradedibec# defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiirch RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a prich that its lossdjusted return profi

is in line with our targeted yields. We retain tigk of potential credit losses on all of the resitial mortgage loans we hold in our portfolio as
well as all of the Non-Agency MBS. We attempt tdigdte credit risk in the asset selection procBssr to the purchase of investments, we
conduct a credit-risk based analysis of the coldtgecuring our investment that includes examifiagower characteristics, geographic
concentrations, current and projected delinquencigsent and projected severities, and actualeapected prepayment speeds among other
characteristics to estimate expected losses. Véeaalguire assets which we believe to be of higtitopality.
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Size of Investment Portfolidhe size of our investment portfolio, as measunethb aggregate unpaid principal balance of ourtgagre loans
and aggregate principal balance of our mortgagaeelsecurities and the other assets we own,asadtey revenue driver. Generally, as the
size of our investment portfolio grows, the amoofninterest income we receive increases. The larg@stment portfolio, however, may result
in increased expenses if we incur additional irteegpense to finance the purchase of our assets.

Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Valu

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotatas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios base
on GAAP book value. The table and discussion bedmsent our estimated economic book value. We lzdécand disclose this non-GAAP
measurement because we believe it representsiarasbf the fair value of the assets we own oraéte to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. The estimated economic book value shoatithe viewed in isolation and is not a substifatebook value computed in accordance
with GAAP.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securittratand re-securitization transactions where we lietermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeztads the trusts, which issue tranches of semdrsabordinate notes or certificates. We sell th
senior tranches and therefore have no continuingiement in these trusts other than being a halfleotes or certificates issued by the trt
with the same rights as other holders of the note®rtificates. However, with respect to certaiE¥ collateralized by loans held for
investment, we have the ability to approve loan ifications and determine the course of action téaben as it relates to loans in technical
default, including whether or not to proceed withefclosure. The notes and certificates we ownwieat issued by the trusts are largely
subordinated interests in those trusts. The theste no recourse to our assets other than purtuartireach by us of the transaction docurr
related to the transfer of the assets by us tartfs¢s, but are presented as if we own 100% ofrtiss.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan sézafions, we present the psecuritized assets transferred into the consolidatrsts in ou
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as-Ngency or Securitized loans held for investm@uaist securitization RMBS assets sold
are presented as liabilities in our Consolidatedebtents of Financial Condition as Securitized detitateralized by Non-Agency RMBS and
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifeestment. We have presented the underlying sezsinve transferred to the trusts for the
calculation of GAAP book value at fair value andowled the corresponding liability for the notegertificates sold to third parties at
amortized cost or fair value. Fair value adjustraehat are not credit related are recorded in Gtbemprehensive income. Credit related
impairments are deemed other-than-temporary anceaoeded in earnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into thegruge also present our estimated
economic book value. We believe this measure repteghe estimated value of the securities issydldse trusts that we own. In contrast to
GAAP book value, our estimated economic book valugsiders only the assets we own or are able pwsiésof, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. To determine our estimated economic lvahke, we consider only the fair value of the natesertificates issued by the
securitization and re-securitization trusts thatagually own. Accordingly, our estimated econobmok value does not include assets or
liabilities for which we have no direct ownershgpecifically the notes or certificates of the sé@@ation and re-securitization trusts that were
sold to third parties.

At June 30, 2015, the difference between GAAP baalkke and estimated economic book value was detedrd be $245 million, or $1.20
per share. At December 31, 2014, the differencerdsmt GAAP book value and estimated economic bobalevaas determined to be $336
million, or $1.65 per share. This difference iswymarily driven by the value of the RMBS assets weeh@tained in these re-securitization
transactions as compared to the value of conselidatins and securities net of RMBS assets sotdrdated as a secured financing on the
statement of financial condition. In these re-sitization transactions, we have generally retaithedsubordinated, typically non-rated, first
loss notes or certificates issued by the secutibizdrusts. These securities are complex, typidaltked out as to principal repayment,
relatively illiquid, and do not necessarily appegeior depreciate in tandem with the broader Noanty RMBS market or with the loans on
securities owned by the trusts. As the senior npagsoff, we expect the difference between our endn and our GAAP book value to
decrease. The tables below present the adjustie@®AAP book value that we believe are necessaagamuately reflect our calculation of
estimated economic book value as of June 30, 20d Dacember 31, 2014.
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June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

GAAP Book Value $ 3,440,06!
GAAP Book Value per Shai $ 16.7:
Economic Adjustments

Assets of Consolidated VIE (7,547,57)
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VI 4,890,48!
Interests in VIESs eliminated in consolidati 2,411,74!
Total Adjustment:- Net (245,33
Total Adjustment- Net (per share 1.1¢
Economic Book Valus $ 3,194,722
Economic Book Value per Sha $ 15.5¢

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

GAAP Book Value $ 3,607,69
GAAP Book Value per Shai $ 17.5¢
Economic Adjustments

Assets of Consolidated VIE (7,798,79)
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VI 5,095,27:
Interests in VIEs eliminated in consolidati 2,367,95:
Total Adjustment:- Net (335,567
Total Adjustment- Net (per share 1.6F
Economic Book Valus $ 3,272,122
Economic Book Value per Sha $ 15.9(

Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as ofddnp in time and subject to significant
judgment, primarily the estimate of the fair vahfeéhe securities issued by the trusts which we anah can freely sell or pledge. Should we
the assets in our portfolio, we may realize maligriifferent proceeds from the sale than we hasteveated as of the reporting date.

The calculation of estimated economic book valuscdbed above is used by management to underdtarfdit value of the assets we own anc
the liabilities for which we are legally obligateahd is presented for informational use only. Tétengated economic book value should not be
viewed in isolation and is not a substitute for bealue computed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, on an ggtgdasis, we purchased $1.6 billion of investsgis, sold $2.3 billion of invested assets,
and received $628 million in principal paymentatetl to our Agency and Non-Agency RMBS. In additiea used $582 million of proceeds
received from principal and interest on our investis to repay principal on our securitized debt.

The following table summarizes certain charactessaf our portfolio at June 30, 2015 and Decen®igr2014.

54




December 31,

June 30, 201 2014
Interest earning assets at pe-end (1) $ 15,444,54 $ 17,170,99
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 11,704,322 $ 13,550,65
Leverage at peric-end 3.4:1 3.8:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 2.1:1 2.6:1
Portfolio Composition, at amortized cc
Non-Agency RMBS 10.1% 5.1%
Senior 4.C% 1.5%
Senior, interest onl 2.0% 1.4%
Subordinatet 4.0% 2.2%
Subordinated, interest on 0.1% 0.1%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 10.€% 10.2%
Agency MBS 43.7% 52.1%
Residentia 37.(% 50.%%
Commercial 4.7% N/A
Interes-only 2.1% 1.2%
Securitized loans held for investme 35.4% 32.5%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 84.5% 92.5%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 15.5% 7.5%
Annualized yield on average interest earning adeetfie
year ende! 6.2% 6.€%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed fifodshe
year ended (2 2.4% 2.5%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
(2) Includes the effect of realized losses on ggerate
swaps.

The following table presents details of each aslgests in our portfolio at June 30, 2015 and Decer8the2014. The principal or notional value
represents the interest income earning balanceaf €ass. The weighted average figures are weldhteeach investment’s respective
principal/notional value in the asset class.

June 30, 201
Principal
or Weightec
Notional Weightec Weightec  Average Principal
Value at Weightec Average Average 12 Weightec Writedown:
Period- Average Weightec Yieldat 3 Month Month Weighted  Average  Weighted During
End  Amortizec Average Weightec  Period- CPRat CPRat Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Fair  Average End Period-  Period- Delinquenc  Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemel thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 842,66: % 69.4¢$ 74.2: 1.5% 5.C% 10.7% 9.€% 29.4% 64.2% 11.%$ 2,69:
Senior, interest onl $6,328,40° $ 455 8% 4.21 1.5% 11.2% 14.2% 12.%% 20.€% 53.2% 0.C% $ -
Subordinater $ 998,10¢ $ 58.0¢ $ 69.2¢ 3.2% 7.5% 15.6% 15.6% 16.2% 42.%% 10.% $ 4,74
Subordinated, interest on $ 300,32 $ 57:% 5.0C 1.2% 10.€% 14.1% 10.€% 15.8% 46.8% 0.(%$ -
RMBS transferred to consolidat
VIEs $2,951,300 $ 5291$% 79.2¢ 4.5% 21.2% 12.2% 10.8% 21.% 61.2% 1.2%$ 25,02¢
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Residentia $5,086,01' $ 105.2¢ $ 104.8¢ 3.% 3.2% 16.7% 14.% NA NA NA $ =
Commercia $ 660,43t $ 101.9¢ $ 101.0¢ 3.4% 2.6% 0.C% 5.4% NA NA NA $ -
Interes-only $6,761,111 $ 4.4.$ 43¢ 0.€% 3.7% 9.4% 9.4% NA NA NA $ -
Securitized loan $5,144,60. $ 99.5¢ $ 101.5] 6.€% 4.% 10.$% 9.C% 7.€% 47.6% 37.1%$ 7,101
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weighteeefage Yield is calculated using each investm:
respective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to dalieing widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss
etc.)
December 31, 201
Principal
or Weightec
Notional Weightec Weightec  Average Principal
Value at Average Average 12 Weightec Writedown:
Period- Weightec Weightec Yieldat 3 Month Month Weighted  Average  Weighted During
End Average Average Weightec  Period- CPRat CPRat Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Amortizec  Fair  Average End Period-  Period- Delinquenc  Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemel thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 34495 % 703($ 77.9¢ 2.2% 6.1% 10.8% 11.€% 30.£% 68.6% 10.9%$ 2,19(
Senior, interest onl $5,178,73 $ 43z$% 3.87 1.6% 13.9% 12.2% 13.(% 21.2% 51.6% 0.(% $ -
Subordinater $ 690,59¢$ 50.1¢ $ 65.7¢ 3.1% 10.€% 13.9% 14.¢% 15.8% 45.5% 11.7% $ 5,66¢



Subordinated, interest on $ 216,40 $ 44: % 3.14 0.€% 9.2% 7.(% 11.5% 13.5% 46.1% 0.(%$ -
RMBS transferred to consolidat

VIEs $3,133,611 $ 53.51$% 80.0¢ 4.5% 17.8% 10.2% 10.7% 21.% 59.5% 1.2%$ 25,60!
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie

Residentia $7,774,261 $ 104.9¢ $ 106.1¢ 4.C% 3.2% 9.7% 10.6% NA NA NA $ -
Interes-only $3,884,52: $ 48¢$ 4.7¢ 0.% 3.1% 11.7% 9.5% NA NA NA 8 -
Securitized loan $5,241,100 $ 99.1: $ 101.7¢ 6.€% 6.3% 9.8% 8.2% 10.2% 46.(% 36.5% $ 3,64:

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weighteeefage Yield is calculated using each investment's
respective amortized co:

(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss
etc.)

Based on the projected cash flows for our Marency RMBS that are not of high credit qualitypartion of the original purchase discour
designated as Accretable Discount, which reflduspurchase discount expected to be accretedntgest income, and a portion is design
as NonAccretable Difference, which represents the comwicprincipal on the security that is not expectedbe collected. The amol
designated as NoAecretable Difference may be adjusted over timsgbaon the actual performance of the securityyriderlying collatera
actual and projected cash flow from such collafegabnomic conditions and other factors. If thefgranance of a security is more favore
than previously estimated, a portion of the amaiegignated as NoAecretable Difference may be accreted into intenesbme over time
Conversely, if the performance of a security is l&s/orable than previously estimated, the amodesignated as NoAecretable Differenc
may increase, resulting in an OTTI loss.
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The following table presents changes to Accret&lideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it peddb our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts dutihmgprevious five quarters.

For the Quarters Ende
December 3: September 3
June 30,201  March 31, 201 201¢ 201¢ June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Accretable Discour

Balance, beginning of peric $ 990,33 $ 987,86. $ 977,04. $ 951,30! $ 990,20:
Accretion of discoun (41,309 (44,35() (44,165 (39,06) (42,107
Purchase 28,89 80,71: 2,63¢ 126,75 (6,777)
Sales and deconsolidati (1,459 (29,14°) (1,977 (66,167) (669)
Transfers from (to) credit reserve, | 59,02¢ (4,749 54,32¢ 4,20¢ 10,64¢
Balance, end of peric $ 1,03549; $ 990,33 $ 987,86. $ 977,04. $ 951,30!
For the Quarters Ende
December 3: September 3
June 30,201  March 31, 201 201¢ 201¢ June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:
Non-Accretable Differenc:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 947,20. $ 908,92° $ 933,66¢ $ 1,046,51! $ 1,171,123
Principal Writedown: (34,267 (39,959 (37,049 (81,289 (41,159
Purchase 121,25: 80,71: 2,63¢ 126,75: (6,777)
Sales and deconsolidati (709 (15,047 - (156,099 (71,389
Net othe-than-temporary credit

impairment losse 27,10 7,81t 63,99: 1,99( 5,34
Transfers to (from) credit reser (59,02¢) 4,744 (54,325 (4,20¢) (10,64¢)
Balance, end of peric $ 1,001,56/ $ 947,20. $ 908,92 $ 933,66¢ $ 1,046,51!

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our financial statements in accordaritteagcounting principles generally accepted inlinted States, or GAAP, which requires
the use of estimates and assumptions. Managemeuisassed and reviewed the development, seleetnshdisclosure of critical accounting
estimates with the Company’s Audit Committee. Maragnt believes that the most critical accountinicigs and estimates, since these
estimates require significant judgment, are intaéreome and other-than-temporary impairment, ofQ®n Non-Agency RMBS, the
determination of the appropriate accounting modeNon-Agency RMBS, the impact of default and psepant assumptions on RMBS, and
fair value measurements. Financial results coulohbterially different if other methodologies wersed or if management modified its
assumptions.

For a discussion of the Company’s critical accoumpolicies and estimates, see “Critical Accounfdudicies and Estimates” in Part Il, Iltem 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations” included i@ @ompany’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Refer to Note 2(p) in the Notes to ConsolidatechRmal Statements for a discussion of accountindagce recently adopted by the Company
or expected to be adopted by the Company in thedut

Results of Operations for the Quarters Ended June@ 2015 and 2014

Our primary source of income is interest incomaedron our assets. Our economic net interest in@muals interest income excluding
interest earned on cash and cash equivalentsiesest expense and realized losses on our intateshedges.
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Interest Income

Interest income increased by $81 million, or 60845215 million for the quarter ended June 30, 204 $134 million for the same period of
2014. The increase is primarily due to the acqoisibf seasoned sub-prime residential mortgageslaathe second half of 2014 and the
second quarter of 2015. Seasoned@utne residential mortgage loans contributed $78aniof interest income during the quarter endede
30, 2015.

Interest income increased by $203 million, or 8884458 million for the six months ended June 3,2from $255 million for the same
period of 2014. The increase is primarily due ® dlequisition of seasoned sub-prime residentiatgage loans in the second half of 2014 anc
the second quarter of 2015. Seasoned sub-prirtengisl mortgage loans contributed $145 milliorirdérest income during the six months
ended June 30, 2015. In addition, we significaimtyeased agency holdings which contributed aritiaddl $67 million in interest income
during the six months ended June 30, 2015 when aoedo the same period of 2014.

Interest Expenst

Interest expense increased by $42 million, or 1689875 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2@t $33 million for the same period of
2014. The increase is primarily due to increaséet@st expense of $38 million on our securitizelt dellateralized by seasoned sub-prime

residential mortgage loans due to the financingdddr the acquisition of seasoned subme residential mortgage loans during the sedtif

of 2014 and the second quarter of 2015.

Interest expense increased by $90 million, or 148%$,151 million for the six months ended JuneZ,5 from $61 million for the same
period of 2014. The increase is primarily due wréased interest expense of $70 million on ourritered debt collateralized by seasoned sub
prime residential mortgage loans due to the fimragneidded for the acquisition of seasoned sub-présieential mortgage loans during the
second half of 2014 and the second quarter of 20it&rest expense on repurchase agreements irdrbgsb24 million during the six months
ended June 30, 2015 when compared to the samel ér®14.

Net Economic Interest Incom

Our economic net interest income equals intergsinTe, less interest expense and realized lossesranterest rate swaps. For the purpose of
computing economic net interest income and ragéaing to cost of funds measures throughout #nisien, interest expense includes net
payments on our interest rate swaps, which is ptedeas a part of Realized gains (losses) on d&r@gin our Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. Interesswdps are used to manage the increase in intexielsbp repurchase agreements in a risin
rate environment. Presenting the net contracttefést payments on interest rate swaps with tieeast paid on interest-bearing liabilities
reflects our total contractual interest payments. Wlieve this presentation is useful to invesb@sause this presentation depicts the econom
value of our investment strategy, by showing acitu@irest expense and net interest income. Wheleated, interest expense, including
interest payments on interest rate swaps, is egfdo as economic interest expense. Where indicagdnterest income reflecting interest
payments on interest rate swaps, is referred exz@asomic net interest income.

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAkeasurements reflected in the Management's Bignuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Add: Net Less: Net
Realized Realized
Losses on GAAP Net  Losseson Economic
GAAP GAAP Interest Economic Interest Net
Interest Interest Rate Interest Interest Rate Interest
Income Expense Swaps Expense Income Swaps Income (1
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 215800 $ 66,04« $ 903( $ 7507: $ 149,76( $ 9,03C $ 140,17
For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 243,14! $ 6045¢ $ 1516¢ $ 7562 $ 182,68¢ $ 15,16¢ $ 167,20.
For the Quarter Ended December 31,2 $ 24245 $ 6579« $ 1767¢ $ 8347. $ 17666. $ 17,67¢ $ 158,97.
For the Quarter Ended September 30,z $ 190,35 $ 38,88« $ 17,13 $ 56,01¢ $ 151,46¢ $ 17,13: $ 134,33
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 13431¢ $ 20,68( $ 1206 $ 32,74 $ 113,63t $ 12,06: $ 101,57
(1) Excludes interest income on cash and cash
equivalents
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Net Interest Rate Sprea

The following table shows our average earning adselt, interest earned on assets, yield on avénégrest earning assets, average debt
balance, economic interest expense, economic avea of funds, economic net interest income,retdnterest rate spread for the periods
presented.

For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Average Average  Average Average
Balance Interest  Yield/Cost Balance Interest  Yield/Cost
Assets:
Interes-earning assets (1
Agency RMBS $ 6,360,73¢ $ 44,82: 2.8% $3,351,22! $ 29,21} 3.5%
Non-Agency RMBS 1,322,21. 25,65 7.6% 829,49( 19,83¢ 9.€%
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V. 1,593,97. 68,88 17.2% 1,934,64 76,89¢ 15.%
Jumbo Prime securitized residential mortgage loa
held for investmen 559,15( 6,25( 4.5% 740,12: 8,36¢ 4.5%
Seasoned sub-prime securitized residential mortc
loans held for investme 4,518,89 71,76¢ 6.4% - - 0.C%
Total $14,354,96 $217,37. 6.1% $6,855,47 $134,31- 7.8%
Liabilities and stockholders' equit
Interes-bearing liabilities
Agency repurchase agreements $ 5,395,79! $ 16,58( 1.2% $2,883,89. $ 14,78¢ 2.1%
Non-Agency repurchase agreeme 1,508,72. 8,06¢ 2.1% 170,84« 777 1.8%
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency
RMBS 648,43 9,21¢ 5.7% 807,911 10,86 5.4%
Securitized debt, collateralized by jumbo prime
residential mortgage loal 447,97! 5,157 4.€% 620,92: 6,311 4.1%
Securitized debt, collateralized by seasoned sub-
prime residential mortgage loa 3,799,06! 36,05( 3.&% - - -
Total $11,799,99 $ 75,07 2.5% $4,483,57. $ 32,74: 2.9%
Net economic interest income/net interest rate spael $142,29¢ 3.€% $101,57: 4.2%
Net interest-earning assets/net interest margit $ 2,554,97. 4.0%  $2,371,90! 5.9%
Ratio of interesi-earning assets to interest bearin
liabilities 1.22 1.5Z
(1) Interes-earning assets at amortized c
(2) Interest includes cash paid on sw
For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Average Average  Average Average
Balance Interest  Yield/Cost Balance Interest  Yield/Cost
Assets:
Interes-earning assets (1
Agency RMBS $ 6,971,45¢ $112,60 3.2% $2,647,221 $ 45,25; 3.4%
Non-Agency RMBS 1,155,601 50,07* 8.7% 795,32 39,24" 9.9%
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V. 1,613,822 137,06¢ 17.(% 1,981,63 154,30¢ 15.€%
Jumbo Prime securitized residential mortgage loa
held for investmen 583,89t 14,25 4.% 757,59 16,16¢ 4.2%
Seasoned sub-prime securitized residential mortg
loans held for investme 4,530,45! 146,19¢ 6.5% - - -
Total $14,855,24 $460,19! 6.2% $6,181,78. $254,97 8.3%

Liabilities and stockholders' equit
Interes-bearing liabilities
Agency repurchase agreements $ 6,292,25 $ 39,24( 1.2% $2,273,02. $ 22,16« 2.C%
Non-Agency repurchase agreeme 1,313,78 14,27¢ 2.2% 86,37 777 1.8%




Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency

RMBS 667,26 17,16¢ 5.1% 849,85 26,01¢ 6.1%
Securitized debt, collateralized by jumbo prime
residential mortgage loal 472,64¢ 10,49¢ 4.4% 637,27" 11,85¢ 3.7%
Securitized debt, collateralized by seasoned sub-
prime residential mortgage loa 3,822,16! 69,51¢ 3.€% - - 0.C%
Total $12,568,11 $150,69 2.4% $3,846,52. $ 60,81¢ 3.2%
Net economic interest income/net interest rate spael $ 309,50: 3.£% $194,16: 5.1%
Net interest-earning assets/net interest margin $ 2,287,12. 4.2%  $2,335,26 6.2%
Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest bearm
liabilities 1.1¢ 1.61

(1) Interes-earning assets at amortized c
(2) Interest includes cash paid on sw
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Net Economic Interest Income and the Average EargiAsset:

Our economic net interest income increased by $8&m or 38%, to $140 million for the quarter eswtlJune 30, 2015 from $101 million for
the same period of 2014. Our economic net inténesime increased by $113 million, or 58%, to $30llion for the quarter ended June 30,
2015 from $194 million for the same period of 2013ur net interest rate spread, which equals thlel yin our average assets less the ecor
average cost of funds decreased by 140 basis idtd 30 basis points for the quarter and six nwatided June 30, 2015 as compared to th
same period of 2014. The net interest margin, whipals the net economic interest income as a pge of the net average balance of our
interest-earning assets less our interest-beadhbdities, decreased by 190 basis points and 2Histpoints for the quarter and six months
ended June 30, 2015 as compared to the same jpé268d 4. Our net interest margin declined due deeline in the total average yield on our
interest-earning assets which was not fully offsethe decline in our average cost of funds. Théf@io has experienced significant changes
from the same period for the prior year as we haseased our average Agency RMBS and securitizaas! held for investment and our Non-
Agency RMBS has declined as a percentage of taépottfolio. These changes have increased ourdgeg resulting in lower net interest rate
spreads, but higher total interest income.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Fur

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typaaliglated to LIBOR and the term of the
financing. The table below shows our average boebfunds, economic interest expense, average tastds (inclusive of realized losses on
interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBOR a@eesix-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR rekatb average six-month LIBOR,
and average cost of funds relative to average ame-six- month LIBOR.

Average
One-
Month Average Average
LIBOR Cost Cost
Relative of Funds  of Funds
to Relative tc  Relative t(
Average Average  Average Average Average
Average  Economic Average One- Six- Six-Month One- Six-Month
Debt Interest Cost Month Month Month
Balance Expense (1 of Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended June 30,

2015 $11,799,99 $ 75,07« 2.5(% 0.1&% 0.42% (0.24%) 2.32% 2.08%
For The Quarter Ended March 3:

2015 $13,311,29 $ 75,62 2.271% 0.17% 0.38% (0.21%) 2.1% 1.89%
For The Quarter Ended Decemb

31, 2014 $13,336,71 $ 83,47 2.5(% 0.16% 0.32% (0.17%) 2.35% 2.17%
For The Quarter Ended Septemt

30, 2014 $10,351,25 $ 56,01¢ 2.16% 0.15% 0.32% (0.179%) 2.01% 1.84%
For The Quarter Ended June 30,

2014 $ 4,483,57. $ 32,74 2.92% 0.15% 0.32% (0.17%) 2.71% 2.6(%
(1) Includes effect of realized losses on intere

rate swaps

Average interest-bearing liabilities increased By3%billion, for the quarter ended June 30, 201Bamspared to the same period of 2014.
Economic interest expense increased by $42 milfarthe quarter ended June 30, 2015 as compartbe ame period of 2014. The increase
in average interest-bearing liabilities is a resflthe increase in leverage from repurchase agegatnand securitized debt entered into since
June 30, 2014, offset by declines in our secudtidebt collateralized by NoAgency RMBS. The additional financing was usechtréase oL
Agency RMBS and secured residential mortgage lo@nsinterest expense has increased due to theaigein average interest-bearing
liabilities.

Average interest-bearing liabilities increased By7$billion, for the six months ended June 30, 2845ompared to the same period of 2014.
Economic interest expense increased by $90 milfanthe six months ended June 30, 2015 as compartkeé same period of 2014. The
increase in average interest-bearing liabilities issult of the increase in leverage from repisetegreements and securitized debt entered in
since June 30, 2014, offset by declines in ourriticed debt collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS. Tduiditional financing was used to
increase our Agency RMBS and secured residentialgage loans. Our interest expense has increasetbdhe increase in average interest-
bearing liabilities.

Contributing to the overall increased economicriedéexpense are higher interest rates. Averagenomth and six month LIBOR were up ¢

basis point and four basis points, respectivelyhésecond quarter of 2015 as compared to 2014eWhk do acquire interest rate hedges to
mitigate changes in interest rate risks, the hedggsnot fully offset interest expense movements.
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Net other~than-temporary credit impairment losses

OTTI losses are generated when fair values debkh@v our amortized cost basis, an unrealized brs3 the expected future cash flows
decline from prior periods, an adverse change. Wamennrealized loss and an adverse change in loagh dccur, we will recognize an OTTI
loss in earnings. In addition, if we intend to sefiecurity, or believe we will be required to seflecurity in an unrealized loss position, we will
recognize an OTTI loss in earnings equal to thealired loss.

OTTI losses were $27 million and $5 million for thearters ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respgcand|$35 million and $7 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, resplct¥ethese amounts, $22 million and $4 milliontbé OTTI for the quarter ended June
2015 was related to securities included in our obieated VIEs and $29 million and $4 million of tR&' Tl for the six months ended June 30,
2015 was related to securities included in our obidated VIEs. As of June 30, 2015, we had sevenagency RMBS securities subject to
OTTI in an unrealized loss position totaling leisart $1 million for which we did not recognize impaént. We intend to hold these securities
until they recover their amortized cost. We congito monitor our investment portfolio and will redan OTTI for all investments in an
unrealized loss position for which we do not betieve will recover our amortized cost prior to majuor sale.

Net gains (losses) on derivativ
The table below shows a summary of our net gassflon derivative instruments, for the quarterssentune 30, 2015 and 2014.

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Periodic interest cost of interest rate swaps, ne $ (9,030 $ (12,06) $ (24,199 $ (17,717

Realized gain (loss) on derivative instruments,

Mortgage Option: 31 1,05(C 443 1,65:%
Treasury Future (7,779 (8,78)) (35,230) (9,482
Swaptions - - 144 -
Other Derivative Assel - - (21) -
Swaps - Terminations (31,129 - (99,707) -
Total realized gain (loss) on derivative
instruments, net (38,877) (7,737) (134,36 (7,829
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, |
Interest Rate Sway 70,26¢ (19,839 80,22¢ (15,769
Mortgage Option: 1 3,59 22t 4,33¢
Treasury Future 13,70« (6,25€) 8,79¢ (13,265
Swaptions 4,054 - 2,83: -
Total unrealized gain (loss) on derivative
instruments, net: 88,02¢ (22,497 92,08: (24,695

Total gain (loss) on derivative instruments, net $ 40,127 $ (42,289 $ (66,489 $ (50,235

Our derivative portfolio primarily includes intetaste swaps, swaptions, Treasury futures, andgagé options. During the quarter and six
months ended June 30, 2015, we terminated intexesswap agreements with a notional value of $60ilon and $1.2 billion,

respectively. In addition, during the quarter andmonths ended June 30, 2015, swaps with a rati@ue of $300 million and $800 million
matured. These terminations and maturities weeebby an additional $2.5 billion and $2.7 billiohswaps and swaptions added during the
guarter and six months ended June 30, 2015. Dthimgecond quarter of 2015, we did not changd ceasury future net positions. During
the six months ended June 30, 2015, we reducedreasury positions by $390 million of notional. alges in our derivative positions were a
result of changes in the portfolio composition @hdnges in interest rates.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, we recedmizalized losses on derivatives of $17 milliompared to realized losses of $20 million
for the same period of 2014. During the six momthded June 30, 2015, we recognized realized lassderivatives of $58 million compared
to realized losses of $26 million for the same geof 2014. Realized losses include the net caghgral received on our interest rate swaps
during the period as well as sales and settlentéraar Treasury futures and mortgage options, maduding amounts paid to terminate our
derivative positions. Realized gains and lossesii®isecond quarter of 2015 includes the paymes68fmillion to terminate interest rate
swaps.
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Unrealized gains and losses include the changaikenhvalue, period over period, on our derivatipedfolio. Changes in the unrealized g:
and losses of our derivatives portfolio are gemgiEfset by net changes in our investment portfolVe may or may not ultimately realize
these unrealized derivative gains and losses dépgod trade activity, changes in interest ratabthe values of the underlying securities.
Total unrealized gains during the quarter and sixtins ended June 30, 2015 was $88 million and #B@m an increase of $110 million and
$117 million from unrealized losses of $22 milliand $25 million for the same periods of 2014.

Our interest rate swaps are primarily used to ecocally hedge the effects of changes in interetstsran our portfolio specifically our floating
rate debt. Therefore, we included the periodicragecosts of the interest rate swaps for the gusaended June 30, 2015 and 2014 on these
economic hedges in our presentation of economimteriest income and our net interest spreads. @édawnot account for these as hedges for
GAAP presentation, we present these gains anddaggmrately in the consolidated statements ofatipas and comprehensive income. The
increase in the net periodic interest cost of therest rate swaps are primarily due to declineéstarest rates year over year as we pay a fixed
rate on our interest rate swaps and are receivioger floating rate.

Treasury futures are not included in our economiierest expense and economic net interest incoraal®¥é do not include any gains or losse
on our mortgage options in our economic interepeege and economic net interest income as the aggrtgptions were sold for income
generation and not as an economic hedge for chamgaterest rates in our portfolio. As we identdpportunities in mortgage backed secur
market, we may from time to time purchase or selftgage options, including both call and put opditm take advantage of these
opportunities. We had one mortgage option as of By 2015 with an unrealized gain of less tham§tion.

Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Financial Instrumts at Fair Value

We have elected a fair value option with changdaiinvalue reflected in earnings for our Agencyl &on-Agency IO RMBS securities,
certain of our securitized loans held for investimeallateralized by a seasoned sub-prime pooésiflential mortgage loans, and the related
financing for the securitized loans consolidated &8E in our statement of financial condition. Tiadle below shows the unpaid principal,
value and impact of change in fair value on eadhesde financial instruments:

As of June 30, 201 As of June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand:
Unpaid Unpaid
Principal/ Principal/
Notional Fair Value  Notional Fair Value
Assets:
IO RMBS securitie: $13,430,25 $ 584,49¢ 6,166,68 286,16:
Non-Agency RMBS securitie N/A 21,82: - -
Securitized loans held for investment, at
value 5,144,60. 5,208,55! - -
Liabilities:
Securitized debt at fair value 4,347,56.  4,265,21! - -
Total $22,922,41 $10,080,09 $ 6,166,68. $ 286,16:
For the Quarter Ende  For the Six Months Endt
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand:
Gain/(Loss Gain/(Loss Gain/(Loss
Gain/(Loss
on on Change on Change on Change
Change in in in in
Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Assets:
IO RMBS securitie! $ (4,472) 5791 $ 298¢ $ 20,80
Non-Agency RMBS securitie (2,386) - (3,295 -
Securitized loans held for investment, at
value (7,459 - (18,11) -
Liabilities:
Securitized debt at fair value (22,943) - (29,26%) -
Total $ (37,260 $ 5791 $ (47,689 % 20,80:

Unrealized gains and losses on our Agency and Ngerdy RMBS portfolio represent the changes invialues of the securities from the prior
period. Unrealized gains and losses on our entijjen&y and Non-Agency RMBS portfolio are reflecte@arnings. 10 securities represent the
right to receive the interest on a pool of mortghgeked securities, including both Agency and -Agency mortgage pools. The fair value



IO RMBS securities are heavily impacted by chanigespected prepayment rates. When 10 securitieggy, the holder of the 10 security \
receive less interest on the investment due toettheced principal. During the second quarter of2@de acquired residual interests in several
seasoned pools for mortgage loans. These holdeggsrglly do not have a traditional unpaid princgi@lount and pay cash based on guidance
in the trust documents when excess cash is availddany of these holdings do not pay any interedtraay never pay interest. We have
elected to carry these residual interests at fiteswith changes in fair value reflected in eageimAs of January 1, 2015, the Company adc
the guidance in ASU 2014-13, Measuring the Findmsaets and the Financial Liabilities of a Condated Collateralized Financing Entity,
which allowed us to carry both the assets andliiisi of certain consolidated VIEs at fair valugiwchanges in fair value reflected in earnir
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During the quarter and six months ended June 315,20e recorded unrealized losses in earnings BindiBion and $48 million, compared tc
gain of $5 million and $21 million for the same iperof 2014.

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets and Loss anguishment of securitized debt

Net realized gains on sales of investments weren§illidn and $39 million for the quarters and sionths ended June 30, 2015, respective
compared to losses of $4 million and gains of $Hionifor the quarters and six months ended June€804, respectively. We do not forecast
sales of investments as we generally expect tostrfee long term gains, however, from time to time, may sell assets to create liquidity
necessary to pursue new opportunities, achieveteddeverage ratios as well as for gains wheregiiedicate a sale is most beneficial to u
is the most prudent course of action to maintaargeted risk adjusted yield for our investors.

During the second quarter of 2015, the companyd&l36 million of securitized debt collateralizgdnon-agency RMBS at par for cash
payments of $231 million. During the first quartér2014, the company purchased $54 million of sézed debt collateralized by non-agency
RMBS for cash payments of $56 million. When the @any acquires its outstanding debt, it extinguighesutstanding debt and recogniz:
gain or loss based on the difference between thgiog value of the debt and the cost to acquieedébt. These debt extinguishments resultec
in a gain of $5 million in 2015 and a loss of $liom for the same period of 2014, which is refegtin the Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Comprehensive Income as a losstorgeishment of debt during the quarter and six therended June 30, 2015 and 2014,

respectively.
Net Management Fees and General and Administratiwepenses

The table below shows our total management feegandral and administrative, or G&A, expenses agpeoed to average total assets and
average equity for the periods presented.

Total Total
Total Management FeeManagement Fee
Management and G&A and G&A
Fee Expenses/Avera( Expenses/Averay
and G&A
Expense! Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in
thousands
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 24,10: 0.56% 2.77%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 20,36 0.42% 2.28%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $22,61: 0.47% 2.51%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 201 $ 13,17¢ 0.45% 1.54%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 10,317 0.42% 1.22%
(1) Does not include one-time management fee ramuof $24

million

We incurred management fees of $10 million and $Bom for each of the quarters ended June 30, 200152014, respectively and $21 mill
and $12 million for each of the six months endenkJ80, 2015 and 2014, respectively. We also rezednieimbursements from the Manager
related to the amended management agreement abamaitely $5 million and $2 million for each of th@arters ended June 30, 2015 and
2014 and $6 million and $3 million for each of #ir month periods ended June 30, 2015 and 2014nEmagement fee is based on our
stockholders’ equity as defined in the ManagemeagreAment. See further discussion of the managef®enincluding amendments to the
Management Agreement, as well as other agreemaéthishe Manager in our discussion of related padpsactions below.
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G&A expenses were approximately $19 million anddibion for the quarters ended June 30, 2015 aridi2fespectively. G&A expenses w
approximately $30 million and $10 million for thix snonths ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respecti@B&A expenses include servicing fe
paid by our consolidated VIEs of approximately $iliom and $1 million for the quarters ended Ju®e 3015 and 2014 and $13 million and
million. These servicing fees are related to thesodidation of the whole loan securitization vebghnd are paid from interest income earned
by the VIEs. Excluding the servicing fees, our G&&enses have increased in the second quartef6f&0compared to the same period of
2014 primarily as a result of increased legal amdgssional services fees, which were largely otigereimbursements from the Manager.
G&A expenses for the quarter ended June 30, 2GIbiatlude $3 million of financing fee expensesimed to create new securitization
vehicles related to financing our sub-prime resi@mortgage loan portfolio. There were no finsgcfee expenses recognized in G&A
expenses in 2014.

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equ

The table below shows our economic net interestrire; realized gains (losses) on sale of assettharatedit related OTTI, realized and
unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaph$@s), total management fee and G&A expenses,ramainie tax, each as a percentage of
average equity, and the return on average equitshéoperiods presented.

Realized an
Unrealized

Gains
Realized (Losses) on
Gains Interest Rat

(Losses) on Total
Economic Net Salesand Swaps and Management Fee
Interest  OTTI/Average IOs/Average & G&A Return on
Income/Averag Expenses/Avera; Average
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity

(Ratios have been annualize

For The Quarter Ended June 30

2015 15.31% (2.0(%) 3.56% (2.771%) 13.35%
For The Quarter Ended March 3
2015 17.06% 2.45% (8.9€%) (2.28%) 7.52%
For The Quarter Ended Decemb
31, 2014 15.7(% (3.51%) (7.75%) (2.51%) 0.72%
For The Quarter Ended Septemt
30, 2014 15.6%% 7.41% 2.57% (1.54%) 43.9%
For The Quarter Ended June 30
2014 12.0% (1.17%) 2.55% (1.22%) 12.389%

* Includes effect of realized losses on
interest rate swap

Our net income was $116 million and $105 million tlee quarters ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, tesgg@nd $183 million and $205
million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 20@4. Economic net interest income as a percertbgeerage equity increased by 306 and
579 basis points for the quarter and six monthgeérddine 30, 2015 as compared to the same perR@ildf The increase in our economic net
interest income as a percentage of average eguilyd to an increase in interest earned, net ofoggit interest expense, on primarily
residential mortgage loans and Agency MBS asseadsthe prior year as we have increased our intbezsting assets to enhance net economi
interest income. Return on average equity increbgel®6 basis points for the quarter ended Jun2@®I5 as compared to the same period of
2014. The increase is due to higher income in thieeat quarter, primarily as a result of additionat interest income as well as unrealized
gains on interest rate swaps. Return on averagigyatpcreased by 159 basis points for the six mehded June 30, 2015 as compared to tf
same period of 2014. While net interest incomedased, this increase was offset by realized lazseerivatives, including termination of
swap fees of $100 million.

Core earnings

Core earnings is a non-GAAP measure and is deissdAAP net income excluding unrealized gains eratigregate portfolio, impairment
losses, realized gains on sales of investments,gradeconsolidation, extinguishment of debt antha® other norrecurring gains or losses.
defined, Core earnings include interest incomeexpiEnse as well as realized gains or losses ovatiggs used to hedge interest rate risk.
Core earnings are provided for the purpose of coatyiiity to other peer issuers, but have importanitations. Core Earnings as described
above helps evaluate our financial performanceitlthe impact of certain transactions and isroftéd usefulness as an analytical tool.
Therefore, core earnings should not be vieweddlai®n and is not a substitute for net incomeetrincome per basic share computed in
accordance with GAAP.

Our core earnings was $109 million, or $0.53 p@&rage basic common share, for the quarter ended3r2015 compared to $83 million, or
$0.41 per average basic common share, for the para in 2014. Our core earnings was $229 millar$1.11 per average basic common
share, for the six ended June 30, 2015 compar®tl@6é million, or $0.81 per average basic commomestar the same period in 2014. We
attribute the majority of the increase in core @ays to the increase in net interest income froenatquisition of additional Agency RMBS and
securitized loans since the quarter ended Jun2(3@, which has contributed to net income while riziming low levels of leverag
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The following table provides GAAP measures of mebme and net income per basic share availablenomon stockholders for the quarters
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 and details with cegpeaconciling the line items to core earningd eelated per average basic common shal
amounts:

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢
GAAP Net income $ 116,18° $ 104,76¢ $ 183,22¢ $§ 205,13
Adjustments
Net other-than-temporary credit impairment

losses 27,101 5,347 34,91¢ 6,881
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati (88,029 22,49; (92,087 24,69¢
Net unrealized (gains) losses on financial

instruments at fair valu 37,26( (5,799 47,68¢ (20,809
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of

investments (9,685 4,33¢ (39,250) (4,039
(Gains) losses on extinguishment of d (5,079 - (5,079 2,18¢
Gain on deconsolidatic - (47,846 - (47,846
Realized (gains) losses on terminations of

interest rate swaps 31,12« - 99,70: -

Core Earnings $ 108,88( $ 83,31t $ 229,12( $ 166,21.
GAAP net income per basic common share $ 0.57 $ 0.51 $ 0.8¢ % 1.0C
Core earnings per basic common share $ 0.5 $ 0.41 $ 111 $ 0.81

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortgage
loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay diuis and other general business needs. Our piiiscipeces of capital and funds for additional
investments primarily include earnings from ouréstments, borrowings under securitizations angemsitizations, repurchase agreement:
other financing facilities, and proceeds from egofferings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundsénfoinm of repurchase agreements and,
subject to market conditions, other types of finagcThe terms of the repurchase transaction bongswnder our master repurchase
agreements generally conform to the terms in thedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishtée Becurities Industry and Financial
Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment, gimarequirements and the segregation of all saearnite have initially sold under the
repurchase transaction. In addition, each lenggcajly requires that we include supplemental teamd conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement. Typical supplemental terehs@mditions include changes to the margin mainteaaequirements, cross default
provisions, required haircuts (or the percentageithsubtracted from the value of RMBS that cellalizes the financing), purchase price
maintenance requirements, and requirements thdispllites related to the repurchase agreemertideedid or arbitrated in a particular
jurisdiction. These provisions may differ for easftour lenders.

We expect to meet our short term liquidity needsddying on the cash flows generated by our investi These cash flows are primarily
comprised of monthly principal and interest payrsagrteived on our investments. We may also selinrmastments and utilize those proceeds
to meet our short term liquidity needs or enteo imbn-recourse financing of our assets throughss&lsecurities to third parties of loan
securitizations or RMBS re-securitization transatsi, similar to transactions that we have complitgntior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetaswill be sufficient to enable us to mee
anticipated short-term liquidity requirements. Heee a decline in the value of our collateral cocddise a temporary liquidity shortfall due to
the timing of margin calls on the financing arramgats and the actual receipt of the cash relatedoipal paydowns. If our cash resources
are at any time insufficient to satisfy our liquidiequirements, we may have to sell investmentemiially at a loss, or issue debt or additiona
equity securities in a common stock offering.
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To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitaleand funds to continue to be provided
by earnings from our investments, borrowings ursgeuritizations and re-securitizations, repurclageements and other financing facilities,
as well as proceeds from equity offerings.

In addition to the principal sources of capitalaésed above, we may enter into warehouse faaliied use longer dated structured repurcha:
agreements. The use of any particular source dfat@md funds will depend on market conditionsqiability of these facilities, and the
investment opportunities available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&tedymillion and $165 million at June 30, 2015 aret®mber 31, 2014, respectively. As a
result of our operating, investing and financing\dites described above, our cash position deegdéy $115 million from December 31, 2014
to June 30, 2015.

Our operating activities provided net cash of appnately $189 million and $34 million for the sixamths ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The cash provided by our operatisrgimarily due to interest received in excesstdriest paid during the period. During the
second quarter of 2015, interest received nettefaést paid was $314 million. This cash received wffset in part by payments on derivatives
of $100 million for termination of existing swaps.

Our investing activities provided cash of approxieha$1.7 billion and used cash of $3.3 billion ftbe six months ended June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively. During the six months ended& R0y 2015 we purchased investments of $4.7 bjloimarily Agency RMBS. This use of
cash was offset during the period from sales oéstments of $5.2 billion and principal repaymerit$Xo2 billion during the first six months of
2015. The purchases and sales activity was priynduié to the Company continuing to balance its Ageortfolio to maximize spread income
and provide liquidity for purchases of Non-AgendyIBRS and mortgage loan pools.

Our financing activities used cash of $2.1 billeomd provided cash of $3.3 billion for the six manémded June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. During the six months ended June8@5, we paid proceeds on our repurchase agreemensf proceeds on our repurchase
agreements of $1.6 billion. We also repaid princgfaour securitized debt of $707 million and pdigidends of $191 million. During the
second quarter of 2015, we also called debt witbrgraid principal balance of $231 million at pad asued new debt to fund acquisitions of
residential mortgage loans for proceeds of $485anil

Our recourse leverage is 2.1:1 and 2.6:1 for thimge ended June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2(dpkctvely. Our recourse leverage
excludes the securitized debt which can only baitefrom the proceeds on the assets securing éfisid their respective VIEs. The decrease
in our recourse leverage compared to June 30, BOd 4esult of the sale of higher leverage agemsyjtions to acquire residential mortgage
loans. Our recourse leverage is presented agoaofaiur repurchase agreements, which are recaarde assets of the Company, to our
economic net equity calculated as a part of ounecuc book value.

We believe that our cash balances provide an apptegevel of liquidity. Even though we have uririeted Agency RMBS investments, we
expect to meet our future cash needs primarily fpoimcipal and interest payments on our portfohol @o not anticipate we will need to sell
unrestricted Agency RMBS investments to meet auidiity needs. We expect to continue to financeRMBS portfolio largely through
repurchase agreements and loans through the seatioit market. In addition, we may from time tmé sell securities or issue debt as a sc
of cash to fund new purchases.

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the rengamaturities on our RMBS repurchase agreements agefellows.

65




December 3:

June 30, 201 201¢
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ -$ =
1 to 29 day: 1,760,11 2,652,71
30 to 59 day: 2,205,98: 1,371,85
60 to 89 day: 1,195,78. 656,91!
90 to 119 day 262,22t 2,068,74!
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 1,389,72: 1,705,15.
Total $ 6,813,83.$ 8,455,38
Average days to maturit 88 Day: 100 Day:

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weouggance our operations with our RMBS investme@ist counterparties negotiate a
‘haircut’ when we enter into a financing transaectiovhich varies from lender to lender. The sizéhefhaircut reflects the perceived risk
associated with holding the RMBS by the lender. filiecut provides lenders with a cushion for dailgrket value movements that reduce the
need for a margin call to be issued or margin toeerned as normal daily increases or decreaseMiBS market values occur. At June 30,
2015, the weighted average haircut on our repuechgeeements collateralized by Agency MBS was Sdfbpared to a haircut on Agency
RMBS of 5.1% at December 31, 2014. At June 30, 20ibweighted average haircut on our repurchasseagents collateralized by Non-
Agency RMBS was 30.9% compared to a haircut on Ngancy RMBS of 29.4% at December 31, 2014.

As the fair value of the Non-Agency RMBS is moréidilt to determine, as well as more volatile perto period than Agency RMBS, the
Non-Agency RMBS typically requires a larger haircuefRrchase agreements also subject us to two typeargin calls. First, there are
monthly margin calls that are triggered as princgza/ments and pre-payments are received by useas payments lower the value of the
collateral. As a result, we expect to receive nraggills from our repurchase counterparties morghhply due to the principal paydowns on
our Agency RMBS. The monthly principal payments anetpayments are not known in advance and vargri#pg on the behavior of the
borrowers related to the underlying mortgages. 8@ coounterparties make margin calls or return maag a result of normal daily increase
decreases in asset fair values. In addition, whem€ing assets using standard form of SIFMA MaR&purchase Agreements, the
counterparty to the agreement typically nets ifgosxire to us on all outstanding repurchase agresraad issues margin calls if movement of
the fair values of the assets in the aggregateegbsctineir allowable exposure to us. A decline seafair values could create a margin call, or
may create no margin call depending on the couatgrg specific policy. In addition, counterpartiesnsider a number of factors, including
their aggregate exposure to us as a whole andutindéer of days remaining before the repurchasedddios closes prior to issuing a margin
call. See Note 5 to our Consolidated Financialeédtants for a discussion on how we determine tmevéhiles of the RMBS collateralizing our
repurchase agreements.

The table below presents our average daily repsechalance and the repurchase balance at eacl paddor the periods presented. Our
balance at period-end tends to fluctuate from tlegage daily balances due to the adjusting of iteea our portfolio by using leverage. Our
average repurchase agreement balance for the gaaded June 30, 2015 increased compared to otagerespurchase agreement balance fc
the quarter ended June 30, 2014 due to additimrablwings on our repurchase agreements in excagpayments during 2014. We continue
to deploy capital for strategic purchases of investts.

Average Repurchase
Repurchase Balance at
Period Balance Period Enc

(dollars in thousands

Quarter End June 30, 20 $6,904,511 $6,813,83.
Quarter End March 31, 20: $8,315,35! $8,296,22.
Quarter End December 31, 20 $8,247,72; $8,455,38.
Quarter End September 30, 2( $7,741,83 $7,838,16.
Quarter End June 30, 20 $3,054,73 $5,564,55.

We are not required to maintain any specific debequity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverfogehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetas#t June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 calrdebt was approximately $11.7 billion
and $13.6 billion which represented a debt-to-gguitio of approximately 3.4:1 and 3.8:1, respetivWe include our repurchase agreement
and securitized debt in the numerator of our deksefuity ratio and stockholders’ equity as the deinator.
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During the second quarter of 2015, we decreasetkwarage as we sold portions of our Agency MBSfpbo to generate liquidity to settle
repurchase agreements as well as to acquire aopowrtgage loans. At June 30, 2015, we had reaselgreements with nineteen
counterparties. All of our repurchase agreememsacured by Agency and Némency RMBS or, in limited circumstances, cash. ehtthese
repurchase agreements we may not be able to reclaiollateral but still be obligated to pay oepurchase obligations. We mitigate this risk
by limiting our exposure to any counterparty to rapgpmately 10% or less of our total equity, as veslensuring all our counterparties are
highly rated. Therefore, we believe the risk oflo$ our collateral posted is mitigated by the iwhour agreements. As of June 30, 2015 anc
December 31, 2014, we had $7.9 billion and $9I®hilrespectively, of securities pledged againstrepurchase agreement obligations.

Our repurchase agreements have original maturdieging from 30 to 365 days. The average term emepurchase agreements at June 30,
2015 and December 31, 2014 was 88 days and 100 @apectively. We expect to renew each of ournemmse agreements at maturity. Wher
we renew our repurchase agreements, there is theskve will not be able to obtain as favorablardarest rate as a result of rising rates. We
offset the risk of our repurchase agreements pifyrtrough the use of interest rate swaps. Theageremaining maturities on our interest
rate swaps at June 30, 2015 range from less tlyaarlto 19 years and have a weighted average ityavficipproximately 4 years. We use tt
interest rate swaps to protect the portfolio frdrorsterm changes in interest rates. We currergyelthree swap counterparties. When our
interest rate swaps are in a net loss positiongeea cash payments are in excess of expectederzspts on the swaps), we post collateral a
required by the terms of our swap agreements. Alsioé 30, 2015, we have posted $65 million of eeghsecurities as collateral to our swap
counterparties.

Secured Debt Financing Transactior

During the second quarter of 2015, we called sézad debt, collateralized by loans held for inmestt with an unpaid principal balance of
$231 million at par. Additionally, during the gter, we issued new debt, collateralized by thesgedaans held for investment, with an ung
principal balance of $277 million for $276 milliorAdditionally, we issued debt with an unpaid pipa amount of $210 million for $209
million. These proceeds were used to finance ufdit subprime residential mortgage loans acquirgthg the period. The difference
between the unpaid principal balance and the pdscesceived on the securitized debt will be amedias an adjustment to the periodic cost ¢
the debt. All new debt issued during the period tm@ called any time after three years.

Subsequent to the reporting date, we called s&didebt, collateralized by loans held for investtrwith an unpaid principal balance of $¢
million at par.

Exposure to European Financial Counterpartie

Our Agency RMBS are primarily financed with repussk agreements. We secure our borrowings under #iggsements by pledging our
Agency RMBS as collateral to the lender. The cetlatwe pledge exceeds the amount of the borrowingsr each agreement, typically with
the extent of over-collateralization being at |62t of the amount borrowed. If the counterparttherepurchase agreement defaults on its
obligations and we are not able to recover ourgeedassets, we are at risk of losing the over-eslidized amount. The amount of this
exposure is the difference between the amount tbémas plus interest due to the counterparty hadair value of the collateral pledged by us
to the lender including accrued interest receivablsuch collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesttete risks. Under these swap agreements, wWgekegency RMBS as collateral as part of
a margin arrangement for interest rate swaps tieaihaan unrealized loss position. If swap courdespwere to default on its obligation, we
would be exposed to a loss to the extent thatmimeuat of our Agency RMBS pledged exceeded the linezhloss on the associated swaps
we were not able to recover the excess collateral.

Over the past several years, several large Eurdjpeaarcial institutions have experienced financiddiculty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial ingtitins or their U.S. subsidiaries have
provided us financing under repurchase agreementg tilave entered into interest rate swaps with smstitutions. We have entered into
repurchase agreements or interest rate swaps iwitosnterparties as of June 30, 2015 that is eitbeniciled in Europe or is a U.S.-based
subsidiary of a European-domiciled financial ingtdn. The following table summarizes our expogarsuch counterparties at June 30, 2015:
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Repurchase Interest Rate Exposure as a

Number of Agreement Swaps at Percentage of
Country Counterpartie: Financing Fair Value Exposure (1  Total Asset:
(dollars in thousand:
France 1 $ 626,53¢ $ (22,466 $ 52,32 0.32%
Netherland: 1 259,52 - 14,36( 0.0%%
Switzerland 2 1,204,90: (9,494 408,06! 2.5%%
United Kingdom 2 266,48¢ - 24,50( 0.16%
Total 6 $ 2,357,451 $ (31,960 $499,24° 3.17%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgetléteral to each counterparty less the aggregfate
repurchase agreement financing and unrealizedlossvaps for each counterpal

At June 30, 2015, we did not use credit defaultpsaar other forms of credit protection to hedgedkposures summarized in the table above.

If the European credit crisis continues to impaesse major European financial institutions, itésgible that it will also impact the operations
of their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings and afiens could be adversely affected by such evé@smonitor our exposure to our repurchase
agreement and swap counterparties on a regulas, heséng various methods, including review of récating agency actions, financial relief
plans, credit spreads or other developments anddaytoring the amount of cash and securities calfdtpledged and the associated loan
amount under repurchase agreements or the faie wdlswaps with our counterparties. We make revai@gin calls on our counterparties to
recover excess collateral as permitted by the aggats governing our financing arrangements or ésterate swaps, or may try to take other
actions to reduce the amount of our exposure twaterparty when necessary.

Stockholder’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, the Company entered into aityedjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Seties LLC (“UBS”). The Company
did not sell any shares of its common stock unldereguity distribution agreement during the quartgrded June 30, 2015 and 2014. On
September 24, 2009, the Company implemented a &ididReinvestment and Share Purchase Plan (“DRSPR)DRSPP was suspended
during the quarter ended March 31, 2012 when thagamy was no longer current in its filings with BEC. There were no shares issued as
part of the DRSPP during the quarters ended Jun2(@® and 2014.

As a result of the Company'’s delay in filing itsGEeports by the filing date required by the SE®I(iding the grace period permitted by Rule
12b-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, aanaled), the Company will not be able to issue shafreommon stock under the eqt
distribution agreement or the DRSPP until the Camyddes an effective shelf registration statemeith the SEC.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, we dectiivédends to common shareholders totaling $98iamijlor $0.48 per share. During the
guarter ended June 30, 2014, we declared dividencemmon shareholders totaling $92 million, ord$0per share. During the six months
ended June 30, 2015, we declared dividends to constmareholders totaling $197 million, or $0.96 gieaire. During the six months ended
June 30, 2014, we declared dividends to commorekbbders totaling $185 million, or $0.90 per share.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarengf June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

Related Party Transaction

The Management Agreement

As discussed above, on August 5, 2015, we entatecagreements to internalize the Company’s managerRrior to the Internalization, we
were managed by FIDAC pursuant to the Managemergékgent (the “* Management Agreem8nin connection with the Internalization, we

terminated the Management Agreement without thengay of any termination fee. Thus, the descripbetow relates to periods prior to the
Internalization.

We entered into the Management Agreement with FIDWKRIich provided for an initial term through Decesni31, 2010 with an automatic
one-year extension option and subject to certaimiteation rights. Effective November 28, 2012, thanagement fee was reduced from 1.50¥%
to 0.75% per annum of gross stockholders’ equityictvremained in effect until we were current drodlts filings required under applicable
securities laws.
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On August 8, 2014, the Management Agreement wasidateand restated. Effective August 8, 2014, theagement fee was increased to
1.20% of gross stockholders’ equity. The amendedeagent provides for a two year term ending Augu&016 and may be automatically
renewed for two year terms at each anniversarywdess at least two-thirds of the independenttiirs or the holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares of common stock elects notteweahe agreement in their sole discretion andifigror no reason.

The Management Agreement provides that the Manatijgray all past and future expenses that the Camgpor our Audit Committee incur
(1) evaluate the Company'’s accounting policy reldatethe application of GAAP to its Non-Agency RMPBSrtfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2)
restate the financial statements for the periockdag 2008 through 2011 as a result of the Evalnatihe “Restatement Filing”); and (3)
investigate and evaluate any shareholder derivadeéveands arising from the Evaluation or the Restate Filing (the “Investigation”);
provided, however, that the Managedbligation to pay expenses applies only to ex@enst paid by our insurers under our insurancieipsl
Expenses shall include, without limitation, fees @onsts incurred with respect to auditors, outsménsel, and consultants engaged by us c
Audit Committee for the Evaluation, RestatemeninBiland the Investigation. The amount paid by ttendgjer related to these expenses fo
quarters ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 is $5 malah$2 million, respectively. The amount paid by Manager related to these expenses fc
the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 isiiiémand $3 million, respectively. Recoverieg @resented in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Incsri@ense recoveries from Manager

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Managrecdsts incurred on the Compasyehalf under the Management Agreement. In aad
the Management Agreement permits the Manager taneqs to pay for its pro rata portion of rentepdone, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses that the Manager incurred inexhion with operations. These exper
are allocated between the Company and the Managedton the ratio of the proportion of gross assmtgpared to the gross assets under
management by the Manager as calculated at eactegqaad. The Manager and us will modify this adittan methodology, subject to the
approval of our Board of Directors, if the allocatibecomes inequitable (i.e., if the Company becoweey highly leveraged compared to the
Managers other funds and accounts). During thetensaand six months ended June 30, 2015 and 28itdhursements to the Manager wert
million.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administrat@ices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apnto clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees in return for such services. RCay
may also provide brokerage services to us from tortéme. The fees paid to RCap are $1 milliontf@ quarters and six months ended June
30, 2015 and 2014.

In connection with the Internalization, the admirsitive services agreement was terminated withoaipayment of any termination fee.
Restricted Stock Grant

We granted 260,200 shares of restricted stock ml@maes of the Manager and its affiliates and mesbé&our Board of Directors on January

2,2008. On February 2, 2015 we granted 84,70Cshafrrestricted stock to employees of the Managelune 30, 2015 and December 31,
2014, there were approximately 85,500 and 39,4@@stad shares of restricted stock issued to emptogEFIDAC, respectively.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual gddiions at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014edtiveated principal repayment
schedule of the securitized debt is based on eggeaetsh flows of the residential mortgage loarRMBS, as adjusted for expected principal
writedowns on the underlying collateral of the debt

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Greater
Than
One to or Equal tc

Within Three Three to
Contractual Obligation One Yeal Years Five Year: Five Years Total
Repurchase agreements for RM $6,513,83 $ 300,000 $ - $ - $6,813,83
Securitized dek 892,34¢ 1,352,49 965,76t 1,618,791  4,829,40.
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase
agreements (1 15,54¢ 3 - - 15,55:
Interest expense on securitized deb! 176,141 307,28 241,72¢ 564,15! 1,289,30.
Total $7,597,86 $1,959,77. $1,207,49: $2,182,95 $12,948,08
(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaifalune
30, 2015

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Greater
Than
One to or Equal tc

Within Three Three to
Contractual Obligation One Yeal Years Five Year: Five Years Total
Repurchase agreements for RM $8,155,38 $ 300,000 $ - $ - $ 8,455,38
Securitized dek 880,36° 1,427,23 940,97! 1,645,701  4,894,28.
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase
agreements (1 18,45: 3 - - 18,45
Interest expense on securitized deb! 184,07 313,26 238,77t 573,62: 1,309,74.
Total $9,238,27: $2,040,50: $1,179,75. $2,219,32! $14,677,86

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeatfa
December 31, 201

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatetities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured finance ol
special purpose entities, which would have beeabéished for the purpose of facilitating off-balargheet arrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes. Further, we have nafrgaoteed any obligations of unconsolidated entitegsdo we have any commitment or ini

to provide funding to any such entities.

Capital Requirements

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we hadaterral commitments for capital expenditures.

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetedsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxamb®me (subject to certain adjustments).
We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stackholders. Before we pay any dividend, we rfittmeet any operating requirements
and scheduled debt service on our financing fasliand other debt payable.

Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabiliti® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a resu#irest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chaigéterest rates do not necessarily correlatk inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apgved in accordance with GAAP and our distribiginll be determined by our Board of
Directors consistent with our obligation to distrib to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKRlde income on an annual basis in order to

maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, aativities and financial condition are measurechwéference to historical cost or fair market
value without considering inflation.
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Other Matters

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssaad to become regulated as an investment comyoahgr the 1940 Act. If we were to
become regulated as an investment company, ottyabiluse leverage would be substantially reduced.

Section 3(a) (1) (C) of the Investment Company defines an investment company as any issuer tiesigaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestuie investment securities having a value
exceeding 40% of the value of the issuer’s totaeétss(exclusive of U.S. Government securities asth diems) on an unconsolidated basis (the
“40% test”). Excluded from the term “investmentgéties,” among other things, are securities isdmedhajority-owned subsidiaries that rely
on the exemption from registration provided by #ec8(c) (5) (C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Adselding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we rfayn in the future, rely on the exempti
from registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C)tleé Investment Company Act. Section 3(c) (5) @3)interpreted by the staff of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEG)imes us to invest at least 55% of our assetmiortgages and other liens on and interest
in real estate” (or Qualifying Real Estate Assats] at least 80% of our assets in Qualifying Rathie Assets plus real estate related assets.
The assets that we acquire, therefore, are lintijetthe provisions of and the rules and regulatjmosnulgated under the Investment Company
Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept etdbesd “Companies Engaged in the Business of AatgMortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778)ddithe concept release, the SEC is reviewingpreéive issues related to the Section 3
(c) (5) (C) exemption. We are monitoring developtearlated to this matter.

Based on our calculations, as of June 30, 2013@eember 31, 2014, we were in compliance with ttesrgption from registration provided
Section 3(c)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investm@ntmpany Act.

As a result of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reforrd @onsumer Protection Act of 2010, the U.S. Commydeglitures Trading Commission, or
CFTC, gained jurisdiction over the regulation deirest rate swaps. The CFTC has asserted thataihées the operators of mortgage real e
investment trusts that use swaps as part of thisinbss model to fall within the statutory defimitiof Commaodity Pool Operator, or CPO, and,
absent relief from the Division or the Commissitmregister as CPOs. On December 7, 2012, as b ofsuumerous requests for no-action
relief from the CPO registration requirement foemyors of mortgage real estate investment trtistsDivision of Swap Dealer and
Intermediary Oversight of the CFTC issued no-actedief entitled “No-Action Relief from the CommadgiPool Operator Registration
Requirement for Commodity Pool Operators of CerRooled Investment Vehicles Organized as Mortgagpd Rstate Investment Trusts” that
permits a CPO to receive relief by filing a claionpterfect the use of the relief. A claim submittgda CPO will be effective upon filing, so lo
as the claim is materially complete. The conditithvet must be met to claim the relief are thatrtteetgage real estate investment trust must:

o Limit the initial margin and premiums required tstablish its commodity interest positions to no entitan five percent of the f
market value of the mortgage real estate investines’s total asset:

- Limit the net income derived annually from its coouity interest positions that are not qualifyinglgig transactions to less t
five percent of the mortgage real estate investriren’s gross income

- Ensure that interests in the mortgage real estatsiment trust are not marketed to the publicras a commodity pool or otherwi
as or in a vehicle for trading in the commodityulets, commaodity options, or swaps markets;

. Either:
o identify itself as ¢ mortgage REI” in Iltem G of its last U.S. income tax return onmAdt12(-REIT; or

o if it has not yet filed its first U.S. incomexteeturn on Form 112&EIT, disclose to its shareholders that it intetadglentify itsel
as a“mortgage REI” in its first U.S. income tax return on Form 1-REIT.
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While we disagree that the CFTC’s position thattigmge real estate investment trusts that use sagmpart of their business model fall within
the statutory definition of a CPO, we have subrditieclaim for the relief set forth in the no-actietief entitled “No-Action Relief from the
Commodity Pool Operator Registration Requirementfommodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Investt Vehicles Organized as
Mortgage Real Estate Investment Trusts” and belexeneet the criteria for such relief set forthréie.

Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, rmarket value risk and real estate risk.
While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, vedidwe the risk can be quantified from historicgberience and we seek to actively manage
that risk, to earn sufficient compensation to fystking those risks and to maintain capital lsvansistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiattgege loans and face more credit risk
on assets we own which are rated below “AAA.” Ttredit risk related to these investments perttribe ability and willingness of the
borrowers to pay, which is assessed before creditanted or renewed and periodically reviewedufihout the loan or security term. We
believe that residual loan credit quality, and tthesquality of our assets, is primarily determitgdhe borrowers’ credit profiles and loan
characteristics. We use a comprehensive credigweprocess. Our analysis of loans includes borrgsfiles, as well as valuation and
appraisal data. We use compensating factors sulidués assets, low loan to value ratios and regiamemployment statistics in evaluating
loans. Our resources include a proprietary podfolanagement system, as well as third party soétspstems. We may utilize a third party
due diligence firm to perform an independent undging review to ensure compliance with existingdglines. In addition to statistical
sampling techniques, we create adverse credit aludgition samples, which we individually review. Wgect loans that fail to conform to our
standards and do not meet our underwriting crit@izce we own a loan, our surveillance processided ongoing analysis through our
proprietary data and servicer files. Additionatlye Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS which we acqtoreour portfolio are reviewed by us
to ensure that they satisfy our risk based crit@iar review of Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS ird#g utilizing a proprietary portfolio
management system. Our review of Non-Agency RMB&ather ABS is based on quantitative and qualiéagimalysis of the risk-adjusted
returns on Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS. This gsialincludes an evaluation of the collateral cbastics supporting the RMBS such
as borrower payment history, credit profiles, gaphiic concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoainngother pertinent factors.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many ¢ast including governmental, monetary and tax pegicdomestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors nelyour control. We are subject to interest ratle insconnection with our investments and our
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities and seeigin/re-securitization vehicles. Our
repurchase agreements and warehouse facilitiesomay limited duration that is periodically refir@ad at current market rates. We intend to
mitigate this risk through utilization of derivagicontracts, primarily interest rate swap agreememtaptions, futures and mortgage options.

Interest Rate Effects on Net Interest Incon

Our operating results depend, in large part, oieifices between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type dédying asset which collateralizes the financifigcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assets$ lvalmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshafrtterm financing, while our fixed intere
rate assets will not be match-funded. During pexiofdrising interest rates, the borrowing cost®eissed with our investments tend to increast
while the income earned on our fixed interest iatestments may remain substantially unchanged Wil result in a narrowing of the net
interest spread between the related assets amubogs and may even result in losses. Furtherpdutiis portion of the interest rate and cr
cycles, defaults could increase and result in ttedses to us, which could adversely affect ayitlity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adwfect on the spread between interest-earniresaasd interest-bearing liabilities. Hedging
techniques are partly based on assumed levelepapments of our fixed-rate and hybrid adjustabte-mortgage loans and RMBS. If
prepayments are slower or faster than assumedfdahaf the mortgage loans and RMBS will be longeshorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayandemay cause losses on such transactions.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Valu

Another component of interest rate risk is theaftdhanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the
that the fair value of our assets will increasel@erease at different rates than that of our it&sl including our hedging instruments. We
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratioruofiabilities. Duration essentially measures
market price volatility of financial instruments iagerest rates change. We generally calculatetidarasing various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologis produce different duration numbers for the saeuarities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100
basis points from current levels. Therefore, thiatiity in the fair value of our assets could iease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other factoysact the fair value of our interest rate-sewmsithvestments and hedging instruments, suct
as the shape of the yield curve, market expect#arto future interest rate changes and otherahaokditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ fraimat shown below and such difference might b
material and adverse to our stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Ris

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdedging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thewety’s interest yield may change during .
given period. However, our borrowing costs pursdardur financing agreements will not be subjeditoilar restrictions. Therefore, in a
period of increasing interest rates, interest catds on our borrowings could increase withouttaton by caps, while the interest-rate yields
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS aveiiiectively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgapéch are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgagr the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #milt in some portion of the interest being deféard added to the principal outstanding.
This could result in our receipt of less cash inean our adjustable-rate mortgages or RMBS thaneeel in order to pay the interest cost on
our related borrowings. These factors could lowerr®t interest income or cause a net loss dureniggbs of rising interest rates, which would
harm our financial condition, cash flows and resoltoperations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Ris

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®MBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdggng, have interest rates based on indice:
and re-pricing terms similar to, but of somewhairtdr maturities than, the interest rate indices r@apricing terms of the mortgages and
RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indices amticing terms of our mortgage assets and ourifignsburces will not be identical, thereby
creating an interest rate mismatch between assdtkadilities. Our cost of funds would likely rige fall more quickly than would our earnings
rate on assets. During periods of changing inteades, such interest rate mismatches could negjaiivpact our financial condition, cash
flows and results of operations. To mitigate ins¢rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedgindegras discussed above. Our analysis of

is based on FIDAC's experience, estimates, modwlsaasumptions. These analyses rely on models witilcte estimates of fair value and
interest rate sensitivity. Actual economic condii@r implementation of investment decisions byraanagement may produce results that
differ significantly from the estimates and assuomng used in our models and the projected reshities in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolimluding derivatives) may be adversely affectedrduany period as a result of changing
interest rates. The following table quantifies plméential changes in net interest income and patf@lue for our Agency MBS portfolio
should interest rates go up or down 50 and 10Ghpasnts, assuming parallel movements in the yéaldes. All changes in income and value
are measured as percentage changes from the pobjeattinterest income and portfolio value at thgehinterest rate scenario. The base int
rate scenario assumes interest rates at June BB a2@ various estimates regarding prepayment laadtivities are made at each level of rate
change. Actual results could differ significantigrh these estimates.
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Projected Percenta

Change in
Portfolio Value witt
Effect of
Projected Percenta Interest Rate Swaps
Change and Other
in Net Interest Hedging
Change in Interest Ra Income (1) Transactions (2
-100 Basis Point (28.8%%0) 0.06%
-50 Basis Point (7.01%) 0.22%
Base Interest Ra - -
+50 Basis Point 10.0% (0.62%)
+100 Basis Point 9.6€% (1.52%)

(1) Change in annual economic net interest incomeudttes
interest expense on interest rate sw

(2) Projected Percentage Change in Portfolio Viaumsed
on instantaneous moves in interest re

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesesitments, premiums and discounts on such investmgihbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in pregaymates will accelerate the amortization of pasghpremiums, thereby reducing the interes
income earned on the investments. Conversely, digs@n such investments are accelerated and eddrgbd interest income increasing
interest income.

Extension Risk

The Manager computes the projected weighted-avéifagef our investments based on assumptions daggrthe rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdlew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagmé or RMBS are acquired via
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eimtier an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@dadverage life of the fixedite portion of the related assets. This strateglesigned to prote
us from rising interest rates as the borrowingsast effectively fixed for the duration of thedtkrate portion of the related assets. Howew
prepayment rates decrease in a rising intereseratieconment, the life of the fixed-rate portiontbé related assets could extend beyond the
term of the swap agreement or other hedging ingninThis could have a negative impact on our te$tdm operations, as borrowing costs
would no longer be fixed after the end of the hedgnstrument while the income earned on the fixed hybrid adjustable-rate assets would
remain fixed. In extreme situations, we may beddrto sell assets to maintain adequate liquidityiclvcould cause us to incur losses.

Basis Risk

We seek to limit our interest rate risk by hedgiagtions of our portfolio through interest rate psand other types of hedging instruments.
Interest rate swaps are generally tied to undeglfireasury benchmark interest rates. Basis riskeelto the risk of the spread between our
RMBS and underlying hedges widening. Such a widgniay cause a decline in the fair value of our RMBS is greater than the increase in
fair value of our hedges resulting in a net deciimbook value. The widening of mortgage-backedigées yields and Treasury benchmark
interest rates may result from a variety of facgursh as anticipated or actual monetary policyoastor other market factors.

Market Risk

Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported
to changes in interest rates, prepayment speedketiiguidity, credit quality, and other factofGenerally, in a rising interest rate environm
the estimated fair value of these securities wbel@éxpected to decrease; conversely, in a decgeaserest rate environment, the estimated

fair value of these securities would be expectaddmase. As market volatility increases or lidyidlecreases, the fair value of our
investments may be adversely impacted.
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Real Estate Market Ris

We own assets secured by real property and mayreaproperty directly in the future. Residentiedjperty values are subject to volatility and
may be affected adversely by a number of factaduding, but not limited to, national, regionabdocal economic conditions (which may be
adversely affected by industry slowdowns and othetors); local real estate conditions (such asvamsupply of housing); changes or
continued weakness in specific industry segmetsstcuction quality, age and design; demograplitofa; and retroactive changes to builc
or similar codes. In addition, decreases in prgpeatues reduce the value of the collateral ancgtitential proceeds available to a borrower to
repay our loans, which could also cause us to iltases.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage
loans, RMBS, and other assets and related debtstghe effects of major interest rate changesg@rerally seek to manage risk by:

« monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the resgéx and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

« attempting to structure our financing agreementshawe a range of different maturities, terms, aipatibns and interest r¢
adjustment period:

« using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, omionaps, floors and forward sales to adjust ther@st rate sensitivity of ¢
investments and our borrowing

« using securitization financing to lower averaget@ifunds relative to shoterm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and umi¢y dates of the investments
included in the securitization; al

« actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theesiteate indices, interest raaejustment periods, and gross reset margins ¢
investments and the interest rate indices and @ periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interag movements. Methods for evaluating interestriskeinclude an analysis of our interest rate
sensitivity “gap,” which is the difference betwdaterest-earning assets and interest-bearing li@silmaturing or re-pricing within a given
time period. A gap is considered positive whenaimount of interest-rate sensitive assets exceedstiount of interest-rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative whendh®ount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities exde@terest-rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gapld/itend to adversely affect net interest incomeijenvd positive gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income. During a periothlhihg interest rates, a negative gap would tencesult in an increase in net interest income
while a positive gap would tend to affect net intgrincome adversely. Because different typessdtasand liabilities with the same or similar
maturities may react differently to changes in allanarket rates or conditions, changes in intera@sts may affect net interest income
positively or negatively even if an institution vegperfectly matched in each maturity category.

The following table sets forth the estimated ma&yusi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imterest-bearing liabilities at June 30, 2015.
The amounts of assets and liabilities shown withparticular period were determined in accordanitie tive contractual terms of the assets
liabilities, except adjustable-rate loans, and s&es are included in the period in which theiteirest rates are first scheduled to adjust and no
in the period in which they mature and includesdfiect of the interest rate swaps. The interdstsansitivity of our assets and liabilities in
table could vary substantially based on actual yeyents.
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(dollars in thousand:

Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than

Months 3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 155241 $ 2,83583 $ 549,68. $ 24,135,04 $ 29,072,97
Cash equivalent 49,54¢ - - - 49,54¢
Total rate sensitive asse 1,601,96! 2,835,83I 549,68 24,135,04 29,122,52
Rate sensitive liabilitie 5,030,30. 2,935,06; 22,58 178,21¢ 8,166,16:
Interest rate sensitivity g¢ $ (3,428,34) $ (99,22¢) $ 527,09° $ 23,956,83 $ 20,956,36

Cumulative rate sensitivity g¢ $ (3,428,34) $ (3,527,56) $ (3,000,47) $ 20,956,36
Cumulative interest rate sensitivit

gap as

percentage of total rate sensitive

asset: -12% -12% -10% 72%

Our analysis of risks is based on the Manager'egpce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thedesas rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by the Manager may
produce results that differ significantly from tbstimates and assumptions used in our models angtdfected results shown in the above
tables and in this Form 10-Q. These analyses aonatain forward-looking statements and are sulbgethe safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, “Special Note Regarding Forwamking Statements.”

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 1+or the year ended December 31, 2014, we disdltis&t management had identified a material weakim
our internal controls over financial reporting. \dentified an overreliance on spreadsheets congisti manual inputs and complex
calculations used to record transactions and esBrsupporting the financial statement amountsdistosures.

Since 2014, the Company has been implementing asgst@m to reduce its reliance on spreadsheets.sydtem was utilized for the first time
to produce the financial results included in tlisand quarter 2015 Form 10-Q. Based on the suct@splementation of the system as well
designing and implementing new controls in 2015%,@hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Oicbelieve that the aforementioned
material weakness in our internal controls willrbmediated in 2015.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebeameno changes in our “internal control over feiahreporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-15
(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,rasraded) that occurred during the period coverethisyquarterly report that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadf, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statatseor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Comest of our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mgxounsel and financial advisors engaged by @eitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noredgy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstaints.

In addition, our Board of Directors received thdegivative demand letters alleging, among othergsi that the directors and our officers, as
well as the Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciduties to us by failing to institute adequateintl controls and failing to ensure that we
made accurate financial disclosures. These lattepgest, among other things, that the Board ofdiirs take action to investigate and remedy
the alleged breaches of fiduciary duty. The Audit@nittee concluded its investigation in 2014 arathed an agreement with FIDAC that
resolves the issues raised in the derivative dertatats. The Audit Committee is pursuing additioreanedies against other parties regarding
the facts and circumstances relating to our acéogimdr Non-Agency RMBS and the restatement offmancial statements. These and other
potential actions that may be filed against us,thewith or without merit, may divert the attemtiof management from our business, harm
our reputation and otherwise may have a materigrag effect on our business, financial conditiesults of operations and cash flows.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Under “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Fort®-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, wéosthtrisk factors related to (i) risks
associated with adverse developments in the moet§iagnce and credit markets, (ii) risks associatéth our management and relationship
with our Manager, (iii) risks related to our buss® (iv) risks related to our investments, (v) tatary and legal risks, (vi) risks related to our
common stock (vii) tax risks, and (viii) risks asated with our prior late filings and related merts. You should carefully consider the risk
factors set forth in our Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2014. As ofltte hereof, there have been no material chang#setaisk

factors set forth in our Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

77




ltem 6. Exhibits
Exhibits:

The exhibits required by this item are set forthtlom Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description

Number

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chintievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1tie Company’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File383-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irarated herein by
reference)

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’spRe on Form 8-K filed on
May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

3.3 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmenti@wation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’spRe on Form 8-K filed on
November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by retee

3.4 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmenti@wation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’sg@e on Form 8-K filed on
April 6, 2015 and incorporated herein by referen

3.5 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmenti@wation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’sg@e on Form 8-K filed on
April 6, 2015 and incorporated herein by referen

3.6 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Invessti@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ConyarReport on Form 8-K
filed on December 19, 2011 and incorporated hdrgireference)

3.7 Amendment to the Amended and Restated ByldwsedRegistrant (filed as Exhibit 3.7 to the Comya Report on form 10-Q
filed on May 11, 2015 and incorporated herein bgnence)

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimarkeestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File383-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irarated herein by
reference)

31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Entiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Finand@fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to Sectio2 8 the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Eutiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Finano@fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S3gction 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document *

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documen

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL  Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created*
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documen

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documgl

** Submitted electronically herewith. Atthed as Exhibit 10.1 to this report are the follmrdocuments formatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of June 30, 2@ta(dited) and December 31, 2014
(derived from the audited consolidated financiatesnents); (i) Consolidated Statements of Openatamd Comprehensive Income for the
quarters ended June 30, 2015 and 2014; (iii) Cafeteld Statement of Stockholders' Equity for thartgrs ended June 30, 2015 and 2014; (iv
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the guaended June 30, 2015 and 2014; and (v) No@srisolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdéport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
(Chief Executive Officer and Preside
and duly authorized officer of the registrai

Date: August 7, 201!

By: /s/Raob Colligan
Rob Colligan

(Chief Financial Officer

and principal financial officer of the registrar
Date: August 7, 201
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omg#téde a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@ééments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods presented ir
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining discie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and proceduttes d@signed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an amaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 7, 201

[s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakExtive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Rob Colligan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omg#téde a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@ééments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods presented ir
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining discie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and proceduttes d@signed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isg prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting princij

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgort our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an amaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 7, 201

/s/Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
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Exhibit 32.1
CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 1003¢

CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended June

30, 2015 to be filed with Securities and Exchangen@®ission on or about the date hereof (the “RepadrtMatthew Lambiase, President, and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify rpuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@062, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc
2. Theinformation contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!
It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.
[s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambiast

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
August 7, 201¢
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Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 1003¢

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended June

30, 2015 to be filed with Securities and Exchangen@®ission on or about the date hereof (the “RepdrtRob Colligan, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Sect8®6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S€xtion 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

2. Theinformation contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

[s/ Rob Colligar
Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Office
August 7, 201¢
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